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DISCIPLINARITY OF ECONOMICS AND THE INTERDISCIPLINARY ONTOLOGY:
CASE OF UKRAINE
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Summary. The current debate over the intersections between academic economics and the theory of
interdisciplinary is a complex scientific problem. The first thing to note is that the disciplinarity of economics, like
any other academic discipline, cannot be rejected. The disciplinary component of economics is the foundation
around which the interdisciplinary environment of economics is built. If we take into account the holistic ontology
described by the contemporary science system, then economics correlates with the economic sphere of reality.
This sphere of reality consists of economic phenomena and processes, which (in reality) are closely intertwined
with numerous phenomena described by other academic disciplines. Taking into account hidden "trade zones" and
interdisciplinary links between academic disciplines would probably increase the economic efficiency of these

processes.

Keywords: complexity, disciplinarity of economics, heterodox economics, ontology, transdisciplinarity.

Introduction. The theory of interdisciplinarity
concerns mainly the scientific worldview, and therefore
it will be useful to describe the limits of the science in
terms of philosophy and methodology of science. The
scientific worldview correlates with all, without
exception, scientific knowledge created by mankind
throughout history. Thus, scientific knowledge
describes a holistic ontology of the real world using
scientific categories.

Literature Review. Within the current work it is
important to describe the main problem from two
academic disciplines: philosophy and economics. The
topic of ontology is quite complex in philosophy: it can
relate to both metaphysical problems [1] and the
science system [2]. Ontological issues are available
both to general public [3] and to those who are trying
to understand philosophical thinking as a basis for the
real world comprehension [4, 5]. A holistic
understanding of ontology in a scientific perspective
concerns the consideration of all academic disciplines
without exception. If we take into account the specific
perspective of economics [9], we must also consider its
place among other academic disciplines. It should also
be remembered that economics is characterized by a
strong disciplinary component [7, 8]. In the developed
countries, it is learned at the school level [6]. However,
within this work, it is especially important that
economic theory [10] is not detached from reality. To
do this, we will try to describe economics as a
component of the scientific system that productively
describes the economic sphere of reality and allows to
manage it.

Purpose of the Article. The main purpose of the
article is to describe economics as part of a scientific
system, which is characterized by transdisciplinarity.
The tasks related to the main purpose of the article

include the following: to analyze the relationship
between scientific knowledge and the holistic ontology
of the real world; to study the relationship between
economic knowledge and the economic sphere of
reality; describe the interdisciplinary links of
economics with other academic disciplines.

Results. Ontology, as a philosophical category, is
a productive tool of describing real-world phenomena.
The latter is related to very specific scientific
knowledge. In essence, there is a direct correlation
between  scientific  descriptions and  existing
phenomena and processes of the real world. Thus,
understanding the ontology of the real world allows us
to distinguish the scientific worldview from the artistic,
religious or mythological worldview. What is described
by scientific means directly relates to the being, as well
as the possibility of interaction with it. In this context,
we can talk about the ontology (and existence) of
medicine, education, agriculture, law and so on. This
brief philosophical digression relates to the explanation
of the fact that each scientific field describes a certain
area of reality and the latter occupies a very specific
place in reality among other areas that are described by
other scientific fields.

An important part of this investigation, along with
the ontology, is the principle of holism
(encyclopedism). Holism makes it possible to think
about reality in its entirety, so a person can be aware of
the being that consists of most phenomena and
processes that are real. By following this path, a
researcher have the opportunity to understand the
relationship between the place of each scientific field
and the sphere of reality that it describes. Such work
with scientific knowledge is necessary for anyone who
wants to understand the peculiarities of the scientific
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fields functioning, as well as their usefulness in solving
specific problems humanity facing.

To master the modern system of science, two
general scientific methods are useful: induction and
deduction. Although the use of these methods is very
common, their exploitation must be approached with
care and vigilance. When the object of a study is the
ontology itself, there are two ways to perceive it; from
general to specific, or from specific to general. Every
scientist can separate the essential from the
insignificant, and the general from the specific. If the
system of science can be taken into account, then
everything looks quite simple. Using the method of
deduction, we will go down from the whole system of
science, to macro-branches of science (social,
technical, natural), then to a specific field of scientific
knowledge (sociology, economics, engineering,
physics, geography), and then - through the use of
specific scientific theories and terms (social groups and
social prestige, industrial engineering, climatic zones,
molecules) to real phenomena and processes. However,
the use of the induction method allows the movement
from the same type phenomena to their general
characteristics and qualities. In any case, this cursory
use of philosophical terminology is necessary for the
understanding of transdisciplinarity as part of the
theory of interdisciplinarity.

Transdisciplinarity can be understood as hyper- or
super-interdisciplinarity. ~ Thus, the use of
transdisciplinarity as an approach allows to describe a
very large part of existing ontology. For example,
integration between sociology and economics has clear
interdisciplinary character. At the same time,
transdisciplinarity is seen as the integration between
sociology, demography, civil society theory, law,
politics, public administration, economic theory,
finance, macroeconomics, agriculture, food industry,
international trade, ecology, geography, medicine,
psychology, mathematics, etc. Thus, the use of a
transdisciplinary approach allows to work with a large
amount of scientific knowledge, which corresponds
with a large area of reality.

Realism and holism are characteristics of
transdisciplinary research. Thus, to understand the
possibilities of economics, the place of economic
knowledge in the scientific system and the economic
reality (as part of the whole reality) we need to develop
holistic thinking based on proved facts and reliable
knowledge. Thus, we can say that economic reality,
given the ontology, exists inseparably from social,
cultural, physical or chemical reality. This means that
scientists  (physicists,  geographers,  geologists,
programmers, financiers, marketers, culturologists) do
not just write scientific texts and conduct research, they
work with a very specific area of reality, which can be
described by the discipline-specific categorical and
conceptual apparatus. A real problem that exists as an
ontological situation can be effectively solved by joint
efforts of disciplinary scientists and other stakeholders
with specialized knowledge.

Having briefly considered the problems of
ontology, general scientific methods, realism and

holism, we will pay attention to the problems of
economics as an academic discipline and the
correlation of the latter with the economic situation in
the real world.

The complexity of the economic phenomena and
processes interweaving with other real phenomena and
processes is extra large. In a person's life, economic
categories (money, expenses, goods) are intertwined
with education, law, computer technology, urban
planning, transportation, communications,
entertainment, food and so on. Another example may
relate to the activities of a trading firm, which in
addition to financial knowledge, economics and trade
also include the legal features of such activities,
management, logistics  (transport), international
relations, cultural features of a country and
international partners, qualitative and quantitative
characteristics of goods, etc. These two examples
briefly explain the fact that in the real world it is
difficult to separate economics from other fields of
scientific knowledge. More than this, for the most
people they exist as something synthetic. Nevertheless,
the conceptual apparatus of economics is quite
effective, so professional scientists can effectively
describe the economic sphere of reality without the use
of other sciences. That is why the disciplinarity of
economics is so important. The last one also have its
dimensions.

It is important to understand that the complexity
and peculiarities of economics in different countries
(national traditions) are not the same. It is also worth
noting that the complexity and size of economic reality
in different countries are not the same. That is why
some parallels between national (those that occur
within a particular country) economic phenomena and
processes and national tradition of economics must be
marked. Here is an example of contrasting difference:
Ukrainian economics in Soviet times and economics in
independent Ukraine. These two periods in Ukrainian
economics concerned the description, explanation and
formation of the Ukrainian economic system in
different periods. Accordingly, in these two historical
periods there were two completely different economic
systems (planned-centralized and capitalist-market).
This means that the connection between science and
sphere of realm is strong. Hence, the development of
economics can change (complicate, simplify, make
effective) economic reality. The last assertion is
especially important.

Generally, the dialectic between the development
of national economic thought and growing complexity
of economic reality is quite complex. On the one hand,
the conceptualization of both economic phenomena and
the accumulation of economic knowledge is a response
to the growing complexity of economic reality, as well
as a sign of increased demand for economic knowledge
in a given country. On the other hand, the assimilation
of global experience in the field of economics can have
a positive effect on the purposeful and conscious
formation of economic reality, as well as increase the
efficiency of economic activities. The results of such a
dialectic development over the past 30 years in Ukraine



6 East European Scientific Journal #10(62), 2020

are contained in the development of trade,
establishment of international economic relations,
emergence of stock exchanges, establishment of private
property, development of intellectual property and so
on. Thus, economic sphere of reality is a sphere of
human activity that is available for change, adjustment,
modernization, improvement and conscious purposeful
formation.

The phenomena related to transparency and
accountability of economic processes become
especially important in the era of computer and
information technologies spread. On the other hand,
work with economic knowledge has some crucial
characteristics. These include accessibility, clarity and
practicality of national economic thought and economic
information. Hence, the efficiency of economic activity
in various economic entities, to a large extent, depends
on the efficiency of economic scientists, as well as
economic government officials. These two actors are
the stakeholders that can greatly improve the efficiency
of economic activity. At the level of civil society (civil
associations), business representatives and
international  organizations, the aforementioned
stakeholders can influence economic phenomena and
processes within a particular country. Academic staff
should provide qualitative theoretical and practical
recommendations for the promotion of a national
economic system.

All of the above applies to the achievement of a
"disciplinary maturity" by a national economics. This
term is used to describe the state of Ukrainian
economics (in particular), in which it will be able to
influence the formation of Ukrainian economic reality
with great efficiency. The latter can be manifested in
the following: a high correlation between the form and
content of students’ education and the employers’
needs or requirements; a productive interaction
between academic economics and representatives of
business and industry; a synchronization and
harmonization of Ukrainian economic thought with
modern global economic discourses; an ability to build
effective economic strategy for the development of the
state (5 to 25 years); a conceptual developments of
national economics should have a significant impact on
a material life improvement of average Ukrainian
citizen. Of course, the effectiveness of national
economic thought is not limited to what is stated here
and the effect of scientists’ work in the field of
economics is much broader.

The  transition  from  disciplinarity  to
transdisciplinarity through multydisciplinarity and
interdisciplinarity has crucial importance. This
transition will harmonize the efforts of Ukrainian
scientists from various fields in order to improve life of
the country.

The first thing to remember is the large size of
categorical and conceptual apparatus of each individual
scientific field. The number of terms, concepts and
categories of a particular discipline can reach tens of
thousands units. Therefore, taking into account the
existence of hundreds scientific disciplines, the
scientific system must consists of hundreds of

thousands specific terms and concepts. It is clear that
one scientist can not master all the complexities of
science even in a few lives. That is why the division of
responsibilities, as well as scientific cooperation are
very common in the scientific world. Such a
phenomena exist in order to solve complex
interdisciplinary problems of reality. In fact, the
scientific world has no substitute for the theory of
interdisciplinarity, because research in the field of
sustainable development or ecology impossible to
conduct only by means of one academic discipline.
Thus, the modern development of science has faced a
very difficult task: finding ways to fruitful
understanding of holism and transdisciplinarity.

The main task is to eliminate the "interdisciplinary
vacuum® that exists in a national university system. In
fact, this is another Ilevel of the theory of
interdisciplinarity development in Ukraine. So, on a
national scale, there is a demand for the production of
interdisciplinary texts with varying complexity, but
also for the interaction between disciplinary scholars.
Thus, interaction between employees of one
department and between representatives of different
universities can be observed. It is very important that
public authorities in the field of education and
university management understand funding as the most
important factor, when people negotiate about the
theory of interdisciplinarity.

Going down to the consideration of economics in
the science system we must note that the place of
economics among all other scientific fields is the border
of economics interdisciplinary understanding. Thus,
the disciplinary characteristics of economics explain
the scope of reality, which is characterized as economic
activity. Whereas, the interdisciplinary connections of
economics describe the connections of the economic
sphere of reality with other spheres of reality, which are
described by other scientific branches. It does not
happen that economic reality is isolated from other
spheres of reality. That is why ignoring the
interdisciplinary component in the education of
economic students can lead to frustration and confusion
in the latter.

In general, economic research acts as a part of
interdisciplinary  real-world research  within a
transdisciplinary perspective. Thus, interdisciplinary
integration can be conceptualized as an initial
condition. It can be addressed after a certain study of
real-world phenomena or theoretical conceptualization.
The center of scientific activity in each academic
discipline will manifest itself as disciplinarity (in the
form of disciplinary nucleus) and multy-, inter- or
transdisciplinarity will be periphery. However,
scientists will have to look for effective integration with
other disciplines: from their professional fields
multydisciplinarity ~ and interdisciplinarity  to
transdisciplinarity.

There are numerous spheres of reality that, from
the scientific point of view, are interdisciplinary and
understudied. Such spheres of reality, in the context of
philosophical phenomenology, require a usage of
scientific and categorical apparatus of two or more
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academic disciplines. Further, we will consider
possible options for describing such complex

phenomena, as well as effective solutions to problems
associated with them.

In order to explain the theory of interdisciplinarity
possibilities, multidisciplinary and interdisciplinary
approaches will be considered in the following
paragraphs. A multidisciplinary approach to is
evaluation of complementary scientific perspectives
without integration. For example, it is possible to assess
the life of an individual country in the context of
demography, economics, culture, geography without
"mixing" terms, concepts and methods. The discussion
of scientists from different fields, which is aimed at
explaining and solving the real problem can be the basic
form of cooperation. This stage of problem solving is
aimed at complexity conceptualization. It should be
used when different disciplinary scholars are not yet
ready to integrate disciplinary areas, or when they
believe that each area (taken separately) solves a part of
a complex problem very effectively. Another type of
multydisciplinarity is the work of scientists from
different departments, chairs and colleges within one
university. For example, in an agricultural university,
the departments of crop, livestock, chemistry, biology,
agricultural machinery, management, law, economics,
finance, marketing, computer science function as
separate divisions and perform their part of common
work aimed at development and efficiency increase in
Ukrainian agriculture. In contrast, an interdisciplinary
approach could be considered when the efforts of
different departments representatives are integrated to
solve a common problem (for example, research in the
development of new fertilizers for cereals in order to
minimize real costs of the product).

Interdisciplinarity refers to the integration of
terms, concepts, theories or methods from at least two
branches of scientific knowledge (academic
disciplines). Thus, an interaction between different
disciplinary perspectives occurs and the most optimal
way to solve a particular scientific problem is
established. For example, in the field of computer
science, a startup creation related to the development of
applications for smartphones often has interdisciplinary
character. Creating a startup involves not only work on
the product - software (programmers), but also the
calculation of economic indicators - costs, income and
net profit (economists, financiers). In addition, the
work of lawyers on intellectual property rights and
patents is important. Interdisciplinary interaction
between these professionals will help to determine the
optimal correlation between product quality, financial
costs and time required to obtain a product patent. Of
course, this example uses a simplified model. In reality,
the interdisciplinary complexity of such activities is
much more complex.

Mentioned above examples show that
interdisciplinary cooperation is difficult to avoid in a
real situation. Therefore, if an entrepreneur is
unfamiliar with jurisprudence, he can turn to a
professional lawyer, which can be considered as
interdisciplinary cooperation. It is obvious that the

comparison of disciplinary perspectives takes the form
of a dialogue between disciplinary branches (academic
disciplines).  To facilitate  understanding  of
multydisciplinarity, it should be noted that it is better to
act without integration where it can be avoided and with
integration where it brings benefits.

As we have already mentioned, Ukrainian scholars
often produce interesting interdisciplinary texts, so
there is a significant number of subjects that have an
interdisciplinary nature (integration of at least two
branches of knowledge). However, the comprehension
of such complex texts and subjects by students leaves
much to be desired. The main thing that is not taken
into account is the considerable scientific and
educational experience of university staff. It is clear
that if a person studies a certain field for decades - he
will be a professional and will know all the details in
particular field. However, if the interdisciplinary course
(sociology and economics) is studied by first- and
second-year students, they will need additional
knowledge to understand the complex intertwining of
terminology and research methods. Thus, knowledge of
the theory of interdisciplinarity brings clarity, lucid and
new possibilities for reflection. Thus, the student
familiar with the theory of interdisciplinarity will be
able to choose where to apply a multidisciplinary or
interdisciplinary approach.

Therefore, the work of scientists and educators in
the field of economics is part of scientific activity as a
planetary phenomenon. It is important to understand
that the comparison and integration of economics with
other fields of knowledge (academic disciplines) is an
integral part of everyday scientific activity. In our
study, the statement that the theory of
interdisciplinarity can significantly optimize and
improve the relationship between different scientific
fields is crucial.

The transition from a theoretical understanding of
the interdisciplinarity to the real productive integration
and interdisciplinary cooperation between scientists is
complex and multilevel. During such integration and
cooperation new "trade zones between disciplines” can
be identified. The last one further become productive
areas of research. This was exactly the situation with
sustainable development, ecology or globalization 30
years ago. Conceptualization of such new research
areas that have an interdisciplinary nature will create
full-fledged university subjects. Given that the
relationship between science and education is a top
priority for the 21st century, conducting complex
interdisciplinary research can have a significant impact
on the development of useful students’ skills and
competencies.

Yet, we believe that interdisciplinarity can not
replace disciplinarity. Disciplinarity, as a characteristic
of each independent scientific field, is the conceptual
core of an academic discipline, consisting of terms,
concepts, theories, methods, principles, functions,
approaches and  hypotheses.  Therefore, the
effectiveness of disciplinarity in addressing the daily
needs of each individual industry can not be rejected.
The qualitative increase in knowledge within each
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individual academic discipline will continue in the
form of proliferation and there are a huge number of
problems that can not be effectively solved by any other
science. Therefore, there will always be problems that
can be effectively solved only by physics, quantum
mechanics, astronomy, biology, cytology,
endocrinology, family medicine, art, demography or
economics separately. However, if the focus
completely shifts  from disciplinarity  to
interdisciplinarity, then effective links between
disciplines will be impossible at all. Thus, the
conceptual core of each academic discipline is the basis
both for specific disciplinary problems solving and for
interdisciplinary integration with other disciplines.

Economics is a clear example of "strong" and
effective disciplinary and interdisciplinary
components. Strong correlations with dozens of
different scientific fields help to solve problems related
to the complex and ramified economic realm. Most of
the disciplinary economic knowledge is contained in
economic  dictionaries,  economic  textbooks,
monographs of world-renowned economists, as well as
in scientific articles in specialized economic journals.
At the same time, no enterprise, organization and even
individual can do without the use of economic
knowledge in the real world. Human nature, as well as
the way of human society is organized, translate some
economic categories into the field of ontology.

The most important thing in working with
interdisciplinary issues is to set priorities correctly. The
Nel priority is still the development of the disciplinary
sphere of a particular discipline. Priority Ne2 is to
clarify and strengthen interdisciplinary integration
between various academic disciplines. If disciplinarity
disappears, interdisciplinarity will have nothing to rely
on. In addition, it is unlikely that there will be a large
number of scholars who believe that interdisciplinarity
is more important than their specialization. On the
contrary, the self-development of the theory of
interdisciplinarity is increasingly conceptualizing
"interdisciplinary studies” as a disciplinary field of
knowledge and a university subject.

Conclusions. Summarizing all the above, we must
keep in mind the following: the main task of both

disciplinary and interdisciplinary approaches is to solve
real-world problems effectively. To specify, the task of
Ukrainian scientists is to solve real problems specific to
Ukraine. If we take into account the Ukrainian
economics, the high quality of economic research, as
well as effective university economic education are the
main  tasks of academic economists. The
interdisciplinary component of Ukrainian economics
will increase the harmony of cooperation and
synchronize the efforts of scientists from different
fields. In other words, it increase the effectiveness of

solving complex real problems that are
interdisciplinary.
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Abstract. This article addresses the issues of increasing the attractiveness of the investment climate in
Fergana region and the investment activity of real sector enterprises.
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Uzbekistan is a country with huge economic and
investment opportunities. The share of gas condensate
reserves is 74%, 31% of oil, 40% of natural gas and

55% of coal in Central Asia. It has a huge potential of
hydropower resources and huge reserves of mineral
resources.
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Uzbekistan is one of the main producer of cotton
and cotton products, fruits and vegetables. The republic
also has great potential for tourism development. All
this will allow for the further development of the
economy, in addition to the implementation of various
investment projects and programs.

The realization of these opportunities will require,
firstly, a certain amount of time, and secondly, new
resources, especially investment resources. In this case,
the higher level of management, the wider scope and
complexity of the tasks to be performed accordingly,
and vice versa.

For example, if the introduction of resource and
labor-saving technologies at the micro level, the
competitiveness and quality of products, the macro-
level investment strategy and capital investment will
improve intra-sectoral and inter-sectoral ratios,
eliminate mistakes in the location of productive forces.
It serves for improvement of the appearance.

Therefore, investment activity, well-thought-out
investment policy and properly chosen priorities are not
only important components of the investment strategy,
but also create a favorable environment for future
economic growth and people's livelihoods.

Undoubtedly, the investment policy and
investment strategy pursued in our country are based on
these and similar preconditions. Based on the above
considerations, In pursuance of the Decree of the
President of the Republic of Uzbekistan dated October
17, 2017 No F-5084 "On measures to develop the
regional investment program of Fergana region for
2018", as well as to ensure the rapid comprehensive
development of the region on the basis of efficient use
of available raw materials Resolution No. 978 of
December 12, 2017 "On approval of the regional
investment program of Fergana region for 2018" the
following investment program for the next three years
for Fergana region has been approved, which includes
the following areas: additional medium and large
investment projects of strategic importance at the
national level (8 worth 171.2 billion soums); additional
investment projects in the Kokand Free Economic Zone
and small industrial zones (7 worth 304.6 billion
soums); additional investment projects implemented by
family and private businesses (133 small ones totaling
706.5 billion soums); It is also planned to implement a
total of 1708 projects in the region under the regional
investment program for 2019-2021 (Table 1).

Table 1
Aggregate indicators of the projects of the regional investment program of Fergana region
for 2019-2021 [12]
No | Name of city Number of hence: Project cost, | Number of
- and district projects industry | service | agriculture min. sum new jobs

Regional total: 1708 732 629 347 9967 288 26 980
1 Margilan city 70 58 12 398 767 2445
2 Fergana city 204 28 133 43 2914 824 1598
3 Quvasoy city 68 28 22 18 1 358 900 876
4 Kokand city 299 122 177 2 450 288 4405
5 | Baghdad district 49 28 9 12 186 000 1059
6 | Besharik district 58 30 13 15 206 680 1066
7 | Buvayda district 113 27 41 45 324 461 2106
8 | Dangara district 42 24 5 13 43 345 323
9 | Yazyovan district 97 36 34 27 89 350 584
10 | Altiariq district 38 18 10 10 132 348 748
11 | Rishtan district 60 23 18 19 110530 601
12 Sokh district 54 29 12 13 57 980 675
13 | Toshloq district 56 36 6 14 213 750 810
14| Ychkuprik 69 63 6 310500 1856

district
i || DSIEtEn 62 30 14 18 656 530 1801
Uzbekistan
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16 | Fergana district 63 36 9 18 227 695 1782
17 Furgat district 68 29 14 25 35940 680
18 Quva district 66 22 25 19 69 400 595
19 | Qoshtepa district 172 65 75 32 180 000 2970
Of the investment projects planned for 2019-2021  Kushtepa district, Margilan, Fergana, Quvasoy,

in Fergana region, 732 are in industry, 629 in services,
347 in agriculture, with a total value of 9967288 million
soums. soums, which will create 26,980 new jobs.

a

= jay
&3

Kokand cities account for 48% of the total projects
implemented in the region (Diagram 1).

= Margilan city
Fergana city
m Kokand city

Quvasoy city

m Baghdad district

m Besharik district

m Buvayda district
Dangara district

m Yazyovan district
Altariq district

m Rishtan district

Sokh district

Diagram 1. The share of investment projects to be implemented in Fergana region in 2019-2021 by districts [12]

According to the analysis of projects by districts,
the share of jobs created in the projects in Margilan,
Fergana, Kokand and Buvayda, Uchkuprik,
Uzbekistan, Fergana and Kushtepa districts, as well as
the number of projects and the distribution of funds is
high.

The main tasks of the working group coordinating
the activities of state and economic administration
bodies, local authorities and commercial banks to
ensure the implementation of investment program
parameters are to establish and coordinate the effective
implementation of these projects.

The total number of medium and large investment
projects of strategic importance for 2018-2021,
initiated at the national level to develop the regional
economy, is 45, with a total value of 3102.7 billion
soums.

The implementation of these projects will create
4,751 new jobs in the region and produce new types of
export products (Table 2).

As part of the project implemented by Uzbekistan
Railways, a total of 250,000 cars and railway brake
pads, 100,000 refrigerated containers and their
components, and Damas cars within the projects
implemented by Uzavtosanoat. It is planned to produce
7 types of fused components.

The implemented investment programs have a
positive impact on the socio-economic development of
the region and allow to achieve the following results,
including: in the forecast period, the Gross Regional
Product will grow by an average of 8.7% to 81713.5
billion soums.
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Table 2

Information on medium and large investment projects of strategic importance,
initiated at the national level [12]

Name of city and district

Total
Uzbekistan Railways Joint Stock Company
Uzavtosanoat Joint Stock Company
Uzkimyosanoat Joint Stock Company
Uzstroymaterialy Joint Stock Company
Association of Textile Industry
Private Enterprise "Uzbekiston Holding"
Uzbekcharmpoyabzali Association
Private Enterprise "Uzbekvinsanoatholding"
Uzpakhtayog Joint Stock Company
Uzdonmahsulot Joint Stock Company
Pharmaceutical Agency under the Ministry of
Health

Industrial production averaged 7.7 percent over
the forecast years, HIT production an average of 10.1
percent, agriculture 6.5 percent, total investment 0.5
percent, foreign investment 12.5 percent, retail trade
turnover 14, 9 percent, services - 17.5 percent, paid
services - 12.5 percent, employment - 2.2 percent,
exports - 2 percent.

The volume of investments in fixed assets is
expected to increase by 3.25 times by 2025 compared
t0 2017, and the level of labor productivity by 2.3 times.
This requires measures to ensure the targeted use of
investments in sectors of the economy.

Based on the results of the research, a model of
effective investment marketing policy is proposed in
three main blocks: directions aimed at ensuring
investment attractiveness; directions aimed at creating
the infrastructure necessary to ensure investment
attractiveness; areas that ensure the active participation
of business entities operating in the region in
investments.

The main directions of investment marketing
policy in Fergana region are the formation of the
region's image, enhancing the image of national brands,
developing investor services, expanding tourism
opportunities, organizing economic development
models based on the principles of marketing elements
"10P" and "10S".

Also, the main tasks of investment marketing
control will be: - to assess the impact of investment
projects on the formation of a competitive environment
in the region; - Regular collection of market
information, the formation of their database; - to
determine the interest of investors in the region; -
control of the justifications of investment projects and
their assessment in relation to the level of economic
development of the region, and a number of other
marketing activities.

In general, the Fergana region has wide
opportunities to further increase the efficiency of

6 133 567,3 9452
2,00 72 000,0 50,0
1,00 11 340,0 16,0
2,00 1160 200,0 485,0
5,00 575 930,0 530,0
15,00 744 154,7 2410,0
8,00 136 233,0 410,0
6,00 75 210,0 290,0
2,00 127 200,0 140,0
2,00 14 916,0 18,0
1,00 13 600,0 2
1,00 172000,00 400,00

investment projects through an active investment
marketing policy.
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ORGANIZATIONAL AND LEGAL SECURITY MODELS FOR SUBJECTS
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Abstarct. The article deals with the problem of typology of security models. An analysis of the genesis of
the security models of the national economy is carried out by authors. The main types of security models are
summarized and described. The necessity of the organizational and legal security model formation, based on the
casual approach is proposed by authors for subjects of agrarian business. The main internal elements of the casual
model security are identified for subjects of agrarian business.

Keywords: organizational and legal security, casual approach, the business environment, the model of

security threats.

Statement of the problem. Real-world practice
shows that socially oriented and socially responsible
model of social development, which provides a
sustainable economic development of the country, has
become the dominant ideology in the XXI century. Any
economic system is exposed to a number of internal and
external factors that destabilize the economy and
disrupt the balanced development of its basic elements,
and ultimately lead to a reduction in the level of social
welfare. In the study of issues of organizational and
legal security of the country one of the major problems
is also the well-being of inequality that generates social
tension in society. In the process of studying the issues
of the organizational and legal security of the country
we recognize that one of the major problems is also the
well-being of inequality which generates social tension
in society.

In the context of global integration one of the most
important vectors of the economic policy in many
countries has become a struggle for sales markets, raw
materials and energy resources, as well as the desire to
place ecologically dirty and labor-intensive production
on the territory of other states. This situation has
created many problems in the field of sustainable
economic development and general improvement of the
living standards of the population. That is why it is very
important for us to find the solution of the problem of
formation of the national security. In fact, the problem
of the country’s security ensuring has become one of
the basic conditions for sustainable development of
society, which determines the need to build a model of
security in today’s dynamic business environment.

Analysis of the recent investigations and
publications and highlighting of the unsolved before
parts of the general problem, to which the article is
dedicated to. The problem of the typology of security
models that are now being implemented in the
framework of the private and public sector
organizations in the domestic and foreign literature are
not studied deeply enough. In many ways, this situation
is due to the difficulty in determining the criteria for
classification. Most often, this or that company is
forced to respond to the challenges arising “upon”, and
the range of security threats extremely wide [1, 2, 7,
12].

In today scientific literature there is no a uniform
approach to the understanding of the optimal model of

security. However, at the present level of knowledge
and research activity in this sphere, the development of
a model for the security achievement is not only
subjectively necessary, but is also objectively true. This
is due to the fact that the favorable state of the
enterprise security, organization and region is the
financial basis for the country security as a whole.

Results. Nowadays many researchers consider the
security problem not only as a condition of protection
of interests of the individual, society and the state in the
production and economic, financial, foreign trade,
energy, technology, food and other fields, but also as
the creation of conditions to support and improve the
quality of life of citizens. Obviously, all this contributes
to the sustainable and effective functioning in the
enlarged reproduction of the economy mode [1-8].

Formation of the relevance of security problem
goes to the period of formation of capitalist relations,
when the idea of the need to ensure the welfare and
safety of the state began to develop in the countries of
European civilization. Jean-Jacques Rousseau, a
famous Genevan philosopher and writer of the 18"
century, in his treatise, called “The Social Contract”,
pointed out that the concern for self-preservation and
security is the most important of all the concerns of the
state. The concept of the security in that difficult
historical time was considered as “a certain state or
situation, which arises as a result of the lack of a real
danger, as well as the availability of financial
institutional structure that facilitates the creation and
maintenance of this situation” [1].

Further understanding of the organizational and
legal security issues was based on the idea of society as
an integral organism, the functioning of which may be
deliberately adjusted in order to improve social welfare.
More intensive study of organizational and legal
security issues started in the 1930-1940-ies of the last
century, when the epoch of free competition capitalism
finished and the next “administrative revolution”
began. This period was concerned with the realization
that for the public benefit the market self-regulation
must be accompanied by centralized control.

In the existing economic literature the dependence
of the organizational and legal security of the economic
theory is usually considered at a very superficial level.
Consequently, it is difficult to understand the reasons
which influenced and formed the essential
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understanding of the changes of organizational and
legal security. Between the occurrence of the threat and
the formation of a package of measures to combat it,
there is always an intermediary, i.e. an economic model
that is interpreted and reveals the problem.

Organizational structures that are intended to
provide protection of the organizational and legal
security began to take shape in the 20" century, when
the main theoretical approaches to the definition of
national organizational and legal security of the main
threats were formed (See Table 1):

e the Mercantilism concept of protection against
macroeconomic internal threats (16 — 18" centuries);

e the Cameralism concept of protection of the
external economic safety (the mid 19" century period);

e the Keynesian concept of protection against
domestic macroeconomic threats (the last third of the
20" century);

o the Institutional concept of protection against
administrative barriers (the end of the 20" century)
[2,9].

Table 1

Evolutionary models of national security understanding
[summarized by authors on the basis of 4, 7, 8, 11]

Specifications of the — - Model name
Mercantilism Cameralism . _—
model Keynesian concept Institutional concept
concept concept
The time of
occurrence of the The 16— 18" The 1840s, The 1930s, The 1980s,
model, its main centuries Friedrich List John Maynard Keynes Hernando de Soto
founders
Formation of the Focus on . The inability of the
. : Competition or market to ensure the . .
maintenance of the regulation of . - - The basic state failures
. . other actions of stability of economic S .
main threat to entrepreneurial . (administrative barriers)
national security activity foreign states growth, _unerr_lployment,
inflation
The purpose of The desired . . . “Board of Rights”, the
. . Economic Economic and social .
safeguarding the economic indenendence stability protection of property
national security activities P rights
The reduction of the
Methods and forms Protectionist Protectionist State regulation of registration procedures
of struggle to ensure government trade policies production, employment | and payments, the fight
national security policies P and monetary against bureaucracy and
corruption

Such interpretation of the essence of threats often
leads to the fact that researchers avoid the development
of special security models, but merely state the need for
a comprehensive provision of this security. However,
in practice most of the security threats are more
specialized.

In addition, the process of comprehensive security
is costly and time consuming, and this is particularly
noticeable in the context of business restructuring
processes. It is known that the total security costs
should not exceed the useful effect, resulting from the
implementation of appropriate measures. Therefore, in
the process of determining the optimal version of
“integrated security” it is very important to provide for
the possibility of differentiation of security models,
depending on various factors. Moreover, it should be
noted that the process of security requires a flexible,
often prompt response to the challenges of the current
market situation.

On the basis of the results obtained on the
available data, it seems possible to propose the
following classification of organizational and legal
security models.

First of all, depending on the degree of urgency all
the organizational and legal security models of the
organizations can be divided into strategic and tactical
ones. Most public and private businesses are interested

in the formation of the strategic scheme, able to protect
their interests and their welfare. Many large companies
and businesses, whose activities are related to state
secrets, generally consider the process of ensuring their
own organizational and legal security in the national
security context, and are oriented at the same time on
all sorts of “doctrines” and “strategies”. Tactical model
for enterprises is considered to be an “extraordinary”
and even “forced” one. It greatly depends on the
specific of business organization. For example, in the
non-manufacturing sector of the national economy
(finance, retail, insurance), the risks are always
inevitable, and they are pre-counted by the top-
management and the staff of the company, but in
enterprises, economic activity of which is related to the
production, the successful development is possible only
due to the complete rejection of the excessively risky
management decisions [3].

Secondly, the next classification of the models of
organizational and legal security formation is
concerned with their differentiation into simple and
layered ones according to the degree of depth of
building protection. Most often enterprises create
simple, single-stage organizational and legal security
protection systems. This is due to the rational nature
(layered model of organizational and legal security of
the business is much more expensive than the simple
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one), and the underestimation of rival options. The
layered models of organizational and legal security are
often used in the “technical” level. This assumes
several “levels of protection” of the enterprise. Layered
protection strategy traditionally includes prevention
and computer hacking within information security
provision of the company [11].

Thirdly, the classification of security models can
be formed on the basis of the level of protection in the
case of any threats. Thus, it is necessary to distinguish
between dynamic, static and mixed model. Besides, it
is possible to allocate dynamic, static and mixed
models. Static model involves “defensive” as in case of
the normal conduct of business, and in case of the
“unexpected scenario”. This approach is based on
understanding of the security as a “protection”.
However, it almost does not consider the dynamics of
the economic situation, the emergence of new threats to
the modern requirements of openness and transparency
in conducting business activities, not taking into
account that such a model of “defense” is inappropriate
for the situation of competition, when the defense is
actually a defeat, and for the situation business
restructuring [2].

Fourthly, some authors identify three basic models
of security (social, economic and environmental)
according to the basis of their focus. Thus, it is
necessary to distinguish security between these models
on the regional level. For example, the social model is
based on demographics, the level and quality of life
(birth and death rates, life expectancy, morbidity,
average and minimum wages and pensions in
comparison with the cost of living, the difference in
income between the individual layers of the population,
consumption of most important kinds of food and
provision of durable goods, crime and so on) and the
dynamics of employment; the proportion in the
population of citizens with incomes below the
subsistence minimum; average life expectancy; the
income gap between groups; crime rate, etc. Economic
and financial models are based on the measure of the
infrastructure (the reproduction dynamics, performance
and degree of wear and tear, technical accidents, the
number of infrastructure), the state of fiscal and credit
systems, the provision of financial and material
resources, the most important regional requirements,
availability of resources, the performance of individual
delegated state powers; the effectiveness of the system
of state authority, legal and administrative control
mechanisms; the political climate in the region.
Environmental models are based on the state of the
environment and ecology; the use of mineral resources,
land and water resources, mineral resources;
introduction of modern, environmentally friendly,
resource- and energy-saving technologies [8].

And finally, depending on the ability to adapt to
economic threats, the control mechanism of
organizational and legal security may be regarded as a
management technology based on one of the following
models for the implementation of this mechanism:

e an active behavior model, which means that a
certain business entity is willing to adapt to economic
treats, and the pace of the adaptation is quite high. The
core principles of adaptation, which are related to the
nature and scale of the changes, are developed. The
nature of the adaptation system is based on system
approach, which covers all the possible areas;

e a conservative behavior model, which is used
for the passive business entities only. There are no
active steps to market and all the problems are solved
on the traditional way and even at the level of the state.
The pace of adaptation is low. Models and principles,
necessary for efficient adaptation, are not developed.
Adaptation is usually local in nature;

e a mixed behavior model is widely used in the
case of adaptation, which is dependent on the intensity
and the outstanding impact of environmental factors.
Pace of adaptation is much lower than in the active
model. There are general principles of adaptation and
ways of behavior, but the model is not developed [10,
p.134-135].

Based on the diversity of the above-considered
models, we believe that organizational and legal
security is a process of predicting and preventing
extensive losses from the negative effects on their
security in various aspects of financial and economic
activity. Consequently, the effective result of the entity
to ensure the profitability and sustainability of the
business can be reached directly by forecasting and
timely prevention of losses, which represent a threat to
organizational and legal security.

On the basis of previously obtained results we
propose a causal model to allocate the organizational
and legal security of the business entity. The basis of its
formation is to understand the security as a set of
external conditions and factors endangering the
functioning of the business entity and the
implementation of organizational interests. The
fundamental difference of this model from the
previously discussed is that the organizational and legal
security of the assessment there is a transition from the
study of the internal environment to the observation of
the environment. Assessment of organizational and
legal security is to determine the impact of existing and
potential hazards of the enterprise behavior, which is
particularly important in the context of economic
integration and globalization processes. The concept of
the organizational and legal security of the model is
shown below (See Figure 1).
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Figure 1. Causal model of information security of the business entity
[proposed by author on the basis of 2, 3, 12]

As we can observe from Figure 1, organizational
and legal security model has its own internal structure,
which includes the following elements:

economic independence, which is not absolute,
because the international division of labor, inter-
sectoral and inter-regional physical and financial flows,
the relationship between the individual companies form
different economic systems (from the country as a
whole to individual enterprises), which are
interdependent on each other;

stability, balance and sustainability of the
economic system, involving at national, regional and
sectoral levels, protection of property in all its forms, to

create reliable conditions and guarantees for
entrepreneurial activity, deterrence factors that could
destabilize the situation, providing the existing inter-
sectoral and inter-regional proportions of the necessary
resources; at the enterprise level it is the ability to
produce competitive products, providing all kinds of
resources, strengthening financial stability;

the ability to self-development and progress,
which implies the presence of industrial, scientific and
technological potential, creation of a favorable climate
for investment and innovation, continuous
improvement, organization of production,
improvement of professional, educational and cultural
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level of workers [3, 5].

The main objectives of the proposed
organizational and legal security model should be the
following ones:

e improvement of the investment climate on the
basis of ensuring the effective property rights
protection, improvement of the regulatory and
corporate law and restrictions manifestations of
monopoly;

e development of financial and capital markets;

e reforming the tax system, as well as
appropriate security orientation of fiscal policy to
reduce the proportion of all components material costs;

e more efficient use of resources, ensuring
effective control of natural monopolies, the
transparency of the use of financial resources, the
efficiency of the tariff and regulatory policy;

e the direction of economic policy measures to
strengthen the financial condition of the business
entities to ensure their focus on increasing profitability
and capitalization;

e along with implementation of the state policy
of export promotion, especially high-tech, it is
necessary to provide outpacing the expansion of the
internal market, to avoid critical dependence of the
national economy on world markets;

e improving the competitiveness of the national
economy is not possible with the current level of
innovation activity of enterprises, which are necessary
for the formation of the national innovation system, the
expansion of investment opportunities for innovative
projects [6].

Conclusion. This led us to the conclusion that
consideration of the model from the perspective of the
casual approach allows to get a broad overview about
the object of organizational and legal security, to
identify the main problem areas that are most
susceptible to the occurrence and effects of threats, to
determine the subjects, whose actions may lead to their
implementation, to focus on risk assessment methods,
as well as to develop practical measures to ensure
organizational and legal security. In general, the
development of casual model of organizational and
legal security requires a comprehensive solution of
issues  of  organizational, legal, scientific,
methodological, analytical, informational and expert
support activities in this area, which is the purpose of
further research and development.
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EVALUATION OF THE SCALE OF THE SHADOW ECONOMY IN THE REPUBLIC OF BELARUS
OIIEHKA MACIITABOB TEHEBOI SKOHOMMKHU B PECITYBJIUKE BEJIAPYCh

Summary. The article provides an assessment of the shadow economic activity in the Republic of Belarus.
The dynamics of the shadow economy by type of economic activity in recent years is considered, general trends
are identified. The areas in which the share of the informal sector reaches the highest values have been identified.
The article reflects the possible consequences of preserving the existing economic system, predicts the level of the
shadow economy for the coming years. The estimation of shadow economic activity in the Republic of Belarus
using the Gutman method is given.

AHHoTanus. B cratbe nmpuBeseHa olleHKa HEHAOI0aeMO YKOHOMUYECKON JIeSATeIbHOCTH B PecmyOimke
benapyce. PaccMoTpena guHaMuka TeHEBOM 3KOHOMHUKH 110 BUJIaM 3KOHOMHUUYECKOU E€ATeIbHOCTHU 3a NOCIIEHUE
TOJIbl, BEISIBIICHBI OOIIHE TCHICHIIMK. Y CTAHOBIICHBI C(hephl, B KOTOPHIX J0JIs1 HehOPMAILHOTO CEKTOPA JOCTUTACT
HauOOJBIIUX 3HAYeHUH. B cTaThe OTpakeHBI BO3MOXHBIE TOCIEACTBUS COXpPaHEHUS CYIIECTBYIOUIEH
HSKOHOMMYECKON CHUCTEMBI, MPOrHO3UPYETCS POCT TEHEBOM HSKOHOMMKH Ha Omkaimuil nepuon. Ilpoussenena
aBTOPCKasi OI[CHKA HEHAOII01aeMOM SKOHOMHUYUCCKOM e TeIbHOCTH B PecyOirke benapych npu momoriu Metoa

I'yrmana.

Keyword: shadow economy, system of national accounts.
Knouesvie cnosa: nenabniooaemas OKOHOMUKA, cucmema HAYUOHANbHbLX Cc4emoes, 8a/10601L 6HympeHHuIZ
NPOOYKM, OYeHKA MACUmMados meHesoll SKOHOMUKY, Memoo [ ymmana.

HccnenoBaHuio TEHEBOM SKOHOMMKHU YIEISETCS
OTrpOMHOE BHUMaHNeE BO BCEM MHDE.
OyHnameHTanpHOE — M3ydeHHe JToro  (eHOMeHa
HAyanoCch CPaBHUTENBHO HelaBHO. OJHUM U3 MEPBBIX
uccimenoBarened B 3TOH  chepe  ABIAETCH
amepukaHckui yuénsiii I1. 'yrman, omy6nukoBaBmuii
B 1977 rony crarsto "IloanoneHas 3xoHOMUKA". B Hel
Obuta  TpOaHANM3MPOBaHA HEOOXOAMMOCTh  y4éTa
TCHEBOW HKOHOMHYECKOW JEATeNbHOCTH, KOTOpast
cocraBisieT 1O odumansHeIM oneHkam 10-12 %
BaJIOBOTO BHYTpEHHero mpoxaykra (maiee - BBII) B
SKOHOMHYECKH PAa3BHUTHIX TocyaapcTBax, u 1o 40-50%
B OCT&JIBHBIX cTpaHax. [1]

Oco6eHHO aKTyalleH BONPOC OIIGHKH TEHEBOMH
COCTABIIAIONIEH IS TOCTCOIMATUCTHYECKUX CTpaH,
rZle B TPOIECCe Pa3roCyNapCTBICHUS 3KOHOMUKH M
pPBIHOYHBIX pedopM Hapsay C HOJIUTHYECKUMH,
HSKOHOMHYECKIUMH, COIMOKYJIbTYPHBIMH H JPYTUMH
NPUYMHAMH OBUIM CO3/1aHBI OJIAroNpUsTHBIE YCIOBUS
JUISL pa3pacTaHusi MaciITaboB 3Toro siBineHus. O4eHb
CIIOKHO pa3paboTaTh EOUHYI0 METOAMKY OLEHKH
TEHEBOW SKOHOMUKH sl BcexX cTpaH. [Ipobiiema B ToMm,
YTO B KaXJOM rOCyJapCTBE UMEIOTCS CYLIECTBEHHBIE
pa3nuuus B CTPYKType TEHEBOH JesSTeNbHOCTH Ha
CBOCH TEppUTOPHHU. OTO TPEANoNaraeT Hapsay C
obmuMHu U crenupUIecKue CrocoObl ONEHKH IS
Ka)XJI0M CTpaHbl.

Bompockl MeTomonoruM M OLIGHKH MaciTaboB
TEHEBOI0 W HE(POPMaIbHOIO CEKTOPOB 3KOHOMHKH
OTpaXXEHbI B TPYyJaX POCCHUHCKUX aBTOpoB - A.M.
INonomapenko, b.T. Pa6ymxuna, A.E. Cypunosa,
C.IO. Dbapcykopoii, H. B. UYepemucunoii; B
V3bekucrane - K. K. MamberkanoBa; B Kazaxcrane -
T.K. bexxanoBoii; B  bemapycu  Hamboimee
ABTOPHUTETHBIM  yUYEHBIM-HCCIICJIOBATEIEM B  JTOM
coepe saBisiercst H.U. BokyH.

B cucreme HanMOHANBHBIX c4eToB PecryOnmkn
Benapyce HeHaOmromaemas skoHOMUKa (nmamee -HHD)
VYUTHIBACTCA B YAaCTH CKPHITOH M HEPOpPMaIbHOMH
SKOHOMUKH. Pacuer 00BeMOB HE3aKOHHOM
SKOHOMHYECKOH JEeSTEIbHOCTH HE OCYIIECTBIISIETCS,
TaKk KakK OIIeHKa, MPOW3BE/ICHHAs HAa OCHOBE JaHHBIX

MuHucTepcTBa  BHYTPEHHHX  Jien  PecmyOmuku
benapycs u 3KCIIEPTHBIX IIPEIIOJIOKEHUH,
IIOKA3bIBAET HE3HAYUTEbHbIN 00BeM Takou
JesTenbHOCTH. BMmecte ¢ TeM, HE3aKOHHYIO

nesTenbHocTh B 00beM BBIT Britoumim 00JIBIIMHCTBO
crpaH, BHepuBInx CHC-2008.

O0Bem HeOpMaTbHOI SKOHOMMYECKOM
NESITEIbHOCTH  PACCYUTHIBACTCS KaK  CTOMMOCTH
o0beMa TPOU3BENIEHHOW MPOIYKIUU (paboT, ycuyr)
WHIWBUAIYATbHBIMA NPEIIPUHIMATEIIIMA u
(buszmuecknMu JIUTAMH, OCYIIECTBIISIOIUMHU
TPYAOBYIO JESATEIBHOCTh 06e3 (POpMaNbHBIX TPYIOBBIX
OTHOILIEHUN C HAHUMATEJIEM.
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OCHOBHBIM ~ WCTOYHHMKOM  uH(popMammu 0
YUCICHHOCTH WHIWBUAYAIBHBIX MPEIIPUHUMATEICH
SBJISIIOTCSL JTaHHBIE MUHHCTEpPCTBA IO HAJOTaM |
coopam  PecnyOomuku  benmapych.  UmcieHHOCTH
(u3MYeCKUX  JIUIl, OCYLIECTBISIOIIUX TPYAOBYIO
JIeSTeIbHOCTh oe3 (opManbHbIX TPYHOBBIX
OTHOWICHWH C HAHWMATelleM, OIpeneNseTcss Ha
OCHOBAaHMW JAaHHBIX BBIOOPOYHOTO 0OCIEIOBAHU
JIOMAIITHUX XO3SIHCTB.

PacueTsl 005eMOB HEHAOITIOJAEMOI PKOHOMHUKH B
Pecniy6mmke Benmapych HauMHANMH OCYIIECTBIATHCS C
1990 roma mo oTpacisM 3KOHOMUKH B COOTBETCTBHUH C
OO0111eCOI03HBIM KJ1acCU()UKATOPOM oTpaciei
HapojHoro xo3siictea (OKOHX).

Hayunas ¢ 2011 rona, B cBsi3u ¢ mepexoaoM Ha
Oo6merocynapctBenHbiit kaccudpukarop OKPB 005-
2006 «Buasl IKOHOMHYECKOH  JIEATEIBHOCTHY,
tdopmupoBarre BBII u HeHaOmomaeMoii SKOHOMHUKHI
OCYIIECTBIISICTCS 1O  BHAAM  JKOHOMHYECKOH
JIESITeTHbHOCTH.

IIpu mnepexome Ha CHC-2008 mnoBblIaeTcs
KayecTBO TIOCTPOCHHUS HAIMOHAJBHBIX CYETOB HE
TOMBKO 3a CcYeT Oojee  INMUPOKOTO  OXBara
9KOHOMHYECKHX OIepaluii, HO U 3a CYeT uX Oosee
JIETAILHOTO [IPEACTABICHUSI.

B CHC-2008 mno cpaBrenutro c¢ CHC-1993
HU3MCHCHBI IIOAXOAblI TAKXEC B 4YAaCTH KHaCCI/I(bI/IKaI_[I/II/I
MHCTUTYHHUOHAJIIBHBIX €AWHUI] U HUX TPYINIIUPOBKHU IIO

cexTopaM s3koHoMuKH. CornacHo onpenenenusm CHC-
2008, BCS SKOHOMHUKA CTpaHbl PAacCMaTPUBAETCS C
TOYKH 3pEHUs] MHCTUTYIIMOHAJIBHBIX €UHHUI, TIOATOMY
X pa3/ielleHHe Ha CEKTOphl MO3BOJISET NPOBOAUTH
MOHMTOPHHI HX OTHENbHBIX TIPYMNI, YTO JaeT
BO3MOKHOCTb OTJICJIBHO paccMaTpUBaTh KOPIOpalHty,
HaxXOoJSIIWecs] TIOJ KOHTPOJEM HEPE3UICHTOB U
UACHTH(OUIUPOBATE T€  YacTH  JKOHOMHYECKOH
JEATEIPHOCTH, Ha KOTOpPBIE BIMSIIOT — pEIICHHS,
MIpUHUMAaeMble 3a pyOekoMm, a Takke HaOmromaTh 3a
HUMH.

OTIMYATENFHOW YepTOW BCEX CYNICCTBYIOIINX
OLICHOK HEHaOJroJaeMol aKTHBHOCTH SBISIETCS HMX
SIBHOE 3aHWKEHHE. OTO CBSA3aHO C HAMEPEHHBIM
UCKaKEHWEM  PECHOHJEHTAaMH  HMHQpOpPMAIMU O
J0XO0JlaX, pacXofax M 3aHATOCTH, IOJIY4YCHHOW B
pe3yipTaTe ONPOCOB HACENEHHUS U IpecTaBUTENeH
Masoro Ow3Heca, a TaKkKe C MCHXOJOTHYECKHM
HEe)KeNlaHWeM OO0INecTBa AaHAIM3UPOBATH BBICOKHE
OIIEHKH Pa3MepOB TCHEBOH 3KOHOMHKH.

Js Havana paccMOTpUM OLICHKY
HEHAOJIONAaeMOM  SKOHOMHKH,  HPEICTABICHHYIO
HannonansHeM CTaTHCTHYECKUM KOMHTETOM

Pecniy6siuku Benapych.

ITokasaTean MPOM3BOACTBEHHON AEATEIBHOCTH
WHCTUTYHHNOHAJIBHBIX CEKTOPOB IMO3BOJIAIOT IMOJYYHUTH
MpejcTaBieHne 0 (PYHKIHOHUPOBAHUH 3KOHOMHKH B
ETIOM.
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Pucynox 1.1 — J[unamuxa mernesoii s5k0HOMUKU 6 chepe npoussoocmea 6 Pecnybnuxe benapycs (6 npoyenmax)
3a 2015-2018 ze.

IIpumedanue — Uctounuk: cocTtasiieH 1o [5;6].
B Pecniy6inke Benapych TeHeBoe mpon3BOJICTBO

W3HA4YalbHO 0a3upoBajoCh HAa  YJIOBIETBOPECHUHU
€CTECTBCHHBIX, TIOBCETHEBHBIX noTpeOHOCTEH
HaceneHus  (TPOW3BOACTBO  TOBApOB  HAPOIHOTO

noTpeOJIeHus], JIeTKasg MPOMBIIIJICHHOCTh, MHIIeBast
MPOMBIIIJICHHOCT M Jp.). DTO MPOU3BOJICTBO HOCHIIO
TEHEBOH XapakTep W3-3a TOTO, 4YTO pealbHBIE

UCTOYHHKH CBIPBSi, 000pPYJOBaHNUs, JONOIHUTEIbHBIC
IUIOINAAY ¥ MOLIHOCTH NMPOU3BOAUTENEH YACTUYHO HE
ObutM ydTeHBl. B oTpacin m Ha TpEeAnpHATHH POCT
IIpOU3BOACTBA obecreunBacs OKCTCHCHBHBIMH
(akTopaMH, a HE TOBBIIIEHUEM MTPOU3BOAUTEIFHOCTH
Tpyzna. Bce 3TO B HEKOTOPOH CTENEHU ONPENEIIAIOCh
TEM, YTO KOMaHAHO-aIMHWHUCTpPATUBHAA CHCTEMaA
CTpEMWIAcCh JIEMOHCTPUPOBATh YCHEIIHOCTh CBOEH
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MOJUTUKU U TPAKTUKU YIIPABJICHUSA, HO (1)aKTI/I"I€CKI/I
CKPbIBAJIOCH PCAJIbHOC MOJIOKECHUE €I B 9KOHOMUKE.
Tenenas OKOHOMUKA, pPa3BUBANOLIAsACId B TaKOM

BUAe, OKazamacb Oonee  3ddekTuBHOU, UeM
opunmanpHas, Omaromaps TOMY, UYTO  CBIPbE,
MaTepuaibl H  O0OpYJOBaHHME [UIS  «TCHEBBIX)

pabOTHHMKOB TpaKTHYeCKH OBUIH OecruraTHRIMH. X
MaTepHalIbHbIE pecypchl (DaKTHYECKH OIIa4HBajach
OOILIECTBOM, a CBEPXIOXOIBl HCIIONB30BAINCH JUIS
HOJIKyTIa YHHOBHUKOB.

TeneBoe MIPOU3BOACTBO B pamMKax
TOCYIapCTBEHHOTO  CEKTopa sBIsieTcs  Hambolee
NPUOBITIEHBIM TIPOU3BOJCTBOM JUISl TIPOW3BOJUTEIS,
MOCKOJIBKY OHO OCHOBAHO Ha YaCTHOM HCHOJIb30BaHUH

TOCYAapCTBEHHOH COOCTBEHHOCTM W IPUCBOCHHH
NIPOM3BEACHHBIX B HEH MNPOAYKTOB Tpyda C
UCIIONIb30BaHHEM CBIPbS u MaTepHalIoB,
COKOHOMJIEHHBIX B IIpolecce IPOU3BOICTBA.

Tak, B 2018 rogy mons HHD no cpaBHeHuro ¢
2015 romom mnoBeicuiaack Ha 0,8% oT BamoBoH
nobasneHHon ctouMocTH (manee - BJIC) n Ha 0,2% ot
BBII. B memom, TeHeBass SKOHOMHKA OCTaBallaCh Ha
cTabuinbpHO HHU3KOM ypoBHe ¢ 2016 roxma (3,0-3,1% ot
BBII) (pucynok 1.1).

Jlomns TeHeBOit PKOHOMUKH B cpepe MPOU3BOICTBA
B nporerTax ot BJIC u BBII 3HaunTensHO HIDKE, YeM
B cepe ycyr (pucyHok 1.2).
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Pucynok 1.2 — Jlunamuxa mernesoti skoHomuku 6 cghepe yciye 8 Pecnybnuxe Berapycey (8 npoyenmax)
3a 2015-2018 ee.
Ipumeuanue — Ucmounux: cocmasnet no [5,6].

PaccMoTpeB AMHAMHKY TEHEBOM HIKOHOMHKH B
chepe ycuyr (puUCyHOK 2.2), MOXHO 3aMETUThH
TeHacHImIo e€ cHkeHus, kak B BBII, Tak u 8 BJIC.
3HaYWTeIbHOE  CHIDKEHHE  pasMepa  TEHEBOH
9KOHOMHKHM Tpou3onuio cpazy mnocie 2015 roxa, B
2016 rony nonst HHD usmenumnace ¢ 17,3% 1o 15,3%
or BAC u ¢ 8,4% no 7,4% ot BBII. Tak, B 2018 roay
o cpaBHeHuto ¢ 2015 rogom, nons HHD cansunace Ha
2,2% ot BIC una 1,1% ot BBIL. B 2017 u 2018 roxy
ypoBerb HHD ocTtaercs Ha mpexxHeM YypOBHE,
n3MeHuBIuch Beero Ha 0,1% ot BJIC.

B 2020 romy DOKCmepThl  MPOTHO3UPYIOT
3HAYUTENBHBIA POCT TEHEBOW HSKOHOMHKH B cdepe
yenyr. Tak, Ipy BBEICHHH KapaHTHHA OOJBIIUHCTBO
KOMIIaHUH  cdepsl  ycIyr OYIOyT  BBIHYXKICHEI
MPUOCTAHOBUTH CBOIO AEATENbHOCTh. Il KpyMHBIX
KOMIIAaHUI NpeKpalleHue [eATeIbHOCTH O3HAdaeT
3HAUUTENbHBIE YOBITKM, HO 3TO e€me He camoe
cTpamHoe. Jlosg Mamoro w® cpeaHero Om3Heca
IpeKpameHne WX JIeSITeIbHOCTH O3Ha4aeT, dTo
npeanpusTie  (pakTHIecKHn OO0aHKPOTWIOCh U B

pe3yibTaTe MOSBISIOTCS HOBBIE 0e3paboTHbIE ¢
MHUHAMAaJbHBIMU INAaHCAaMHM HalTh paborty. Ta ixe
y4acTb IOCTHI'aeT M CaMO3aHSTHIX MNpEICTaBUTEIEH
chepsl yciyr. Tak, HaceneHHe HauyMHACT MCKATh
BO3MOXKHOCTH JUIst 3apaboTKa. YunTeiBas
OTpaHWYEHMs, CBS3aHHBIE C  KapaHTHHOM |
COXPaHAIOIIMUMCS CIIPOCOM Ha YCIYTY, COTPYIHHKH
HA4YMHAIOT MIPAaKTUKOBATh HE3aKOHHOE
MIPEOCTaBIEHHUE YCIIYT, 9YTO B CBOIO OYepeab MPUBOAUT
K POCTy TEHEBOH 3KOHOMHKHM M YBEIMYCHHIO PHUCKA
3apakeHnst COVID-19 BBuAy HEMOArOTOBICHHOCTH

MMOMEIICHHHA B COOTBETCTBHMM C CaHUTAPHBIMHU
TpeOOBaHUSIMHU.
VYeiyru, KOTOpBIE  OCYIISCTBISUIMCH — OHJIAMH

IIOCTEIIEHHO IPEAOCTABJIIIOTCS YHAJIEHHO, HO 3TO
IIPOUCXOJUT Xa0TUYHO U BHE KOHTPOJIA I'OCYJapCTBa, U
KAaK CJIEJICTBUE — HE3AKOHHO.

Takum 00pa3oM, NpU OTCYTCTBHH IMOJHOLIEHHOM
FOCYJAPCTBEHHOW IPOrpaMMbl 110  YIPAaBIEHUIO
KPU3UCHOHM CHTyaluell 3HauuTeIbHas 4acTh OW3Heca
MOXET [IEPEUTU B TEHEBOU CEKTOP.
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Pucynox 1.3 — Jfunamuxa menesoii sxonomuku 6 Pecnybnuxe benapyce (6 npoyenmax) 3a 2015-2018 ze.
Ipumeuanue — Ucmounux: cocmaenetn no [5,6].

Tak, npocienuB TUHAMUKY TCHEBOH 3KOHOMHUKH
0 BCEM BHJIaM SKOHOMHUYECKOW JAEATEIIbHOCTH MOXKHO
3aMETHUTh €€ TCHJCHIIMIO K CHIKCHHUIO (PUCYHOK 1.3).
Hanpumep, ¢ 2015 roma moms HHD wHauama
nocTeneHHo cHmkaThes ¢ 12,8% ot BAC uc 11,2% ot
BBII. B 2016 u 2017 romax cuTyamms OCTaBaJIach
cTabuiabpHO Ha oxmHakoBoM ypoBHe (12,0% ot BJC n
10,4% ot BBII). B 2018 romy »Tm X¢ 3HaA4YCHUS
coctraBmy 12,1% ot BJIC u 10,3% ot BBII.

HpeHOCTaBJ'IeHI/Ie KOMMYHAJIbHBIX, COIIUAJIbHBIX U
NEPCOHAIIbHBIX YCIIYT

31paBoOXpaHEHHE U [PEIOCTABICHHE COLMATBHBIX
yemyr

Ob6pasoBaHue
Omneparuy ¢ HeABMXUMBIM HMYIIECTBOM

TpancnopT u cBA3b

Topropiusi; peMOHT aBTOMOOHIICH, OBITOBBIX H3/ICIUN U
MPEIMETOB JIMYHOTO MOJIB30BAHUS

CTpOUTENBCTBO
O6pabaTeiBaronas IPOMBIILUICHHOCT

CenbCcKoe X03sIHCTBO, 0X0Ta U JIECHOE X03SHCTBO

HenabOnronaemasi 9KOHOMHKA MPOHUKAET B TE
cheppl  IEATENBHOCTH, TA€ IO  ECTECTBEHHBIM
MIPUYHHAM TPYAHO KOHTPOJIUPOBATH ONEPALMOHHYIO
wim  (UHAHCOBYIO  JeATeNIbHOCTB.  PaccmoTpeB
W3MEHEHHWsS  TEHEBOM  SKOHOMHKH B  cdepe
NIPOM3BOJACTBA W YCIyT, TepeifeM K aHalnuzy

yaenpHOTO Beca HHD mo BHoamM SKOHOMHYECKOU
JesTeabHOCTH (pUCYHOK 1.4 1 1.5).

36,3

40

Pucynok 1.4 — Yoenvuoiii 6ec Henabnro0aemoli SIKOHOMUKY 8 8a10601 000AGNEHHOU CMOUMOCHU 8 MEKYUUX
YeHax no euOaM IKOHOMUYECKol OesmenbHocmu no oyernke 3a 2011 200 (8 npoyenmax)
Ipumeuanue — Ucmounux: cobcmeennas paspabomra na ocHoge oannvix Beicmama.

Tak, 4TOOBI IOHSITH, KaK H3MEHMIIACH OIS
HeHaOroaeMoi SkoHOMUKU B 2018 romy mo Bumam

SKOHOMMYECKOH AESITeNbHOCTH, PACCMOTPUM TEHEBYIO
skoHOMHKY B 2011 rony. B otnuuue, ot 2018 rona B
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2011 roxy camas Bbicokast noist HHD npuxonutcs Ha
CeJNbCKOE XO3SIMCTBO, OXOTYy M JIECHOE XO3SIMCTBO.
Pa3BuTHe TeHEBBIX 3KOHOMHYECKHUX OTHOIICHUH B
CEJILCKOM  XO3siicTBe  ompenenser aedopmaruro
PBIHOYHOW CTPYKTYPBI M CHWXKaeT 3(PPEKTHBHOCTH
PBIHOYHOTO MEXaHW3Ma, CIIOCOOCTBYET pPa3BUTHIO
He1oOpOCOBECTHOH KOHKYPEHITHH.

IIpenocrasiieHre MPOYUX BUIOB YCIYT
311paBOOXpaHEHHE U COLUATIBHBIC YCIYyTH
Ob6pa3oBaHue

Onepaiyy ¢ HeJJBUKMMBIM HMYIIECTBOM

Wudopmanus u cBsi3b

Tpchr{opTHax JACATEIIbHOCTD, CKIIaAUPOBaHUE,
Io4TOBasd U KypbE€pCKas ACATCIIbHOCTb
OnroBas u PO3HUYHAas TOProBJisd; pPEMOHT aBTOMOOMIICH
1 MOTOLMKJIOB

CTpOUTENBCTBO
O06pabarbiBaroiasi NPOMBIIUICHHOCTh

Cenbckoe, JIECHOE U PRIOHOE X03HCTBO

Ha Bropom MecTte pacnonaraercs cdepa
orepanuil ¢ HEBIKUMBIM HMYIIECTBOM, U3MepsieMast
B 21,2% ot BJIC.

Ha tperheM MecTe — cdepa TOProBiIH, peMOHTA
aBTOMOOWMIICH, OBITOBBIX U3ICIUA ¥ TPEAMETOB
nuuHoro nonszoBanus (17,2% ot BJC).

70,1

10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

Pucynox 1.5 — Yoenvhulii 6ec Henadnr00aemou 3IKOHOMUKU 8 8410801 000ABNEHHOU CIOUMOCU 8 MEKYUIUX
YeHax no 8UOAM IKOHOMUYECKOU OeamenbHocmu no oyerke 3a 2018 200 (8 npoyenmax)
Ilpumeuanue — Ucmounuk: cocmagnern no [6].

CoryacHO TaHHBIM TIPUBEJICHHBIM B pUCYHKE 1.5,
camasi BbICOKas J10J11 HedopMmalbHOrO cekropa — B
cdepe onepanuii ¢ HeABIKUMBIM UMytiecTBoM (70,1%
or BJIC). B aroii chepe ouyeHb pacnpoCTpaHEHbBI
HedopmanbHBIE apeH/IHbIe OTHOIICHUS
(HeopMaNbHBINA ChEM KUITBS), KOT/Ia apeHI01aTelIeM
He TUIATUTCS TOJJOXO/IHBII HAJIOT, YTO B CBOIO OUYepellh
Y TTOPOXKJaeT OTPOMHBINA TEHEBOH PHIHOK.

Ha BTOpOM MecTe — celbCcKoe, JIECHOE M PhIOHOe
xozsiictBo  (31,9% or BJC). IlpuumnHamm Taxoi
BBICOKOH JOJM TEHEBOM HKOHOMHKH B CEIIHCKOM,
JIECHOM M PHIOHOM XO35HCTBE MOKET TTOCIYKHTh:

—  OrpaHMYeHHBIH HPUTOK CBOOO/IHBIX
PBIHOYHBIX aKTHBOB, OTCYTCTBHE (PHHAHCOBOTO PBIHKA
JUISl arpapHOTr0 CEKTOpa M OrpaHHYECHHbIE OIOPKETHBIE
pecypchl JUIS €r0 MOJIEPKKH;

— OJKeCTKass KOHKYPEHIMS TEHEBBIX areHTOB
PBIHOYHBIX ~ OTHOLIEHMH 3a TIpaBO  BIAJICHUSA
3eMeNbHBIMU pecypcamu CYIIECTBYIOIIUX
CEJIbCKOXO035IIICTBEHHBIX OpPraHU3alui U IPEATIPUITUI,
o0Jaiaronmx cyabbIM TIPOM3BO/ICTBEHHBIM
MOTEHIHAJIOM;

— HaJM4Me CKPBITOrO €CTECTBEHHOro 000poTa,
yepe3  KOTOPBI  OCYIIECTBISIETCS ~ BTOPUYHOE
nepepacnpezeneHne MaTepUalIbHBIX pecypcoB
MOCPE/ICTBOM HE3aKOHHBIX CIIEIIOK;

— CTENeHb CTaTUCTUYECKUX HCKaKEHHH, OjHa
4acTh KOTOPBIX HOCHT OOBEKTHUBHBIM Xapakrep |

CBsI3aHA C IPUHATHIM METO/IOM ydeTa 3aTpaT, a Apyras
MIPECTABIISAET coboii IIpeJHAMEPEHHYIO
Ne3UH(GOPMAIIMI0 € LEeNbI0 YKIOHEHHS OT YIUIATHI
HAJIOTOB MJIM COKPBITHS XUIIECHUH;

— OTCYTCTBHE TMPOAYMaHHOH JOJTOCPOYHOI
rOCyTapCTBCHHOM MOJUTUKH B obOnactu
HAJIOTOOOJIOKCHUSI W KPEIUTOBAHHUS  CEIBCKOTO
XO03SHCTBA.

Ha tperprem MecTe — TpeIOCTaBICHHE IMPOYHX
yeayr (30,4% ot BJC). B sty chepy Bxomut
MPOU3BOJICTBO W PACIpPOCTPAHCHHE HAPKOTHUKOB,
OpYKHsI, IPOCTUTYLIUS, KOHTpAOaHaa U T.1.

Tak, B Apyrux cdepax AEATSILHOCTH, TAKHX KaK
chepa ONTOBOW W PO3HUYHON TOPTOBIM W PEMOHT
apromobmier u wmoromukioB (10,9% ot BHIC)
pactipocTpaHeHBI He3apeTUCTPUPOBAHHBIC
MPOU3BOJICTBA,  HANPUMEpP  aBTOMACTEpCKHE U
OIMHOMOHTaX, YTO W IOPOXKIAeT B CBOKO OYEPEIb
He(OPMAITBHYIO 3aHATOCTh, & B PO3HUYHOW U ONITOBOH
TOPIOBJIE - HE3aPETUCTPUPOBAHHAS MPOJIaXka TOBAPOB
U HEJCTANbHBIA COBIT MaTepHalbHBIX pecypcoB. B
ctpoutensctBe  (8,5% ot BJIC) HeodpunmanibHo
HCIONB3YETCSI TPYA MHUTPAHTOB, 4YTO OOBSICHSIET
BBICOKYIO JIOJIFO TCHEBBIX OIEpAIMii B 3TOM CEKTOPE.

B 2018 roay, kak u ceMb JIeT Ha3aJ camasi HU3Kas
momt  HHD  coxpamsercs B Takux  cdepax
SKOHOMHYECKOH JIEATENHHOCTH KaK 0O0pabaThIBaromas
npomsbiuieHHOCTE (2,4% ot BJIC), obOpa3oBanue
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(2,1% ot BJC), 3mpaBoOXpaHEHHME U COLMAJIbHBIE
yenyru (0,5% ot BJC).
I'ocynapcTBO MOXET CHU3UThH pa3Mepbl TEHEBOU

B rtabmmme 1.1  oTpakeHBI  BO3MOXKHBIE
MOCTIEICTBUS COXPaHEeHHUsI CYILIECTBYOILEH
SKOHOMHUYECKOH CUCTEMBI (TIOCTENEHHOE CHUXEHUE

O9KOHOMHUKM 32 CYET ONTHMH3alMM HaJOrOBOM  TEMIIOB pocTa OOBEMHBIX IMOKa3zaTeleH, CTarHalus U
Harpy3Kd WM T[OBbIEHUS  A3(P(EeKTUBHOCTH  yBeNIMYEHHE TEMIIOB CIllafa, HaOIoJaeMble 110
NPOM3BOJCTBa OOmecTBeHHBIX Onar. [locneanee — oTAeNbHBIM BHIAM JeATENBHOCTH). Tak, macmTaObl
MOXET OBITh JOCTHTHYTO 33 CUYET CHIJKGHHS  TEHEBOI SKOHOMHKH OCTaHYTCS MPUMEPHO Ha yPOBHE
KOPPYIIIHOHHBIX OTHOIIICHHUH. 2000-2012 rozos (30-35% BBII).
Ta6muma 1.1
BapuanTbl noka3arteJeii TeHeBoii YkoHOMIKH B Pecny6iuke Beaapyep ma 2010-2020r rr.
2010 | 2011 | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2020
Iokasatens
. . T. . . . . T. T.
Hwxwasis rparmnna TeHeBoro BBIT, 8%
K opurmansHoMy BBIT: 15 14 17 19 33 37 41 36 37
BApUAHT NECCUMUCTHIECKHI
BapHUaHT CEePeIMHHBIN 15 14 14 19 25 27 28 30 34
CoBokymnHasi otieHka TeHeBoro BBII,
B % Kk oumansHoMy BBIT: 34,5 34 355 36 37 49 56 43 45
BapUaHT NECCUMUCTUYECKHUI
BapPHAHT CEPETMHHBIN 345 34 355 36 36 37 38 40 41
IIpumeuanue — Ucrounuk: [2, c.23].
Cpean  3apyOexxHbIX  yu€HBIX  HauOojiee  aBTOPOM ObLI MPUMEHEH KOMOMHUPOBAaHHBIH MOAXOM,

MPU3HAHHBIM aBTOPUTETOM B BOIPOCAX ONpPEIEICHUS
MacmTaboB TEHEBOH 3KOHOMHKH siBiuserca .
[Tnaiinep. 3acmykuBaeT BHUMAHHUS €TO HCCIICAOBAHUE
o 36 ctpanam EBpocoro3a, nposeaennoe B 2017 roxy.
B nanHo# pabore mis u3ydeHus (GpakTOpPOB M IPYTHX
aCTIeKTOB TCHEBOW SKOHOMHYECKOH JAEATEIbHOCTH

BKIIIOYAIONMH B ce0sl SKOHOMETPUYECKHH aHalIu3
OOIIMPHBIX CTATUCTUYECKUX JAHHBIX U aHAJIM3
Pe3yIIbTaTOB IPOBEACHHBIX ONPOCOB. B paboTe Tarke
aHAIM3UPYETCs He3aAeKIapupoBaHHOe pabouee BpeMs
K HOpMaJbHOMY pabodeMy BpeMeHH H 00beM
arperupOBaHHON CKPHITOH 3apa0OTHOMH IIIaTHI.

Tabmuna 1.2
He3anekapupoBanHoe paGouee BpeMs B IPOIIEHTaX K HOPMAJILHOMY padodeMy BpeMeHH
Jpy3bs / Cpenusist Cpenss
POICTBEHHHK | HECKIAPUPOBAHH | o 0o Hopmaibnas Hesanexnapuposans
Y Ha TEHEBOM | ast paboyast Heelst ICKIIapHp cpenHss bIE Yachl KaK J0J1s1
Crpana ast pabouast
PBIHKE TpyJla | PECIIOHAEHTOB C IIPOJOJDKUTEIBHOC OOBIYHBIX YacOB (B
HezieJIs1 JUIsl BCEero .
(B TEHEBBIM OITHITOM Th pabodeil HeJien TIPOIICHTAX)
HaceJIeHHs
TIPOIICHTAX) paboTHI
1 2 1*2=3 4 3/4=5
HpOHOPLHSI YacoB B HEJICIIIO YacoB B HEIEIIO YacoB B HEIEIIIO HPONOPLHSI
B""“:Pyc 29 235 6,82 39,8 17,1
OcToHus 26 224 5,82 38,9 15,0
JlatBust 36 20,3 7,31 391 18,7
Jlutea 29 16,8 4,87 38,1 128
[osbia 33 255 8,42 40,7 20,7
Hlsermst 8 18,9 151 36,3 4,2

[Ipumeuanue — Mctounuk: cocrasiieH 1o [7].

JanHbie 0 paboTe Apy3eli W pOICTBEHHUKOB Ha
TEHEBOM pBIHKE Tpylda W CpEAHEM HEICITHHOM
He3aJeKJIapUPOBAHHOM pPaboueM BpPEMEHH B3SATHI W3
ompoca, B TO BpeMs Kak HOPMAJIbHOE CpelnHee
HezZlenbHOe pabouee BpeMsi B3SATO W3 0a3bl JTaHHBIX
EBpocrata 3a 2014 rox. Ilpm oTCcyTCTBHMH Takux
JIaHHBIX TI0 benapycu oHO Oblia OlIEHEHO KaK CpeIHee
3HAYCHUE HOPMAJIBHOTO pab0overo BPEMEHH IS CTpaH
LentpansHoit 1 Bocrounoit EBpomnbl, BXoasmux B
Esponetickuii Coro3.

AHanuzupys MpHUBEJeHHYI0 Tabnuiry 1.2 MOXXHO
3aMeTHTh, 4TO B bemapycw He3agekiapupoBaHHOE
pabouee Bpems coctaBimser 17,1 dWacoB, dUTO
CpaBHHUTENIHHO HMXe, 4yeM B [lomble, rae 3TOT ke
nokasarenb cocrasiaser 20,7. Tlpu 3ToM, cambIid
HU3KUH nokazatenb y [lIBenuu — 4,2 gaca, 9T0 MOXHO
O0OBSCHUTH KOJMYECTBOM YaCOB HOPMAIILHOW CpemHei
MPOJOJDKUTEIBHOCTH pabodeit Hemenmn — 36,3 yaca,
Torna kak B benapycu oH oTHOCHTENBHO BBICOK — 39,8
yaca.
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Tabnuna 1.3
O0beM arperupoBaHHOI TeHeBOM 3apadoTHOI IIaThl B npoueHTax k BBIT; 2015 rox
Cpennsist mouacoast Macrra0bl Cremnenb
HesanexnapupoBaHHbIe .
Ctpana HE3asBJICHHAS TEHEBOTO BBII TEHEBOU
Yackl pabOTHI B IoJ
3apaboTHas rIata pBIHKA 3ansitoctd BBIT
1 2 1*2=3 4 3/4=5
MIJUTMOH 4acoB €Bpo MIULIMOH €BPO MIUIHOH. | - rponopuus (B
€BpO MIPOLICHTAX)
Benapycb 2,50 7,51 18,816 57,300 32,8
OcToHus 289 10,37 2,993 19,963 150
JlatBust 549 5,03 2,760 23,581 117
Jlutea 540 6,62 3,570 36,444 98
Tonpma 11,95 8,24 98,554 410,845 24,0
[Iserus 541 13,32 7,212 430,635 17

IIpumeuanue — Mcrounuk: cocTtasieH mo [7].

JlaHHBIE 10 YacTOTE€ TEHEBBIX OIEpaLuii,
CpeoHeMy  He3aJCKIapUPOBAHHOMY  HEICIEHOMY
BpPEMEHM U CpEeHEN HE3aJeKIapupOBaHHON IOYacOBOM
3apabOTHOM IJIaTe B3ATHI M3 OMPOCA, B TO BpeMs Kak
JAaHHBIC 0 HaceJeHWH B Bo3pacte 18-74 mer u BBII B
TEKyIUX IIEHAX B3ATHI U3 0a3bl JaHHBIX EBpocTaTa 3a
2014 rox.

CornacHO MPHUBEICHHBIM JaHHBIM B Tabmuie 1.3
camasi BBICOKasl 3aHATOCTh MPUXOAUT Ha bemapychk -
32,8%. B Tlonplmie TOXE OOCTAaTOYHO BBICOKHI
MPOIICHT CTEIICHH TCHEBOI 3aHaTOoCTH — 24,7%.

B o0omx cny4asx 3HAYUTENBHBIN IPOIECHT
TEHEBOHM 3aHATOCTU CBS3aH C OOJBIIMM MacIITaboB
TeHeBOro peiHKa. Tak, B bemapycu oH cocraBiser
18,816 mmumon eBpo, B [lomemre — 98,554 Mummmon
eBpo. [lns cpaBHEHUs, 3TOT ke nokaszareins B [lIBenun
— 7,212 MUIIMOH €BpO, NMPHU 3TOM CTENEHb TEHEBOM
3aHATOCTH camas Hu3Kas — 1,7%.

50
445
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40
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20
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benapyco DcToHUS JIutBa

PesynbraTsl nccnenoBanus, nposeaeHHoro MB®,
MTOKA3BIBAIOT, YTO MAaCIITA0bl TEHEBOW SKOHOMHKH B
Pecnyommmke Benapycek u ctpanax CHI' Bemmie, yem B
EC u npyrux pa3BHUTBHIX CTpaHaX.

CornacHo oT4eTy MeXIyHapOIHOTO BATFOTHOTO
¢donma o TeHeBOW SKOHOMHKE, B benmapycu ypoBeHb
TEeHEBOHM »KOHOMHUKH 3a mepuoa ¢ 1991 mo 2017 rox
coctaBunl B cpendem 44,52% BBII, a 3a mocnenuuit
ortuetHbI# epuox (2017 rox) — 32,37 % [3].

HccnenoBanue, mnposeaeHHoe MB®, 0Obuio
OCHOBaHO Ha TpPeX METOJax OLEHKHU YpOBHS TEHEBOM
SKOHOMMYECKON aKTUBHOCTH. MuMHYECKas MOZAEIb
(MHOXKECTBCHHBIC ~ MHIUKATOPHl ~ MHO>KECTBEHHBIX
MIPUYHH) YIUTHIBACT CICIYIONINE (PaKTOPEI, BIUSIIOIINE
HAa YPOBEHb TCHEBOI SKOHOMHKH CTpaHBI: 1) ypoBeHB
0e3paboTHIEI W  TPOICHTHAS  IONI  3aHATOTO
HaceleHus; 2)  3aKOHOHATeNbCTBO W JIOJNA
rOCyJJapCTBEHHOTO CEKTOpa; 3) JeHeKHas Macca U
MPO3PavyHOCTh TOPrOBIIN; 4) HAJIOroBast CBOOO/a.

PMM
= MIMIC

25,1
15,4 16,3
ITonpmma IIBerus

Pucynox 1.6 — Pazmep menesoli 3KOHOMUKU C UCTIONB308AHUEM MEMOOA CONOCMABNEHUSA NPOSHOZHBIX CPEOHUX
eenuyun 3a 1991-2015 22. (6 npoyenmax)
Tlpumeuanue — Ucmounuk: cocmaenen no [7].
Bmopoii memoo, ucnonvzyemulii 0115 OyeHKU yPosHs MeHeBOU IKOHOMUYECKOU akmuerHocmu 6 Pecnyonuxe
benapycw, ocnosan na cnpoce 0enedcrozo pvinka.
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Tperuit Mmeton mnpencrasiaser moxens I[IMM
(npenckaszarenbHasi O3HayaeT COOTBETCTBHE). Jloms
TeHeBol skoHOMUKH B benapycu B 2017 rogy nocturna
ypoBHs 33,7 % BBIL

CJ'ICIIyeT OTMCTUTD, qToO Ppe3yJIbTaThl
HCCIICOOBAaHUA, IMPpOBEACHHOT'O Ha OCHOBEC
HMHUTAIMOHHOMN MOJCIH, IIOKa3bIBAKOT, YTO JOJIA

TEHEBOM HSKOHOMHYCCKOM IESITCIHPHOCTH COCTaBHIIA
445 %. DTo TMO3BOMSET CAEIATh BBIBOL O
CYIIECTBEHHOH pa3HUIC [NaHHBIX, MOIYYEHHBIX
pasHpIMH MeTomamu. s cpaBHeHUs, Uit JINTBBI 3TH
mokazaTeiau coctaBuiau 9,8 % u 25,2% ot BBII, mis
Tlonemm — 15,4% u 25,1%, a ana lIseunn — 3,0% u
16,3% COOTBETCTBEHHO.

CornacHo WuCCleIOBaHM0O, TpoBeneHHOro .
[Tuaiinepom u JI. Meaunoii B 2018 rony, B benapycu
TEHEBasi SKOHOMHUKA UMEET TEHICHIIUIO K CHILDKEHHIO.
CaMblii BBICOKHH MK TEHEBOH SKOHOMUKH ObLI B 2005

rony — 44,67% ot BBII, ¢ 3Toro roga npoucxoaur
MOCTETIEHHOEe YyMeHblIeHne u yxke B 2012 rony
cocraBiger 32,29% or BBII. B 2013-2014 romax
MIPOUCXOUT HE3HAYUTENbHOE oIHsATHE Ha 1,78 1 1,83
MPOLIEHTHBIX TYHKTa, COCTaBUB COOTBETCTBEHHO —
34,07% wu 34,12% ot BBIL. B 2015 romy o0bem
TEHEBOM AKOHOMHUKH cocTaBui 32,37% ot BBII. [7]
Urak, mepeiinemM K COOCTBEHHOH OIICHKE TEHEBOU
SKOHOMHKH TIpW Tmomomu Meroma ['yrmana [3].
PaccunTaem 06bEM TeHEBOI S5KOHOMUKH B bemapycu 3a
nepront 1995-2020 romoB ¢ MOMOIIBIO (POPMYIIBL:

SUBi = GDPi * (1-H)/f, (1)

rane SUB — TeHeBas SKOHOMHKA B HM3y4acMBIH
TIEPHOT;

GDP - odummansHo wucuucienssiii BBII B
paccMaTpUBaeMbIil IEPHOT;

f = (DD/M1)i/(DD/M1)90 = (DD/M1)95/(DD/M1)90,

DD/M1=1/(1+C/DD), )

M1=C+DD,

rae DD — femno3utsl 70 BOCTPpeOOBaHUs Ha CYETaX
B OaHKax;

C — IeHeXHBIE CPElNCTBa B HAIMYHO-IICHEKHOM
obopore 3a npenenaMu 0AaHKOB,

M1 — coBOkymHBIH O00BEM HAIHOHAIBHOW
JIEHE)KHOM MacCHI.

SUB1995=28068,4 wupn. p.,
npoueHTax k BBII.

wm 23,1 B

SUB2000=2107,8 wupa. p., wm 23,1 B
npoueHTax k BBII

SUB2005=21823,5 wmapa. p., wm 33,5 B
npoueHTax k BBII

SUB2009=136789,8 wupa. p., wmm 25,0 B
npoueHTax k BBII.

SUB2014=187015,2 wupa. p., wmm 20,8 B
npoueHTax k BBII.

SUB2016=22306,7 wmaH. p., wmm 23,5 B
npoueHTax k BBII.

SUB2019=34526,3 wmmH. p., wm 26,2 B
npoueHTax k BBII

SUB2020=29984,9 w™mH. p., wm 28,9 B

npoueHTax k BBII.

C 2016 roma moxkazarenu BBII, DD u Ml
HCUHUCIIAIOTCS B MIJUIMOHaX pyoOuseil. Tak, paccuutas
00BeM TEHEBOH SKOHOMHKH MOHETApPHBIM METOIOM,
otMmeuaeM ¢ 2014 roga TeHAEHUUIO K €€ yBEIHYEHUIO.
ITuk TeHeBoOl sKOHOMUKHU Tpuxoautcs Ha 2005 rog —
33,5% x BBII, camble Hu3KHE pa3Mepbl TEHEBOH
9KOHOMHUKHU Habmomatorcs B 2014 romy — 20,8% x
BBII. B 2020 romy o0beM TEHEBOW 3KOHOMHUKH
cocraBmseT 28,9% x BBII. DkcnepTsl mporHO3upyoT
pocT MacmTabOB TEHEBOH JKOHOMHUKH B CBS3H C
MaHASMHUEH ¥ TTPOUCXOSAIINM HEPTSIHBIM KPU3UCOM B

MHpE.
Takum o0Opa3om, OICHKa TEHEBOW YKOHOMHUKU B
PecniyOnuke benapych JIOCTaTO4YHO CUJIBHO

OTJIMYACTCA B pa3JIMYHBIX UCCICAOBAHUAX, YTO CBA3aHO

C  HaMEpPEHHBIM  HCKOKEHHEM  PEeCIOHJIEHTaMH
nHPOpPMALIUK O [OXOIaX, pacxoJax W 3aHATOCTH,
MONyYCHHON B pE3yJbTaTe OIPOCOB HACEICHUS U
npencraButeneit mManoro OmsHeca. CHC He maer
JOCTaTOYHO  JOCTOBEPHOM  OIGHKH  MacimTaboB
TEHEBOM JPKOHOMHUKH M B OCHOBHOM OHH 3aHMKEHBI.
JIyis mony4eHus JTOCTOBEPHBIX OIICHOK HEOOXOIMMO
COBEpIICHCTBOBATh HE TOJBKO  CTAaTHCTUYECKUE
METOJIbl, HO W TPOBOJMTH OIEHKH HEHAOII0JIaeMOii
JIESITENIbHOCTH HE3aBUCUMBIMU DKCIIEPTAMHU.
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AHHOTa].ll/IH. B cratbe PacCMOTPEHBI MMOAXOJbI K TEXHUKO-PKOHOMHYECKOM OIICHKE TMCPCHEKTUBHOCTHU
OCBOCHHSI Ta30KOHIICHCATHBIX MECTOPOXKACHHMH KacnuiickoM menbde. [IpoBeneH aHanu3 pa3BUTHS Ta30BOTO
cekTopa B AsepOaiimkane, ¢ yd4eToM pa3padaThIBacMbIX HOBBIX KPYIHBIX MOPCKHX MECTOPOKICHWH, W
pCalin3yCeMbIX MCKAYHAPOAHBIX I'A30BbIX IIPOCKTOB. AHaJ'IPISPIpOBaHLI NEPCIICKTUBBI PA3BUTUA ra30BOH OTpacjii B
A3ep6a1>'11(>1<aHe, 1 OCHOBHBIC (I)aKTOpLI TIOJIOKUTCIIBHO UJIM OTPHUIATCIBHO BHHSIIOH.[I/II;‘I Ha 9TOT PBIHOK.

Abstract. The article discusses approaches to the technical and economic assessment of the prospects for the
development of gas condensate deposits on the Caspian shelf. The analysis of the development of the gas sector
in Azerbaijan, taking into account the developed new large offshore fields, and ongoing international gas projects.
The prospects for the development of the gas industry in Azerbaijan have been analyzed, and the main factors

positively or negatively affecting this market.
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HedTs u ra3 sensercs IeHHeimee 00ratcTBo
AszepOaiimkana, Hedrerazossiii otpacias (HI'O) mator
6omnee 80% BaIOTHBIX MOCTYIUICHWHA B TOCyNapCTBa,
MO3BOJISIIOT MMETh ITOJIOKUTENIFHOE BHEIIHETOProBOE
calbJ10, MOJIEPXKUBATh KypC HallMOHAIBHOMN BAJIIOTHI.
B ceromHsAmHMX HENPOCTHIX YCIOBHAX HAIEXKIbl Ha
PHIBOK B JKOHOMHYECKOM  DPa3BHUTHH, Ha
MOJICPHU3AIMI0 SKOHOMHUKH, HA MOABEM >KU3HEHHOTO
YpOBHS HAaceJeHWs TaK WIM WHade CBS3aHbl C
ycHemHbIMu pesynbratamu aesrenbHoctd HI'K kak
BHYTpHU CTpaHbl, TaK U Ha MHUPOBBIX pbIHKaXx. B aToi
CBSA3M BaXKHO 3HATh, KaK CO3MAETCSI M Pa3BUBACTCS
COBpPEMEHHAas ra3oBas MPOMBIIIJIEHHOCTh
Azepbaitmkxanckoit Pecrry6muku (AP), 3a cuer uero
MPOUCXOIUT CTPEMHUTEIFHOE MOBBIIICHHE €0 POJH B
HSKOHOMHKE U TOIUIMBHO-YHEPTETHUECKOM KOMILIEKCE
(T9K) crpamer. HI'O obecrneynBarOT TOILTUBHO-
9HEPreTHYecKUX MNOTpeOHOCTeH  pecrnyOnukn U
SBISIIOTCSL  IJIABHBIM ~ HCTOYHUKOM  BaJIOTHBIX
nocryminennii. CocrosiHue HedTerazoBoro cexropa B
3HAUUTENILHOW Mepe ONpelessseT POCT IKOHOMUKH AP
U JOKOMOTHBOM JpyTHX OTpacied HapOoAHOIO
XO035IHCTBO cTpans [ 1-4].

lazoBeiii cextop (I'C) AsepOaiimkana wumeer
CPaBHHUTENHPHO C  HE(TIHOH  MIPOMBINUICHHOCTH
HEeOOJIBIIYI0 HCTOPHIO PAa3BUTHS. | TaBHBIMH Ta30BBIMHU
MECTOPOXXKICHHSMH Ha CyIIe OTKPBITHE eme B

coBeTckHMe Toxbl. [lepBOro SIBHO BBIPAKEHHOTO
razokoHaeHcatHoe Mectopoxnenue (I'KM) TI'apagar
HaudoJiock paspabareiBateesi ¢ 1935 r., ¢ 1986 .
UCIIOJIb3YeTCsT He sl J00bYM, a B KayecTBe
MMOJI3EMHOTO XpaHEHUs Tra3a (C eMKOCThIO 2,3 MIpI
Ky0. Mra3a, IUIaHUPYyeTCcs JOBECTH 5 Mipa KyO. m). B
cpemuae XX Beka, ['KM IMapamar namo 20 mupn kyo0.
M ra3za. B AzepOaiimkane cymecTtByeT Kammasckockoe
XpaHWIHUIE Ta3za, KOTOPOE TaKke OCHOBAaHO Ha
BEINICANIIEM U3  OKCIUTyaTallid  MECTOPOKICHUU
Kanmmas (mauanmo pazpaborku 1955 r1.), a Takxke
paspabarbiBaniack MectopoxxaeHue [ropraH-3ups. B
koHIEe 60-x romoB XX Beka ObITa OTKPBITO PAL
kpynubix 'KM B Kacniuiickom mope — baxap (1968 r.),
Bymna-mope (1975 1.) 1 1p., 9TO NPUBENO YBEIUUSHUS
no6sram raza B AP: 1980 r. - 15,1 mupa. ky6. m; 1982
r. - 15 mipa. ky6. M; 1997 r. — 6,0 murpz. ky0. M. B ot
rozbl I0OBIBAEMBIH B MOPCKOM IIeib(e MOmyTHBIH —
HeTSHOM ra3 W3-3a OTCYTCTBHS COOTBETCTBYIOIIEH
TEXHOJIOTHH OOJIBIIIEH 4acThIO BBIOpAChIBAJICS B BO3ILYX
[5, 6, 31, 32, 36].

C yueroM pocta ra3of00bdu B AsepOaiimkane,
IUTAHUPYETCs CO3MaTh U XpaHeHus eme 5-10 mupa.
Ky0. M ra3a, Ha 6a3e razoBoro MectopoxxaeHus "baxap"
MoxeT ObITh TocTpoeHo HoBoe [IXI'. Ceromust B nBa
XTI («apamar» u «Kammac») umeror o0mIyio
MOMIHOCTH 1,3 Mapa. ky0. m raza [35].
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3a cuer paspabotku B HOxHo-Kacnmiickom
HedrerazonocHoM HoBoro Ooka I'KM Asepu-Uupar-
INonanum (HedreraszoBsle MecTopoxaeHus ['oHenum
65110 OTKpBITO B 1981 1, Unpar - B 1985 1. 1 Asepu - B
1987 r.; Aszepu, Ywmparu I'ronenum (AUl') - 3
MECTOPOXKICHUs ObUTM 00beuHeHb! B 1 Oitok) u 11lax-
Hermz  (otkpeito B 1999 1) A3sepbaiimkan
MPEBPATHIICS MOIIHOIO Ia30100BIBAIOIIYI0 CTPaHy, HE
TOIBKO HM3MEHWJI CHTyalllH IO Ta30CHAOKCHUIO U
YIOBIIETBOPEHUIO pacTymux noTpeOHOCTEH
pecIyOIiKy B IPUPOJHOM Ta3e U 32 KOPOTKHH CPOK HE
TOMBKO W30aBWICA OT HMMIIOpTa Tra3a (KOTOPBIH
JOXOAWJI 10 5 MipA. KyO. M B roja), HO M crajga
9KCIOPTEPOM TPHUPOAHOTO rasza. AsepOaiipkaHCKHI
I'C npeBparuiicsi B BAXXHYIO OTPaciib, TTociie HeTSHOM,
Hayajmach  HOBBI  3Tanm  Hedrera3oqoObluu U
HeTera3oXMMHUECKOH MpoMbIuIeHHOCTH [7, 31, 32].

B AszepOaiimxane OCHOBHasl 4acTb IIPUPOIHOTO
rasa W Ta30BOro KOHHAeHcaT (TMOMyTHBIH ¢ He(ThIO)
JIOObIBaeTCS Ha MECTOPOKACHHAX PACIIOJIOKECHHBIX B
Kacnuiickom mensde. 3amacel mpupoaHoro rasa (80%)
U razoBoro KoszeHcara (93%) B pecmy0Onmke, Taxke
HaXOJWTCSI B MOPCKUX MECTOPOKACHHSAX.

OTxpeiTre HOBBIX menbhoBerx KM Ilax-/lenns,
Kapabax, AUI" u oOieil HHTEpec eBpONeicKuX cTpaH
K KacIHMHCKOMY YTJIEBOJOPOJHOMY CBIPBIO CO37all
peanbHble MEpCHeKTUBbl pa3Butusi B AP u coznman B
KOpHE HOByI0 curyauuio B Kacnuiickom peruone.
W3menunace otHomenne k I'C u mOsABUIOCH
BO3MOXXHOCTb TIPUBIICUYCHUS HWHOCTPaHHBIX
MCTOYHHMKOB KPEJUTOBAHHS MHBECTHIIOHHBIX CPEACTB
[31-34].

TomoBoit 00beM HOOBMH TPUPOAHOTO Ta3a B AP
3a nocaenuuil 10 net umen quHamuky pocra, ot 17,7
mipa. ky6. M (B 2011 r.), mo 35,6 mipa. xy6. m (B 2019
r.), ad Ha 2020 r. coctauser 38,0 mapa. ky6. m. Ilo
OIIGHKaM MEXIyHapOIHBIX 3KCIIEPTOB IEPCHEKTHB
J00BIYM B pecmybimke coctaButh 50 Mipa. kyd. M K

2025 roxy.
Hannume BBISIBIEHHBIX U pa3pabaThIBaeMBIX
coOcTBeHHBIX  KpymHbIX KM "[Maxxexuns",

HapalliBaHUE IIOCTaBOK Ta3a MOXET O0eCIeUnuTh
pa3paborka mecropoxaeHuii "Aomepon", "llladar-
Acuman", "Kapabax" um "Ymun" u gp. CormacHo
OIICHKaM HeaHTa)XHPOBaHHBIX HaOIrOmaTeNeH, 3amachel
ra3a B Azep0aiipkaHe cocTtaBisieT okojo ot 1,2 mo 1,4
TPWUTHOHA KyO. M., a IIPOTHO3HBIE 3a1aCchl TPUPOTHOTO
raza omnesmBaroT B 1,5-7,0 TpmH Ky0. M,
MPEUMYIIECTBEHHO B 3alaJHOM YacTH CTpaHBI, Ha
menbhe Kacnuiickoro mops. Hanuune neidcTByrommx
U CTPOSIIMX Tra30TPAaHCIOPTHBIX TPyOOIPOBOAOB
IOT'K, TANAP u TAP, umeeT BO3MOXHOCTH CTaTh
YacThIO ra3omnpoBojia «Nabucco» [8-18].
CornacHo NOCIeJHUM KOHTPAKTaM ¢ MEXKAyHApOJHBIM
KOHCOPLIUYMOM, 00pa3oBaHHBIM KPYITHBIMA
HedrerazoBeiMM KoMmnaHusiMu Mupa, B 2017 romy
CyMMapHble MHBECTHLIMH B pa3paboTKy Osoka AUI
cocraBmm 30 mipa momn. CIIA. BP coBmectHo ¢
napTHepamMu 1o pa3paboTke HedTera3zoBbIxX
Mmectopoxxaernit AUI™ n [lax-J[eHn3 MHBECTUPOBAT 32
6onee wem 20 et meaTenpHOCTH B A3sepOaimpxaHe
nHBecTHpOBaa 6oee 58 mupa. posui. CIIA [37, 38].
IIpencraBisercss UHTEpEC U3Yy4EHUS 3KOHOMUYECKOH
s dexruBHOCTH pazpabaTteiBaeMbix ['KM Ta3oBoro

cekropa B TOK AsepOaiiikana. B3risiiel HEKOTOPBIX
9KCEpPTOB 0  HEIPPEKTHBHOCTH  JalbHEHIIEro
pasBuTHs  10OBIYM  a3zepOalijKaHCKOrO Trasa u
OTCYTCTBUSI IOCTATOYHOI! 3amachl rasa Jyisi peajiu3anu
KPYIHBIX IPOEKTOB O TOCTaBke rasa B EBpomy
OKa3aJIMCh OIIMOOYHBIMU, HE YYUTHIBAI (PaKTUYECKUE
ycnexu B OONAaCTH TEOJIOTOPA3BEINOYHBIX paboT H
BBISIBJICHHBIX HOBBIX KpynHbIX ['KM B Teppuropuu
Azep0aiikana U ero IepCIeKTHBEI.

PasButne moOpam  a3epOaifykaHCKOTO — Tasa
SIBISICTCS ~ BBHICOKOD(P(EKTHBHRIM ©  oOiajgaer
HEeo0X0qUMOi [PHUBJIEKATEIEHOCTHIO TSt

€BpOIEHCKUX WHBECTOPOB M mOTpedureneit [5, 6].
HcTouHMKaMu  BIOKEHMHM  peajM3allud  Ta30BbIX
NIPOEKTOB SIBIAETCS B OCHOBHOM HHOCTPaHHBIE
HMHBECTOPBI, /Ul MPUBJICUCHHUS KOTOPBIX MpearaeTcs
MIPUHIUIHATBHBII MEXaHU3M 9KOHOMHUYECKUX
B3aMMOOTHOIIEHUN  MeXIy  TOCyAapcTBOM U
HWHBECTOPOM CBSI3aHHOH 00eCTICUSHHS SHEPTETHICCKOM
0e3omacHOCTH EBponsl. Nmeroeiics y
locynmapctBennoit HedTsHON KoMmmaHmu «SOCAR
Azerbaijan» ombiTa 1O  pa3paboOTKE  MOPCKHX
HedTerazoBbIxX MECTOPOXKICHHI, c y4eTOM
3aKIIIOYEHHBIX ~ MEXKIYHAapOAHBIX  KOHTPaKTOB C
KpynHbIMH ~ KoHcopuumyMmamu  (British  Petroleum,
Statoil, Sokar, Lukoil, NICO, TotalFinaElf, TPAO, BP
Amoco, ChevronTexaco, INPEX, ExxonMobil, Devon
Energy, Itochu, Delta Hess, Statoil (Hopserus) -
25,5%, Total, Korea National Oil Corporation, Shell,
Bulgargas, DEPA, Uniper, Engie, Hera Trading,
Edison, Enel, AXPO u np.), anurensHOe HaIKHOES
MIAPTHEPCTBO C IIOCTaBIIMKAMU U TOTPEOUTEISIMH,
BOBJICUCHNE  KPYITHOMAacIITaOHBIX  HHOCTPAHHBIX
MHBECTHLUI B Ta30BBII OTPACIIb, OBBIIIAET JOBEPHE K
Azep0Oaiimkany. AP B 2006 roxy 3amyctin «HOxHBII
razoBslii kopunop» (FOI'K — SCP), o xotopomy ra3 u3
kacnuiickoro 1ensda Oyner uaru B EBpomy, no
Hranuy, ¢ nepcrnekTuBOd BO3MOKHOCTH BOBJICUEHUS
HOBBIX PECYPCOB, B T.4. MecTOpoxkaeHul Typkmenus,
Wpan n Upak. [Ipoext coctout u3 tpex gactein: FOI'K
Baky-TOunucu-Op3ypyM — UIyLIEro 10 TEPPUTOPHU
AzepOaiimkana u ['py3un mo rpanunsl ¢ Typrmei;
TANAP — upymero no teppuropuu Typrum; TAP —
MIPOXOJSIIIETo o Tepputopun ['penmun, AnbGanum u
Uramun. CymecTtBytomass BeTka baky-TOwmmucu-
Op3epym craner dactelo «HaOykko», m mo Hemy
azepOaifkanckuit Taz yepes Typmmro u ['permio
CMOJKET MOCTynaTh B Mtanuio u apyrue eBponeinckue
cTpadbl. OCHOBHBIM  Ta30BBIM  pECypcoM s
rasonpoBoja «Habykko» Moxer crath TypkmeHns,
Upan u Upak [19-21, 33].

YBenuuenne odbemMa I0OBIYM MPUPOJHOTO Tasa
CIOCOOCTBYET JWBEpCHU(UKAIMH PBIHKOB COBITa B
CBSI3M C POCTOM IIOTPEOHOCTH TroyOOro TOILIMBA B
MHUpe, 4TO  SBIseTCd OAHO M3  OCHOBHBIX
sHepreTuueckux ctpareruii AP. IlocienHue rojsl
EBpormeiickne crpaHbl KaXAbIM TOAOM OoJblIe U
Oospllle  ymenseT BHUMaHWE  a3epOaiKaHCKHUM
ra3oBbIil CEKTOP, B CBA3M OTKpBITHEM KpynHbIX ['KM,
B asepOaiixanckoM cekrope Kacmmiickoro Mops.
[ToxTBepxkaeHNEM 3TOMY ABISETCS KOJIMYECTBO CTPaH
1 KPYITHBIX KOMIAHWH, TPUBICYCHHBIX B 3TH HPOEKTHI

[31, 32].


https://neftegaz.ru/catalogue/company/view/21355
https://neftegaz.ru/tech_library/view/4290/
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Ioxynatensmu raza FOI'K ctanyt 9 eBponelickux
kommanuii: aurno-rojutanackas Shell, Gomrapckas
Bulgargas, rpeueckas DEPA, wuemerkas Uniper,
(dpanmysckas Engie, wuranesuckas Hera Trading,
Edison u Enel u mBeiiapckas AXPO. B nepcriekTuse
Aszepbaiimxan " Typuus paccMmarpuBaer
BO3MOXKHOCTH ucnoip3oBanue FOI'K mis TpamsuTa
raza u3 Upaka, U3pauns u Kunpa. U3pawie u Typuus
BBIpA3WIIA HaMEpeHHe, BO3MOXHOCTH IIOCTPOHUTH B
OymyIIeM ra3omnpoBOJ, KOTOPBI CBSKET H3PAIICKUE
rasoBble MecTopoxzaeHus «Jlesuadam» u TANAP [5,
6]. B Hacrosimiee BpeMs HaOIOAcTCS TEHICHIINS
BO3pacTaHus posin AzepOaiikaHa B MEXTyHApOIHOM
sHepreTndeckoM mpocrpaHctBe. TOK craHoBuTCS
BXHBIM pecypcom BHEITHEIKOHOMHUYECKOH
JeITeNIbHOCTH TOCyJapcTBa. JTO TPOSBISETCS B
aKTHBHOM yuyacTuH A3epOaiipkaHa B DHEPreTHUECKOM
JUIUIOMaTHH. OTO TpedyeT KpoMe HCCIeA0BaHus
OIICHKH BHEITHEOKOHOMUYECKHX AaCIEKTOB Pa3BUTHSA
razoBoil otpaciu AP, HEoOXOAMMOCTH pa3pabOTKH

OCHOBHEIC QJICMCHTBI T€0APKOHOMHUYCSCKOM
MCTOOOJIOTHMM aHaji3a TJIaBHBIX MCKIAYHAPOAHBIX
Ta30BbIX IIPOCKTOB C TOYKHU 3pCHUA
BHCIITHEOKOHOMHUYCCKHUX u TCOIIOJIUTHUYCCKUX

HUHTEPECOB CTPAHBI.
PazButue NBYXCTOPOHHHX M MHOTOCTOPOHHHX

COTPYIHUYECTBO OCHOBHBIMU MOTPEOUTEISIMU
HMIIOPTUPYEMOTO  NPUPOJHOTO  rasza, Tra30BbIMHU
9KCHOPTEPAMHU KaCIUHCKOro peruona B

SHEPreTUICCKAM TepeKpecTkoM — TypIueid, oTpaxaer
BHEIITHEOKOHOMHUYECKOH WHTepechl A3epOaiikaHa B
He(Tera3oBEIX BOIpOcax. B COBPEMEHHBIX YCIOBHSIX
TUBEPCUPHUKAINSI PHIHKOB COBITa MPHUPOTHOTO Ta3a,
nnsi AP sBnsercsa, 3ajoroM  3KOHOMHYECKOHW U
TCOMOJMTUICCKOH CTaOMIBHOCTH U (DUHAHCOBOTO
Guaromosy4ue. PazBuTne MEXTyHAPOTHBIX
ra30TPaHCIOPTHBIX MPOEKTOB MPUKACITUUCKUX CTpaH,
CO CBSI3M C PAJIOM TOJUTHUYECKUX U IKOHOMHUYECKHX,
HauOoJee PEATUCTUYHBIM U HAJEKHBIM SIBIISETCS
peanusaius ¢ yyactuem AsepOaiimpkana. B cBs3u uem,
HAOJIOAaeTCsl  3HAYUTENBHBIH pPOCT COpoca Ha
azepOaiilpkaHCKAH Ta3 Ha EBPOICHCKOM Ta30BOM
PBIHKE, YTO TPHUBEIIO CYIICCTBCHHOMY HapalllMBaHUIO
ux 00beMoB 3Kcrnopra Hauunas ¢ 2017-ro roxa [5, 6,
31-33]. YunrsiBas BaXKHOCTb BHEITHEIKOHOMHUYECKOTO
3HAYEHHUS SKCIIOpTa IMPHUPOIHOTO Taza HEOOXOIMMO
HCIIONB30BaTh KOMIUIEKC MHOTO(AKTOPHBIN ITOIXO1
MpPU  OLIEHKE MEXIYHAPOJIHBIX Ta30BBIX IPOEKTOB.
Paccmotpenue 3TUX BOIIPOCOB JIOJIKHBI
OCYIIECTBIIICTCS, HE TOJIBKO ¢  (DUHAHCOBOM-
SKOHOMUYECKOH, KOMMEPUECKOH, TEXHUKO-
TEXHOJIOTHYECKONW TOUYKH 3PEHHUS, & TAKKE C y4eTOM
TEOMOTUTUIECKUX nmpobiemM u CUTYaIluH,
KOHKYpCHIMH  (YYUTBIBasE  HHTEPECHl  JIPYTHX
YYaCTHHKOB Ta30BOTO PHIHKA B PETHOHE), CBI3aHHBIX C
peanuzanuen 3TUX MIPOEKTOB, 3aruuas
BHEITHE3KOHOMHUYECKHX u reocTpaTern4eckux
unrtepecos AP [5, 6, 21 -24, 31-30].

BeiBoasl u mnpemio:keHusi. BruInogHEeHHBIN
aHaJIM3 TIOKa3aJl, 4TO KaK OOMIENPUHSATHIEC TOAXO0IbI HE
MOTYT OBITh HANPSMYIO IPUMEHUMBI ISl TPOBEICHUS

T30  mepcrmektuBHOCTH  ocBoeHuss [KM  Ha
Kacmmiickom mensde, B cHiIy TOro, 4ro B HHX
JOCTATOYHOW  CTENEHH  JIOJDKHBI  YUHUTHIBATHCS

reornoyMTHIecKas 1 reorpadudeckas ycinosus. Kpome
TOrO, HET €IMHBbIE METOJUYECKHE IOJXOJO0B K
00OCHOBaHUIO M TIAPaMETPHUUYECKOMY HAIOJIHEHUIO,
KpPUTEpUEB, HCIOJIB3yeMBIX B moxaxoxax k TOO0
MIePCIIEKTUBHOCTH OCBOCHUS YTJIEBOJIOPOAHBIX
PECypCOB, € Y4ETOM pa3IMyHbIX PUCKOB.

ITosToMy, Ha Ham B3MULA, HA JAHHOM JTare
KOHIIETITYaJbHbIE MOAXOABl K TpoBeneHmo T30
nepcnekTuBHOCTH ocBoeHus ['KM Ha MopckoMm
menbde TOIDKHBI 0a3MpoOBATHCS Ha METOJAaX OLECHKH
3¢ PEKTHBHOCTH HHBECTHLIMOHHBIX IIPOEKTOB C YIETOM
KOHKPETHBIX KPUTEPHEB W BO3MOXHBIX PHCKOB.
[IpencraBnsiercst 11e7€cO00pa3HBIM U BO3MOXKHBIM
MPEIUIOKUTD CIIEAYIOIINE IPYIIbI KpuTepues [25 - 29].

*  HHKCHEPHO-TEOJOTHYECKHEe UM  TEXHHKO-
TEXHOJIOTHYECKHE: TEOJOTMYECKHEe U  MPHPOIHO-
reorpauuecKue yciaoBHsl, HEOOXOJMMBbIE TEXHOJIOTHH,
00ecreYyeHHOCTh SHEpruew, TPaHCIOPTHOU
HHPPACTPYKTYPOH, MpodeCcCHOHATEHBIMA KaIpaMu;

¢ 3arpaTbl W OIpaHUYCHU:  KallUTAJIbHBIC,
TOCyAapCTBCHHBIC, PCTUOHAJIBHBIC, JYKOJOIMYCCKUC,
PBIHOYHBIC,

* MHBECTHIIMOHHBIC: CPOK OKYNAaEeMOCTH, POCTasi
HOpMa MPUOBUTH, YUCTast TEKyIas CTOUMOCTb, HHACKC
MIPUOBLTHLHOCTH, OTHOILICHHE BBITO/IbI/3aTPaTHI,
BHYTpPEHHSI HOpMa PEHTa0eIbHOCTH;

* PHCKOBBIC: T'€ONOIUTHYCCKUE, T€OJIOTHIECKHe,
MapKEeTHHTOBBIC, TEXHOJIOTHYECKHE, CTPOUTENIBHEIE,
9KOJIOTHYECKHE, (PHHAHCOBBIC.
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STABILIZATION OF EMPLOYMENT IN THE CHINA LABOR MARKET
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KaHOuOam eKOHOMIYHUX HAVK,

HAyKo8uUll CniBpOOIMHUK

XmenvHuybKko20 HaAYiOHANILHOSO YHIBEpCUmMenty

CTABLIIBALIA 3BAMHATOCTI HA PUHKY MPAILIL KUTAIO

Summary. The article analyzes the dynamics of the employed population and the unemployment rate in the
Chinese labor market. Peculiarities and actual problems of functioning of the modern labor market of China are
revealed. The most vulnerable segment of China's labor market has been identified as low-skilled and low-paid
workers, numbering about 600 million. One of the key priorities of the Chinese Government in 2020 is the policy
of stabilizing employment in the labor market. The main tasks of the functioning of the Chinese labor market and
its infrastructure during the coronavirus crisis are: protection of workers, preservation of existing jobs and creation
of quality jobs for new members of the workforce. The author identifies new and existing measures to improve
employment stabilization policies in China's labor market in response to the crisis provoked by Covid-19.
Measures have been proposed to mitigate the impact on employment for families and individuals, which will
contribute to China's socio-economic development and the rapid recovery of employment.

AHoTaunis. B crarti npoaHanizoBaHO AWHAMIKY YHCEIBHOCTI 3al{HATOIO HAaceJICHHs Ta PiBHs 0e3poO0iTTs Ha
puHKy mpani Kuraro. BusiBieHo 0coGIMBOCTI Ta akTyanbHi IpodieMn (YyHKIIOHYBaHHS Cy4aCHOTO PHHKY Mparii
Kuraro. BeraHoBieHO, 110 HaiOiIbI Bpa3iMBUM CErMEHTOM pHHKY mpaui Kurtaio € Hu3bkokBadidikoBaHi i
HHU3bKOOIUIa4yBaHi pOOITHUKH, SIKHX 0J13bKk0 600 MitH 0ci6. OJJHUM i3 KITIOYOBUX MPIOPUTETIB JisUTLHOCTI Ypsity
Kurato y 2020 pomi € momiThka crabimizamii 3alfHATOCTI Ha pPHHKY mpami. [OJOBHAMH 3aBIaHHSIMH
(yHKIIOHYBaHHIM PHHKY Tpari Kutaro Ta foro iHQpacTpyKTypH Mia 4ac KOPOHABIpYCHOI KPH3U €: 3aXHUCT
MpaIiBHUKIB, 30€peXEeHHS iCHYIOUNX pOOOYNX MiCIb Ta CTBOPEHHS SIKICHIX POOOYHX MICIIh IJIs1 HOBUX YYACHHUKIB
po6oY0i criH. ABTOPOM BH3HAYCHO HOBI Ta iICHYIOUI 3aX0/W YAOCKOHAICHHS MOJITHKH CTa0iizarii 3aifHATOCTI
Ha puHKY mpani Kuraro y BiAmoBiap Ha kpusy, cipoBokoBany Covid-19. 3anpormoHoBaHO 3aX01¥ TIOM SITIICHHS
BIUIMBY Ha 3alHSTICTH JJsL CiM’T Ta KOHKPETHHX OCi0, SIKI CIPHATUMYTH COLIaJIbHO-CKOHOMIYHOMY PO3BHTKY
KuTato Ta 1BUIKOMY BiJJHOBJICHHIO 3aiHSATOCTI.

Keywords: coronavirus crisis, employment, unemployment, stabilization policy employment, the State
Employment Service.

Kmouogi cnosa: kopownasipycna kpusa, saumamicms Hacelenms, Oe3podimms, nonximuxa cmaobinizayii
BQUHAMOCI, 0ePACABHA CYHCOA 3AUHAMOCTI.

IMocranoBka mnpoOaemu. Kuraiicbka Haponna
Pecny6uika (KHP) € moTyxHOO CBITOBOIO JIEpKABOIO,
sgKa CTpiMKO po3suBaeThcss. KHP, 3rigHO cBiTOBHX
CTaTHCTHYHHUX JAaHUX, € HaWOUIBII TyCTOHACEIICHOIO
KpaiHoto cBiTy. Y Kutai npoxuBae nmonan 1,4 minespra
nroneit. Kurtait BHpPI3HSAETBCS TakoXK HASBHICTIO
3HA4YHOI YHCENILHOCTI PO0OYOi CHJM y CBITI, sIKa €
CyTTEBUM (DaKTOPOM €KOHOMIYHOTO 3POCTAHHS. Y Psi
KHP noknanae 3HaYyHHX 3yCHIIb MOOYIOBI CydacHOT
KUTaWCHhKOT MOJIEJ pUHKY TIpalli Ta CTBOPEHHI CUCTEMH
JIEp’KaBHOT CITy’)KOM 3alHATOCTI, sKa OE3KOITOBHO
3abe3reuye MpareBlalTyBaHHs 0e3pO0ITHUX Y MicTax
Ta y cinmbcbkux nposiHmisx. Oxnak, KHP, y nepmiit
nonoBuHi 2020 poxy, 3iTKHynacs i3 Cepio3HHMH
npobiiemamy, ToB’s3aHMMHU 31 cnanaxom «COVID-
19», cKJIagHOIO 1 MIBUIKO MIHJIMBOK OOCTAaHOBKOIO B
KpaiHi Ta 32 KOpAOHOM. Buxonsum 3 11010, OTHUM 13
aKTyaJlbHUX  HTaHb  CHOTOJECHHS  3aJMIIAETHCS
po3pobka 3axo/iB cTabimizarii 3aitHsTocTi B KuTai.

AHaJi3 ocTaHHIX Jocjail:KeHb i myOJikaiii.
JlocmipkeHHST OKPeMHX acleKTiB KUTaWChKOi Mojeli

PHUHKY TIpalli 3HaHILIN CBOE BiMOOpaXKEHHS Y TpaIix
TaKUX BITYM3HSHUX Ta 3apyOLKHUX BUeHHX, Ak K.
Batnep, 1. bormap, O. I'pimmosoi, C. Kanininoi, E.
Jlibanosoi, JI. Jlicorop, I. JIyx’ssaenko, A. Jlan, B.
Omnikienko, Y. Cinbini, B. ®enopenko, b. @netimrep, K.
Yamn, B. IlIBers Ta iHmmx.

Bupgisiennsi HeBUpilleHMX paHille 4YacTHH
3arajbHoi mpo6iemu. OkxpeciieHi HayKOBi Ipari
OPUCBSAYCHI  JOCTI/DKCHHIO  MIJABUIICHHS  PIiBHS
3alHATOCTI HACEJICHHS Ta JAEPKABHOMY PEryJIIOBaHHIO
MPOIIECiB, IO CTOCYIOThCA (YHKIIOHYBAaHHS PHHKIB
mpari B pi3HUX KpaiHax. Y TOH e 4Yac NHUTaHHS
crabimizanii 3aiHsATOCTI Ha pUHKY mpani Kuraio B
yMOBax Ti100anbHOT (hiHAHCOBOI KpPH3HM Ta BIUIMBY
rocrpoi  pecmiparopHoi  xBopobu «COVID-19»
PO3TIISTHYTI HEJIOCTATHBO.

Mera craTTi ToNsTaE B aHaNi3i cWTyalii Ha
puHKy mpani Kwuraio Ta oOrpyHTYyBaHHI 3axoO[iB
cTabimizanii 3alHATOCTI Ha PHHKY IIpali B yMOBax
KOPOHAaBipyCHOI KpU3H.
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Buknagenns OCHOBHOI'0 Marepiany.
BaxmmBoro metoro Kuraiicbkoi Hapoanoi PecriyOiniku
10 2021 poky € moOymoBa «CYCHIIBCTBA 3 TOMIPHUM
PIBHEM XKHTTs» Ta 3MeHIIeHHs OigHoCTi. [{o 2049 poky
ypsan Kurato oOpaB amO0iTHY winp — «moOyayBaTu
CydacHy  COLIaliCTHYHYy  KpaiHy, ska  Oyne
MPOLBITAIOYOIO, CHIIBHOIO, JIEMOKPAaTHIHOIO,
KyJIBTYPHO PO3BHHEHOIO Ta TapMOHilHOIO». A o 2050
poky Kwurail mmaHye cTaTté HaIli€lo 3 «HOBaTOPCHKAM
ri1o6GaabHUM BIDTHBOM» [1].

[pesunent Kuraro B HOBOpiuHii mpomoBi (2020
p.) 3a3HauMB, IO «BAJIOBHH BHYTPIIIHIA MPOAYKT
(BBII) Kuraro ouikyerscst HaOmusutu g0 100 tpaH
toaniB (14,36 tpia gon. CIIA), a moka3HUK Ha AyIry
HacesieHHs HaOim3uTbes 10 — 10000 momapis CLIA»
[2]. Onst mopiBHsHHS, 3rigHO AaHuxX HarioHanbHOTo
6ropo craructuku Kuraro, y 2019 poni BBIT y Kurai
nocsr 18,2321 tpiH roaHiB (2,23 Tpna gon. CIIIA), mo
Ha 9,9 % Oinpiue, HiX y 2004 p.

2020 pik MaB CTaTH CTPH)KHEBOI YaCTHHOIO
TPaHAI03HOTO TUIAaHY «KUTAWChKOI Mpii», Komu Kurait
JKBigy€e aOCOMOTHY OiAHICTB, MiIBHUIIMBIIN SKICTH 1
PiBEHB XUTTS MUIBHOHIB Jroaei. OqHaK, TOMHUPEHHS
Tepuropiero Kutaro Ta iHIIMX Aep)kaB CBITYy roctpoi

76420

22 2014

pecmiparoproi xBopodu «COVID-19», cnpuunHeHOT
kopoHaBipycoM «SARS-CoV-2y», € HeOe3nmeyHUM He
TIIBKA 18 (I3UYHOTO 3/10pOB’S JIonel, ame H
(YHKI[IOHYBaHHS €KOHOMIKH, COIIaJIbHOT CTabLIBHOCTI
B perioHax, iCHyBaHHsI pOOOYMX MiCLb 1 IiJIPHEMCTB,
SKi 3a0e3NeuyloTh 3alHATICTh HaceNeHHs Ta IX
I00poOyT.

B exonomiuHoMy meperBopenHi Kwurato —
3alHATICTD HACEJICHHS Bifirpae BayKJIMBY POJb. 3TiAHO
craructngHux naanx KHP, ma «kimems 2019 p.
YHCebHICT 3alHATHX B Kutai caraymna — 774,71 mia
ocib (puc. 1), a B Micbkux pationax — 442,47 minpiioHa,
[0 cTaHOBUTH 57,1% 3aliHaTux B Kpaiui (e Ha 1,1%
Buie, Hix B kiHmi 2018 p.). BoaHouac, HaceneHHs
MicbkHX paiioHiB B 2019 p. cknano — 13,52 muH ocib,
mo Ha 90 Tucsiy meHmre, HiX y 2018 poui. PiBenn
0e3po0iTTs B MiCTaX Ha KiHEeUb POKY CSIrHyB 5,2%, a
3apeecTpoBaHUl piBeHb 0E3pOOITTS B MicTax CKIaB
3,6%. PiBenn 3aiinsgrocti 3a Mertomojoriero MOII B
Kuraiy 2019 porii cranosus — 75,61 % [3].

st Toro, o6 B MOBHIHM Mipi MPOAEMOHCTPYBATH
PO3JIaTO/KCHICTh TIPOLIECiB  3aHHATOCTI Ha PHHKY
mpani Kutaro nopeuHo Hagatu rpadidne 300pakeHHS

(puc. 1).
78000
77603 77640 oo
77451 7411 77500
77000
76500
76000
2016 2na 2020

Puc. 1. 3aunsmicme nacenennss Kumaro 3a 2010-2019 poxu, man ocio
IDicepeno: cgpopmosarno Ha ocrosi [4]

SIk BUZIHO 3 PUCYHKY 1, YHMCENBHICTh 3alHATOTO
HaceneHHs B Kurai y 2019 poui ckopormiacst Ha 115
THCsY 0ci6 B mopiBHsHHI 3 2018 pokom. Bmpomosik
2018-2019 pp. MoXHa TIOMITUTH  HETaTHUBHY
TEHACHLII0 3MEHIIEHHS YHCEJIBHOCTI 3alHATOrO
HaceneHHs B Kwurai, 1mo CBIAYUTE NP0 3apOHKEHHS
KPH3H 3aiHSATOCTI.

3rigHo JnaHWX, omyOnikoBaHWX HarioHambHIM
cratuctuyHuM Oropo Kwuraro, BBII B mnepmomy
kBaprani 2020 poky ckopoTHBCsi Maibke Ha 7% B
MOPIBHSHHI 3 TIEpIIMMHU TphoMa MicsisiMu 2019 poky.
3alfHATICTh HACENICHHS 32 BIAMTOBIIHUI TIepio]] B MicTax
[MinneOecnoi Takox 3HM3WIacs Ha 5,9%, ane Oyna
BHIIOIO JIOTHEBOro majiHHsa Ha 6,2%. BcraHoBieHo,
0 HaWOIIBII BpPa3IMBUM CETMEHTOM PHHKY TMparli
Kurato B 2020 p. € HusbkokBamidikoBani i
HU3bKOOIUTaYyBaHi poOIiTHUKH, SKUX OIM3bK0 600 MITH

oci6. Tomy, crabinizanis 3aifHATOCTI Ha PUHKY TIpalli €
TOJIOBHUM MPIOPUTETOM Yy JisutbHOCTI Ypsigy Kurato
Brpoaosxk 2020 poky [5].

Oco0MBICTIO Cy4acHOro puHKY mpail Kwurato, 3
ONlHIET CTOPOHH, € CTpIMKEe CTapiHHsS HaceleHHs 1
OJIHOYACHE 3HIDKEHHS MPONO3ullii sKiCHOT pobouoi
cwid. 3 iHIIOT TOYKM 30py, HAa puHKY mpaui Kuraro
CrocTepiraeTbes HasIBHICTh HOIHUTY Ha
BHUCOKOKBadiikoBanux mpaniBaukiB B IT-cdepi,
MamrHOOYyBaHHI Ta EJCKTPOHINI Ta HAITUIIOK
TIPOTIO3HLIIT HU3bKOKBai(hikoBaHOI poboUoi crin, sika
paHille npaioBajia Ha BApOOHUITBI a00 B Oy IiBeNbHIN
ranysi. HaromicTh, KiIbKICTh HE3aIIOBHEHHX BaKaHCIH
B cepi mrryunoro intenexty (IT) 8 Kurai y 2018 pori
caraga ONM3BKO II'ATH  MinbioHIB. Y  3BiTI,
ony6ikoBanomy y 2019 pori B TaiiBaHi KOMIaHIi€O
«DigiTimes», HaBoIATHCS MPOTHO3HI AaHi, o y 2020
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poui Kuraii Moxe 31TKHYTHCS 3 HECTAa4€lO TalaHTIB B
po3mipi 400000 ocib [6].

Cnig 3BepHyTH yBary Ha Te, IO cepa HOCIyr
y Kurai po3BuBaeTbcst LIBHIKHUMHA TEMIIaMH,
MePETBOPIOIOYHUCH Ha KJII04Y0BE JoKepero

42

2008 2010 2m2 2014

MpaLeBIANITYBaHHS HaceleHHs. Tak, 3allHATICTh Y
ctepi mocnyr Kuraro, 3rimHo orinku CBiTOBOTO OaHKY,
y 2019 pomi cranoBuna — 46,44% Bin 3arajgbHOI
YHCEIBHOCTI 3aiHATHX, 1 Ma€ TEHACHIIIIO IO 3pDOCTAHHS

[7], (puc. 2).

48

[*%)
(=)

wa
(=

wa
s

2016 2018 2020

Puc. 2. 3aiinamicms y cghepi nocaye (% 6i0 3acanvnoi satinamocmi) ¢ Kumai za 2008-2019 poku
IDrcepeno: cgpopmosaro Ha ocrosi [7]

3rigHo odimiitaux marnx, B 2020 pori Ha pUHOK
npani Kuraro Buiine pekopHa KiTbKICTh BUITYyCKHHUKIB
— 8,74 mutH oci0. Sxmo Bpaxysat e omm3sro 300000
CTY/ICHTIB 3-3a KOPJOHY 1 0€3pOOITHUX BHITYCKHHUKIB
MHHYJIOTO POKY, TO 3arajbHa Ludpa Moxe 1ocsarta 9
MITBAOHIB 0Ci0, II0 MPHOIH3HO JOPIBHIOE BCHOMY
HaceseHHIO [3painro. HoBi BUIyCKHHKHM CKJIaaaloTh
omu3pko 60% BiA 3aranbHOI YHCEIBHOCTI HOBOI
po6ouoi cunu Kurato, sika mopiuHo ckiamae 15 miH
oci6. Hamemeni maHI MIOKPECTIOIOTH CEPHO3HITH
MpoOJIeMH TIpalleBIAIITYBaHHS HOBUX BHITYCKHUKIB HE

6.2
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TIIBKH  4Yepe3 TMaHAeMIil0 KOpoHaBipycy, aie W
HEOOXIiTHICTh MMPOMHUCIOBOTO OHOBJICHHS KHUTaWCHKOI
€KOHOMIKH [8].

PiBenp 06e3pobirtss B TpaBHi 2020 poky B
00CTeX)KEHMX MIChKHX paiioHax Kwuraro 3HHM3HBCS 10
5,9% B MOPIBHSHHI 3 ONIEPEAHIM MicsitieM — 6,0%. s
MOPIBHAHHS, PiBeHb 0€3pOOITTS BCHOTO HACEICHHS B
Kurai, 3rigHo HamioHambHOI ouinku, y 2019 pori
craHoBuB — 3,8%, a piBeHb 0e3pOOITTSA 3arajabHOI
qHCeTbHOCTI Moo y Birti 15-24 poku — 10,33% [9],
puc. 3.

6.4

6.2

Jan 2020 Apr 2020

Puc. 3. Pigenv 6e3pobimms 6 micvkux pationax Kumaio 3a nepioo
3 uepsnsn 2019 p. no mpasenv 2020 p.
IDicepeno. cghopmosano na ocrosi [9]

OpHak, Ha yMKY OKPEMHUX €KOHOMICTIB, peaibHa
KapTUHA 3aiHATOCTI Ta CUTYalis 3 piBHEM 0e3po0iTTs
€ Habararo ripmumu. «IcTHHHME piBeHb 0e3po0iTTH,
WMOBIpHO, € BJBiUli OLIBIIMM», BPaXOBYIOYH, IO
OnMM3bKO I’sITOf YacTWHHM POOITHUKIB-MIIpaHTIB He

MOBEpHYJIMCS B  MicTa, 3a3Ha4yalOTh EKCIEPTH
a”aiiTHaHOro 1eHTpy «Capital Economics». Ha mymky
¢axieuiB «Global Times», B 2020 pomi «KHTaHCEKIM
CHiBpoOITHMKaM B  TNPUBAaTHOMY CEKTOpi Oyne
MIPaKTHYHO HEMOSKJINBO OTPUMYBATH TaKy X 3apIuiaTy,


http://www.geograf.com.ua/china-profile
https://tradingeconomics.com/china/unemployment-total-percent-of-total-labor-force-national-estimate-wb-data.html
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|/

gk B 2019 poui», OCKUIBKK Maill MigNpHEMCTBA OyIn
3MYyIICH] 3BUILHATH CITIBPOOITHHKIB 200 CKOpPOYyBaTH

nepcoHan. Bueni  [lekiHCbKOrO  yHiBepcHTETY
3a3Ha4aoTh, 10 Omm3pko  85%  mpuBaTHHX
OiANPUEMCTB  OynyTh OOpOTHCS 3a BH)KHUBaHHS

MPOTATOM HACTYITHHX TPbOX MicsliB. A OaHKPYTCTBO

MicieBumu opranamu Biangu KHP mocrano muranzs
aKTHBI3allil CTBOPEHHS HOBUX 1 30€pEKEHHS 1CHYIOUHX
pobounx Micup, a TaKoX pPO3POOKH IOJITUKH
crabimizauii 3a{HATOCTI. BpaxoBytoun
B3a€MO3AICIKHICTh MK E€KOHOMIYHUM 3POCTaHHIM 1
CTaHOM PHHKY Ipalli, 6araTo KpaiH CBiTy, B TOMY YHUCIIi

MiATIPHEMCTB, O€3yMOBHO, Tpu3BeIe IO 3pocTaHHA 1 Kwuraif, 3ampoBamkyloTh HOBI 3axomud abo
6e3pobirtst [10]. pO3IIHUPAIOTH ICHYIOUI Y BigNOBiAZL Ha KpH3Y,
BpaxoByrounm KpUTHYHHH XapakTep HacHigkiB  crupoBokoBaHy Covid-19, tabmwms 1.
cnamaxy COVID-19, mepen meHTpalbHUMH Ta
Taommms 1
Yacruna kpain G20, sxi 3anpoBaau/in HOBi 3aX014 a00 PO3LIMPUJIM iCHYI0Ui y BiinoBiaAb
Ha kpu3y Koin-19*
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Iicepeno: cpopmosano na ocnosi [11]

Sk MOXxHa crmocrTepiratv 3 naHux Tabmmui 1, y
KuTtai KoopiuHyBaIuCh MEBHI 3yCHILUIA, CIIPSIMOBAaHi Ha
3ano0iranHs emigemii 1 60poThOY 3 HElo, a TAKOXK Ha
cTablm3amio 3aiiHATOCTI HaceleHHs, EKOHOMIYHHMM 1
COIIaNbHUI PO3BHUTOK.

HentpaneHi i MicueBi opranu Buanu Kutaro mis
CTUMYJTIOBAaHHSI E€KOHOMIKH 3aMpoBaJKYBaN
crielianbHi perymorodi 3axonu. Tak, MiHicTepcTBO
JIIOJICBKUX PECYpCiB 1 COI[albHOTO 3a0e3MeueHHs
(MHRSS) cnoineHo 3 Bceekuralicbkoro Qenepartiero

npodeninok  (ACFTU)  po3poOwi  HONITHKY,
CIpsIMOBaHy Ha CTa0lUIi3alil0 TPYAOBHX BIiIHOCHH,
BiAHOBIICHHS MIATPUMKH MiATPHEMCTB Ta
BUpoOHMIITBa B yMoBax emigemii COVID-19.

OCHOBHUMHM KEPiBHHMH IPUHIUIIAMH JaHOT MOTITHKH
€: poOOTOAABISIM Ta IPAIliBHUKAM PEKOMEHIYETHCS
BUpIIIyBaTH  NHTaHHA  3alHATOCTI, HIISIXOM
TIEPETOBOPIB, 10 TOTO, K CIIBPOOITHIKH MTOBEPHYTHCS
Ha poOoTy; MO0 YHHKHYTH CKYyITUEHHS HaTOBILY
NpAaIiBHUKIB, poboToaaBIsIM PEKOMEHY€EThCS
KOHCYJIBTYBaTHCS 3 CIIBPOOITHUKAMH ISl IPUHHATTS
THYYKHX METOJIB POOOTH, TaKUX SK POTaLis 3MIH i
THYYyKOrO 4acy Yy J0po3i; poOOTOAaBIi MOBHHHI
3a0e3rmeuyBaTd  peryjsipHe — NpUOMpaHHS  BCIX
BUKOPHCTOBYBaHHX IOBEPXOHb Ha poOouoMy Mici i,
AKIIO  MOXIIMBO, B)XHBATH  3aXOMAIB  3aXHCTY
ciBpoOiTHUKIB [12].

B pesympTaTi mpOBENEHOTO  JOCIHIIKCHHS
BCTAHOBJIEHO, II0 OCHOBHMMH 3aXOJaMH B yMOBax
KOpOHaBipyCHOi KpH3H, sKi poOortonaemi B Kwutaro
MOXYTh 3aCTOCOBYBATH ILOJO 3HWKEHHS BHUTpaT Ha
pobouy cuity i 30epeKeHHS MiJIPUEMCTB Ha 3aKOHHHIX
mijicTaBax, €: BUKOPUCTAHHS IIOPIYHOI, COMiaabHOT Ta
KOMIICHCAIIMHOT ~ BIANYCTKW, BHIUIATa 3apoOiTHOT
IVIaTH 32 e(peKTHBHUHA poOOYMH dYac, PeryIroBaHHS
poboYoro vacy i poOoUnX 3MiH, 3HHKCHHS 3apILIaTH,
MPU3YITUHEHHS TPYIOBOTO JOTOBOPY, NMPHU3YIHWHEHHS
BUPOOHHUIITBA, BIICTPOYKA BHUILDIATH 3apOOITHOI TUIATH
TOIIO.

BucnoBku i mpono3uuii. [Tin6uBaroun migcymK,
MOXHA  KOHCTAaTyBaTH, 11O  BIUIUB  eIigeMil
KOPOHAaBIPYCY Ha KHTaHChKy €KOHOMIKY i PHHOK TIparli
NPU3BOJUTH 0 CEPHO3HHMX COLIAIbHO-EKOHOMIYHMX
HACJIJKIB:  30UNbIIEHHS  0€3pOoOITTS,  3BYXKEHH:
3aiHATOCTI, MOTIPIIEHHSIM YMOB IIpali, 3MEHIICHHS
3apoOiTHOT TUIATH, 3POCTAHHS COIiAIbHOT HEPIBHOCTI,
3HIDKGHHSI PIBHS KUTTS HacelleHHs, necTabimizamii
E€KOHOMIYHOI JisTIbHOCTi, 3arOCTPEHHS COIiaIbHUX
3aBopyIeHb Tomio. Haiibinema npoonema gt KHP va
JIAaHWUIT MOMEHT — II¢ TIOBEpHYTH MUIBHOHM JFOJEH 10
poboTH Ta cTabumi3yBaTH 3aMHATICTH B perioHax
kpainu. [IpoBeneHi pociiKeHHs! MiATBEPAXKYIOTb, 110
TOJIOBHUMH 3aBJaHHSIMHU (YHKIIOHYBaHHSIM PHHKY
npari Kwrato Ta #ioro iHdpacTpykrypm mim Hac
KOPOHAaBIpyCHOT KpHW3W €. 3aXHCT TpalliBHHKIB,

30epeXKCHHS ICHYIOUMX POOOYMX MiCIlb Ta CTBOPCHHS
SIKICHUX POOOYUX MICIb JUISI HOBUX yYacHHUKIB poOo4oi
CHUIH.

besnepedHo, 110 Kpalie peryaroBaTH PHHOK Ipai
METOJJAMH BEJICHHS MEPeroBOpiB pPOOOTOIABIIB 3
npogcninkaMu abo MpeaCcTaBHUKaMU IMPAIiBHUKIB 3a

JIOIIOMOT OO JIEMOKPATUIHUX MPOLIEAYP I
cTabimizamnii poOoYnX MicCIb, IUISXOM POTAIll mocay i
BIJIITyCTOK, KOPUT'YBaHHS 3apo0biTHOI  TUIaTH

CIIBPOOITHHKIB, CKOPOYEHHS POOOYOro yacy, a He
yepe3 3BUIbHEHHS MpaliBHUKIB. BysemMo croziBatucs,
0 3axoau OOpOTHOM 3 CKOHOMIYHMMHU HACHIIKAMHU
By COVID-19 B KHP € tuUMuacoBumu,
BUMYIICHHUMH 1 CHPHITUMYTh pEryJIIOBaHHI, sK
eKOHOMIKH B IIJIOMY, TaK i crabimi3amii 3alHATOCTI
30Kpema.
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METHODICAL BASIS OF MODELING OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
OF RESTAURANT ENTERPRISES

Kawnepcoka Anacmacin leaniena

KAHOUOAam eKOHOMIYHUX HAYK, O0YeHm

Kagedpu ¢inancie ma obnixy,

Xapxigcokuil 0epaicasHuil YHisepcumem xapuyeants ma mopeiei

METOJJAYHUAN BA3UC MOJIEJIIOBAHHSI CACTEMHY BHYTPIIIHHOT'O KOHTPO.TIO
HNIAIMPUEMCTB PECTOPAHHOI'O TOCITOJAPCTBA

Kawnepckaa Anacmacua Heanosna

KaHouoam 3KOHOMUYECKUX HayK, 0OYeHm

Kageopul unancos u yuema,

Xapovkoeckuil 20cyOapcmeeHHblll YHUGEPCUMem NUMAHUsL U MOP206Iu

METOIAYECKHI BA3UC MOJEJUPOBAHUS CUCTEMbI BHYTPEHHEI'O KOHTPOJIS
HPEJINPUSATHIA PECTOPAHHOT'O X031 CTBA

Summary. The article developed the organizational and methodological provisions of the internal control of
restaurant enterprises in order to optimize the information base and support the work of the relevant service. The
methodological bases of internal control were optimized in view of the industry-specific features, which made it
possible to bring the system of internal control to a new organizational level using the developed methodological
tools as a key element of qualitative changes. The reorientation of the internal control system to innovative
technological tools and methodological basis is substantiated, which allowed modernizing the model of the internal
control system of restaurant business enterprises. The model of internal control of the basic processes of the
restaurant business enterprises is offered, which includes: delivery, manufacture, realization and service that will
promote simplification of process of control of execution and will increase its economic efficiency. It is
emphasized that the organization of internal control requires special attention to the documentation of both the
current control process and the preparation of a report on its results. A package of working documents of the
internal controller has been developed, the use of which will help to improve the information and analytical support
of the subjects of internal control and the main initiator of its implementation - the owner of the enterprise.

AHoTanis. B craTTi 31iiCHEHO PO3BUTOK OPraHi3amiiHO-METOANIHHUX TI0JI0KEHb BHYTPITHHOTO KOHTPOJIIO
HIANPUEMCTB PECTOPAHHOTO TOCHOAAPCTBA 3 METOI onTHMizalii iHpopmaniiHol 6a3u Ta MIATPUMKH POOOTH
BIJIMIOBIZHOT CiTyK0H. 3AifICHEHO ONTHMI3aIli0 METOANYHUX 3aca/l BHYTPIIIIHEOTO KOHTPOJIIO 3 OTJISITY Ha Taly3eBi
0COOJIMBOCTI, 10 Z03BOJIMJIO BUBECTH HAa HOBMM OpraHi3alliiHUN piBeHb CHCTEMY BHYTPILIHHOTO KOHTPOIIO 3
BUKOPHUCTAHHSIM PO3BHHYTOTO METOOJIOTIYHOTO IHCTPYMEHTAPI0 SIK KIIIOYOBOTO EJIEMEHTY SIKICHHUX 3MiH.
OOTpyHTOBAaHO NEPEOPIEHTAII0 CHCTEMH BHYTPIITHHOTO KOHTPOJIO HAa METOAWYHHHA 0a3uc, IO IO3BOJMIH
MOJICpPHI3yBaTH MOJIETb BHYTPIIIHHOTO KOHTPOJIO IIJIPHEMCTB PECTOPAHHOTO TocrojapcTBa. Po3pobieHo
MOJ€CJIb BHYTpiIHHBOFO KOHTPOJIO OCHOBHUX npoueciB HiI[HpI/IGMCTB PECTOPAHHOI'O roCrioAapcTBa, 10 CKIAAy
SIKHMX BXOOUTH: IIOCTA4YaHHA, BI/Ip06HI/IIITBa, peani3aui'1' Ta OﬁcﬂyFOBYBaHHH, 110 COPHUATUME CIIPOLICHHIO MIPOLCCY
KOHTPOJIIO BHKOHAaHHS Ta MiJBHIINTh HOTO EKOHOMIYHY egeKTHBHiCTh. HarosyomeHo, mo npu opranizamii
BHYTPIIIHBOTO KOHTPOJIIO OCOOJIMBOI yBarm IOTpPeOye JOKyMEHTaJIbHE 3a0e3ledeHHs SK MOTOYHOTO
KOHTPOJBHOTO TPOIIECY, TaK i CKJIaJaHHs 3BiTY 3a Horo migcymMkamu. Po3pobieHo makeT poOoYuX JOKYMEHTIB
BHYTPIIIHBOTO KOHTPOJIEpa, BHUKOPWUCTAHHSA SKHX CHPUATHAME IIOKPAIICHHIO i1H(OpMAIiitHO-aHATITHYHOTO
3a0e3mneueHHs] Cy0’€KTiB BHYTPIITHHOTO KOHTPOJIIO Ta OCHOBHOTO iHiIliaTopa HOro 3IiHCHEHHS — BJIaCHUKA
MiATIPHEMCTBA.
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AHHOTanms. B cratbe ocyniecTBieHO pa3BUTHE OPraHU3allMOHHO-METOJMYECKUX TIOJIOKEHUI BHYTPEHHETO
KOHTPOJISI TPEANPHUATHH PECTOPAHHOTO XO3HCTBA C EJIbI0 ONTUMHU3ALMN HH(POPMAIIMOHHOW 0a3bl M MOAJIEPIKKH
paboTHI COOTBETCTBYIOMIEH CITy>KObI. OCylIecTBIeHA ONTUMH3AIM METOAMYECKNX OCHOB BHYTPEHHETO KOHTPOJIS
C yYETOM OTpacieBbIX 0COOCHHOCTEH, YTO MTO3BOJIMIIO BHIBECTH HAa HOBBIM OpPraHW3allMOHHBIN YPOBEHb CUCTEMY
BHYTPEHHETO0 KOHTPOJISI C HMCIOJIb30BAHUEM Pa3BUTOTO METOAOJIOTHYECKOT0 MHCTPYMEHTApHs KaK KJIIOYEBOTO
JJIEMEHTa KaueCTBEHHbIX M3MeHeHWiH. OOOCHOBaHA IEpEOpPHEHTAIMS CHCTEMBl BHYTPEHHETO KOHTPOJS Ha
METOANYECKUIl 0asuc, 4TO Jano BO3MOXKHOCTh MOJCPHHU30BATh MOAENIL BHYTPEHHETO KOHTPOJS MPEANPUSATHH
pecTopaHHOro Xo3siicTBa. Pa3paboTraHa Monenb BHYTPEHHEr0 KOHTPOJI OCHOBHBIX IIPOLECCOB IPEINPUATHI
PECTOPaHHOI'O XO3SHCTBA, B COCTAaB KOTOPBIX BXOJHT: MOCTaBKa, IPOU3BOICTBO, pealn3alusi U 00CIyKUBaHHE,
4yro OyOeT cnocoOCTBOBATH YHPOIICHUIO MPOIEcca KOHTPOJS BBINOJHEHHS, U NOBBICHT €r0 SKOHOMHYECKYIO
3¢ ¢pextuBHOCTh. OTMEUEHO, YTO NPH OPTaHM3AINHM BHYTPEHHETO KOHTPOJIS OCOOCHHOTO BHHUMAHHA TpeOyeT
JOKYMEHTaIbHOE obecriedeHre KaK TeKyIIero KOHTPOJIBHOTO POIecca, TaK M COCTABICHUS OTYETa 10 €r0 HTOTaM.
Pa3zpaboran maker pabo4yMx JOKYMEHTOB BHYTPEHHEI'O KOHTpOJIEpa, WCIIOJIb30BaHUE KOTOPBIX Oyner
CIOCOOCTBOBAaTh  YJYYIICHUIO HWH()OPMAMOHHO-aHAIMTUYECKOTO OOecleueHnsi CyObEeKTOB BHYTPEHHETO

KOHTPOJII U OCHOBHOI'O MHHUIIMATOPA €T0 OCYHICCTBJICHU — BJIaACibla NPCATIPUATHUSA.
Key words: internal control, restaurant enterprises, control methods, internal control model, working

documents, internal control report, inventory.
Knouoesi  cnosa: enympiwniii  Konmpony,

iHBeHmapu3ayis.

RIONPUEMCIMBA  PECMOPAHHO20 20CHOOAPCMBA, MemOoOuKd
KOHMPONIO, MOO0eNb GHYMPIWHb020 KOHMPO0, poboyi OOKyMeHmu,

36iM  GHYMPIUWHBLO20 KOHMPOTIO,

Kniouegvie cnosa: enympennuii Konmpon, npeonpusmus pecmopanio2o X03aUcmed, MemoouKa KOHmpoJsl,
MOOenb BHYmpenHe20 KOHMPOJisl, pabouue OOKyMeHMbl, OM4em HYmMpeHHe20 KOHMPOsl, UHBEHMAaPUAYUSL.

IMocranoBka mnpobiaemu. TpanchopmariiiiHi
3pyIICHHS B CKOHOMIIIl Ta 30UIBIICHHS O0OCATIB
BUPOOHHUIITBA BUKJINKAIOTh HEOOXIHICTh
YIOCKOHAJIEHHS  METOAMYHUX  3acaj  KOHTPOIIO,
3aCTOCYBaHHS HOBHMX CIIOCOOIB HOro 3IiHCHEHHS.
CTpiMKHif PO3BHTOK TEXHOJIOTIYHOTO 3a0e3MCUeHHS,
T ABUIICHHS npodeciiHol KOMIECTEHTHOCTI
KOHTPOJIEpiB MOTPeOYIOTh PO3POOKH KOHKPETHHX
3aXOMiB IIOJ0 YAOCKOHAIEHHS METOIWKH KOHTPOIIO,
CIPSIMOBAHOT Ha MiIBUILEHHS e(eKTUBHOCTI
BUPOOHHWITBA Ta SIKOCTI peani30BaHOI MPOAYKIIi i
HaJlaHUX HOCITYT, JOCSITHEHHS
KOHKYPEHTOCIPOMOKHOCTI Ha YKpaiHChKOMY PUHKY.

ITpu po3poOii METOIMYHKX 3aca]] BHYTPIILIHHOTO
KOHTPOJIIO ~ MIANPHUEMCTB  cepu  PecTOPaHHOTO
rocroJiapcTBa IMOTPIOHO BpaxyBaTWh oOpraHizauliiiHy
CTPYKTYPY, PpO3Mip MiJNpPHEMCTBA Ta Trajy3eBi
0COOJIMBOCTI TISUTBHOCTI.

AHaJii3 ocTaHHIX AocjilkeHb i myOJikamii.
ITpobnemam PO3BUTKY METOIUYHHUX 3acaj
BHYTPIIITHBOT'O KOHTPOITIO MisIIBHOCTI MIATPHEMCTB Ta
BU3HAYCHHIO IIUIAXIB IX yIOCKOHAJIEHHS INPHUCBIYEHI
mparli MpOBITHUX BYCHUX-HAYKOBIIB, 30Kkpema, B. JI.
Benix, I. A. benooxenwkuii, M. 1. bonnap, b. I. Banyes,
H. I'. Buroscska, M. [I. Kopiusko, P. O. Koctupko, I1.
O. Kynuk, 0. I1. Maiinanesuu, B. ®. MakcimoBa, M.
B. Menbsnuk, K. O. Hazapoga, JI. B. Hananosceka, H.
A. Ocran’wok, B. I1. ITantenees, A. A. ITununenko, B.
O. IlleBuyk Ta iHmux. B TO# ke 4Hac, 3Bakaroudm Ha
cnemudiyHiCTh Taly3l PEecTOPaHHOTrO TOCIOJAapCTBa,
OKpeMi acCIeKTH HaJaroKeHHS AisIIbHOCTI CHCTEMH
BHYTPIIIHBOTO KOHTPOJTIO 3aJTUIIAIOTHCS aKTYaJIbHUMHU
i TOTpeOYIOTh pPO3BUTKY METOAMYHUX 3acag Ta

BHECEHHS IPONO3WIIH ImOJ0 1X IOJaJbIIOro
YIOCKOHAJICHHS.
Merta. HaykoBe [MOCHI/KEHHS TNPHUCBSIYEHO

OOTpYHTYBaHHIO W PO3BUTKY METOAMYHHMX 3acaja Ta
MOJICJTIOBAHHIO CHCTEMH BHYTPIIIHBOTO KOHTPOJIIO

MAPUEMCTB 3 ypaxyBaHHSIM OCOOJIMBOCTEH Taiys3i
PECTOPaHHOT0 I'OCIIOAPCTBA.

Buxisiag matepiany. 31ificHeHHST BHYTPIIIHBOTO
KOHTPOJIIO IIepe0avae CTBOPEHHS 11eaibHOT MOIeNi Ta
KOPUT'YBaHHs MOBEJIHKH IMiIKOHTPOJIBHOTO 00’€KTa 3
MeTor0 i mpakTH4YHOI peamizaiii depe3 YiTKO
HAJIarOJKeHI 3BOPOTHI 3B’s3kd. Ilpu IIbOMY HaBiTh
imeasibHO TOOyOOBaHa CHCTEMa KOHTPOJIO Ha
MAMPHEMCTBI HE MOXKE TMOBHICTIO TapaHTyBaTH
BiJICYTHICTh BiAXWJICHb, TOMIJIOK i Hee(DEeKTUBHOCTI Y
po0OOTi, OAHAK MOBHHHA JOMOMAraTé iX CBOE€YACHO
BUSIBJISITH, CIPUSIFOYM TiBUIICHHIO PE3yJIbTaTHBHOCTI
pobotu [1].

BigcyTHICTh ~ KOMIUIEKCHOTO — HiIXOLy IO
METOJIMYHOTO 3a0€3eUeHHs] BHY TPIIHHOTO KOHTPOJIIO
npolecy BHPOOHHMITBA MNPOIYKLIT YHEMOMXIIHBIIOE
JIOCTOBipHE BCTaHOBJICHHS SIKOCTI,
KOHKYPEHTOCIIPOMOKHOCTI Ta PpEeHTa0eIFHOCTI
npoxyknii.  CydacHi  yMOBHM  TOCHOJaplOBaHHS
BUMAararoTh CTBOPEHHS IIANPHEMCTB, SKi 37aTHI
3a0e3NneunTH  HaJeXHI  YMOBH  KOHKYPEHTHOTO
CepelloBUINla Ta IMIATPHUMYBATH CBOE BHUPOOHHUIITBO.
MeroauuHe 3a0e3nedeHHsT BHYTPIIIHBOTO KOHTPOJIIIO
nepenbavae Oe3mOCepeIHE TPOBEACHHS IEPEBIPKU
NPaBUIBHOCTI BiZI0Opa)KeHHs oniepaiii 3 BUpoOHHIITBA
NPOAYKII Ha paxyHKax OyXraiarepcbKoro oOIiKy,
o0JIIKOBHX perictpax Ta (hiHAHCOBIH 3BITHOCTI 3a
JIOTIOMOTOI0 ~ OpPraHOJIENTUYHHX,  PO3PaXyHKOBO-
AQHAITUYHUX T4  JOKyMEHTAIbHHX  METOJUYHUX
MIPUIOMIB, a TAKOXX CKJIaJaHHs pOOOYHX 1 MiCYMKOBHX
JIOKyMEHTIB KOHTpoJepa [2].

BononminHs  cnemmdikor0 i OCOOIUBOCTIMH
JSUIBHOCTI  MNPUEMCTB  cepu  PECTOPaHHOTO
TOCIIO/IapCTBa y TO€AHAHHI 3 METOJAaMH KOHTPOIIO
JO3BOJINTH ~ HAWOUTPII ~ e()eKTUBHO  3MIMCHIOBATH
BHYTPIIIHI KOHTPOJH 1, BiANOBITHO, BIUIMBATH Ha
JOCATHEHHS METH — HaNOIJIbII MOBHOTO 3a/I0BOJICHHS
oTped BIIaCHUKA, & HACSIICHHS — B XapuyBaHHI.
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Cucrema BHYTPIIIHBOTO KOHTPOJIIO BKJIIOYAE
KOMIUIEKC PI3HOMaHITHUX B3a€MOIIOB’SI3aHUX METOMK
Ta MPOLENYD, SKi PO3POOIISIOTHCS Ta 3aTBEPIKYIOTHCS
BIaCHUKOM [MIJNPUEMCTBAa Ta 3AIHCHIOIOThCA (3a
HAasBHICTIO) CIIy’K0010 BHYTPILITHHOTO KOHTPOJIIO.

OOpaHHS METOJIB Ta TNPHUHOMIB KOHTPOIIO
Oe3mnocepeHpO OB’ sI3aHE 3 npodeciifHo0
KBaJiQikamiero Ta JOCBIIOM pPOOOTH BHYTPIIIHIX
KOHTPOJIEPiB, 3aIIAHOBAaHIMH OOCSITOM Ta TEPMiHOM
HepEBiIPKH, IPOLELypaMu KOHTPOITIO.

MeToan KOHTPOJIO — IIe CYKYITHICTh MIPUHOMIB 3a
JIOTIOMOTOI0 SIKMX OIIHIOEThCA CTaH o00’€KTa, IIo
miuiarae  BHYTPIIHBOMY KOHTpoio. Y  mporeci
MPOBEICHHS BHYTPIIIHHOTOCIIONAPCHKOTO KOHTPOJIIO
BUKOPHCTOBYIOTh 3arajbHOHAyKOBI Ta cheuudivni
MeTonu nochipkeHHs. Jlo cneuudiyHuX BiTHOCATH
MeToIu (PaKTHYHOTO, JOKYMEHTAIBHOT'O KOHTPOJIIO,
PO3paxyHKOBO-aHANITHYHI, METOIHN y3arajJbHEHHS Ta
peaiizanii pe3yabTaTiB KOHTpOIIO [3].

MeToauKOI0 KOHTPOJIO Ha3MBAIOTh CYKYIHICTH
METOIIB KOHTpOJIO. MeToaWka — I CYKYITHICTh
MpaBWJI 3MIHCHEHHS KOHKPETHOTO JOCIiKeHHS, Habip
IHCTPYMEHTIB, NPEIMETIB, 1[0 BUKOPUCTOBYIOTHCS 3a
KOHKpETHHX 00cTaBuH [4].

MeroauKka  KOHTPOJIO  MOXE  3MiHIOBaTUCH
3aJIeKHO BiJl BIUIMBY PI3HOMAHITHMUX BHYTPIIIHIX Ta
30BHINMHIX  (aKTOpiB Ha  JiSIBHICTH  CyO’ekTa
rocrojaproBants. KoxHe MiIIpHEMCTBO CaMOCTIHHO
BU3HAYa€ Mepellik 03HaK 3a IKUMU OyJie IPOBOJIUTHUCH
BHYTpIIIHII KOHTPOJb, MPOTE, BIAMOBIIHO IO METH,
3aBIAHHS Y BCIX € OJHAKOBHUM 1 MOJIATaE y 30epeskeHH1
MaiiHa, mTiIBUIICHHI edeKTuBHOCTI poboTH Ta
3MilHEHHI (DiHAHCOBOTO CTaHY IiJIPUEMCTBA.

Po3pobka MeToaudIHOro 3a0e3MEeUYEeHHs] CHCTEMH
BHYTPIIIHBOI'O  KOHTPOJIIO  HAa  HiJNPHUEMCTBAX
PECTOPaHHOTO TOCIOAPCTBA CHPUSITUME MOCHJICHHIO
e(heKTHBHOCTI KOHTPOJBHHX 3aXO0IiB.

KontposbHi 3axoau (3ax0qd KOHTPOJIIO) — II€
MOJIITUKA 1 TPOIEAYpPH Ta JOMOMAararTh BIIACHUKY
MIANPUEMCTBA Y BUSBJICHHI Ta 3aro0iraHHi 1CHYIOYHX
pu3uKiB. BOHM mpencTaBIsAIOTH COOOK KOHKPETHI
METOJ, TpaBwiIa, NPUHOMH, aHAJITHYHI MPOLEIYpH,
po3po0ieHi ciayk00r0 BHYTPINIHBOTO KOHTPOJIO 1
Y3TOJUKEHI BJIIACHUKOM MiJMPUEMCTBA. 3aCTOCYBaHHS
3aco0iB KOHTPOJIIO crpusie JIOCSITHEHHIO
JIOCTOBIPHOCTI, MOBHOTH Ta TOYHOCTI T'OCIIOJAPCHKHUX
omepamiii. Cxian 3aco0iB BHYTPIIIHBOTO KOHTPOJIIO
3aJIeKHUTh Bil po3Mipy, oOcsry, npusHadeHHs, chepu
Ta 0COOJIMBOCTEH MISUTBHOCTI MiJIPHEMCTBA, CTaHy il
KOHTPOJIBHOI CEpelu.

3rigHO TJOCapito TepMiHiB 70 MiXHApOIHHX
cragaaptiB ayauty tTa MCA 315 «Imentudikamis ta

OLIIHIOBAHHS PH3MKIB CYTTEBOTO BUKPHBJIECHHS Yepe3
pO3YMiHHS Cy0’€KTa TOCIONApIOBaHHA 1 HOro
CepellOBUINA»,  TEPMIH  «3aXOAM  KOHTPOJIO»
CTOCYETBCSI KOXXHOTO OKPEMOIO acIeKTy OJHOI0 YH
KiJIBKOX ~ KOMIIOHEHTIB ~ CHCTEMH  BHYTPIIIHBOTO
koHTpoJto. [Ipu po3poliri Ta BIPOBaKEHHI 3aX0IiB
KOHTPOJIIO  YNPAaBIIHCBKMH  TEPCOHAT  MOXE
3MIACHIOBATH CYIDKEHHS HIOZO XapakTtepy i obcsary
3ax0[IiB KOHTPOJIIO, IKi BiH 00Mpae 71 BOPOBAKCHHS,
a TaKOX IIOJ0 XapakTepy W oOcATYy PHU3MKIB, SKi BiH
npuiiMae. [IeBHI 3aX01 KOHTPOIIO MOXKYTh 3aJI€KATH
BiJl iCHYBaHHS BINNOBITHHWX MOJITHK BHIIOTO PiBHA,
BCTaHOBJICHUX YIPaBJIiIHCHKUM IIEPCOHAJIOM 200 TUMH,
KOTO HaJJICHO HallBUIIIMMH TOBHOBa)XEHHAMUY [5].

Po3pobnennit  xomIieKc 3axo0/1iB 010
yIOCKOHAJICHHS METOJIMYHOTO 3a0e3ne4eHHs
BHYTPIIIHBOIO KOHTPOJIO CIpUSE BiJOOpa)KeHHIO
JOCTOBipHOI iH(poOpMaii mpo mporiec BUPOOHUITBA Y
MEPBUHHUX JOKYMEHTaX, OONIKOBHX pericTpax Ta
3BITHOCTI, a TaKOXX BHTOTOBJICHHIO SKICHOI Ta
6e3mevynol mpoaykii [2].

BosomiHHS  0COOMMBOCTSAMH  OISJIBHOCTI  Ta
3aCTOCYBaHHS METOAIB BHYTPIIIHBOTO KOHTPOJIIO,
BUOIp SKUX OOIPYHTOBAHHUH CHEUU(IKOIO MiATPUEMCTB
pecTOpaHHOTO rOCII0IapCTBa, CHpHUATUME
i ABUILIEHHIO Pe3yJIbTaTUBHOCTI BHYTPIIIHBOTO
KOHTPOJIIO 1, SIK HACIIIOK, NPUHHATTIO 3BAKEHHX
YIPaBIIHCHKUX PillICHb.

BaxyuBy poab B mpoleci  3AiHCHEHHS
BHYTPIIIHBOTO KOHTPOJIO SIKOCTI MPOXYKIii Ta BUTPAT
Ha 11 3a0e3MedeHHs TaKoX Bifirpae OyXxranTepchbKuit
00ITiK, OCKITBKY BiH (PiKCY€ HaHi 3a MOTepeIHi Ta 3BiTHI
mepiog 3 METOI0  BUSBICHHS  BIIXWIEHb Ta
BUHUKHCHHS MPUYHH TaKUX BiAXUICHB [6].

KpiMm TOro, mix 4ac po3pOOKH METOIUKH
BHYTPIIIHBOIO KOHTPOJIIO Tpeba mam’sitaTh Mpo

HEOOXiIHICTh 3a0e3leyeHHss SKOCTI Ta Oe3leKu
Xap4oBoi MPOYKIIT, 0 BUPOOIISETHCS
HiAPUEMCTBAMU PECTOPaHHOTO rOCIOIapCTBRa.

[pouec 3abe3neyeHHs! SKOCTI NPOIYKIIT SIK €IUHUIN
00’€KT YIpaBIiHHS CKIAAETHCS 13 B3AEMOIIOB’ I3aHUX
€TaliB 1 Omepariif, amke OJHA HESKICHO BHKOHAHA
orepaliss B TEXHOJOTIYHOMY TMpPOIECi MOXKE 3BECTH
HaHIBeIb MONEepeIHi AKICHO BUKOHAHI PUHOMHU, IO B
MiJICYMKY  YHEMOXIIMBHTh OJICPIKAHHS  TPOIYKINT
3aIUIaHOBAHOT SIKOCTI. HeoOxinHo 9iTKO
JOTPUMYBATUCh TEXHOJOTIYHUX HOPM, PETEIbHO
KOHTPOJIFOBATH SIKICTh BUKOHAHHS SIK OCHOBHHX, TaK 1
JIOTTIOMDKHHX TEXHOJIOTIYHHX omepariiii [7].

ToMy miAMPUEMCTBAM BapTO MPUIUIATH YBary
TEXHOJIOTIYHOMY Ta BUPOOHHUOMY KOHTpPOJTIO (puc. 1).
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v

v

TexHONOTIYHUI KOHTPOJIb

Bupo6Huunii KOHTpOIbL

KOHTPOJIb SIKOCTI CHPOBHHH, XapUOBUX
MPOAYKTIB, HaniB(paOpHKaTiB, TOTOBOT
MPOAYKIIil, TEXHOJIOTYHMX HPOIIECiB, IO
3aCTOCOBYIOThCS TIPH BUTOTOBJICHH1
NPOIYKLIT (CTpaB Ta HArmoiB)

3iHCHEHHS TaOOPATOPHIX JOCIIKEHb, OPraHi3allis
MEJIOTIISIIB, KOHTPOJIH HASIBHOCTI JOKYMEHTAIii, 1110
T ATBEP/IKYE SIKICTb MPOJTY KT, BEACHHS OOJIKY Ta
3BITHOCTI, CBO€YacHe iHPOPMYBaHHSI PO MOPYILIEHHS
SIKOCTI

v v

v

BxinHnit KOHTPOIH

OmnepamniifHu# KOHTPOJIH

[IpuiimManbHUN KOHTPOJIB

KOHTPOJIb ITOKA3HUKIB SIKOCTI 1
0e3IeKH CUPOBUHH, XapYOBHX
NPOJYKTiB, HaniB(aOpHKaTiB, 110
HaIHIU 10 BUPOOHUKA ISt
MOJIAJIBIIOT0 BUKOPHCTAHHS B
TEXHOJIOTIYHUX TPOoIEecax
BUTOTOBIICHHS MPOIYKIIii

KOHTPOJIb ITapaMeTpiB 1
MOKA3HMKIB ITiJ] 4ac
BHUKOHAHHS a00 Mmiciis
3aBEPIICHHS
TEXHOJIOTIYHOT omepartii

KOHTPOJIb MMOKA3HUKIB SKOCTI
i 6e31eKH TOTOBOT MPOAYKIIii,
3a pe3yJIbTaTaMHU SKOTO
NPUIMAIOTh PillIEHHS 1010
i IpUOaTHOCTI AJIs
peaimizamii

Puc. 1. Buympiwniii konmponws sskocmi ma oe3nexu npooyKyii nionpuemcms pecmopanHo20 20Cno0apcmead

Tak, TEXHOJOTIYHMI KOHTPOJIb MONATAE Yy
KOHTPOJII SIKOCTI CHPOBMHM Ta XapuOBHUX MPOJIYKTIB,
M0 HAJAXOJSITh Ha MiJNPHEMCTBO PECTOPAHHOTO
rocroJiapcTBa. Konrponep criocrepirae 3a
NpUIMaHHAM MPOAYKTIB, MEpeBipsie BCIO CYNPOBiTHY
JOKYMEHTAI[I}0 Ha BiANOBITHICTH SKOCTI JaHUM
JOKyMEHTIB Ta HOpMaTuBiB. Y pa3l BUSBICHHS
HETIPaBUIILHOTO odopmieHHS, TIaKyBaHHS,
HECBOE€YACHOTO TOBEPHEHHS 3aIlaciB 3 HEHAJIEXKHOIO
AKICTIO, HEZIOTPHUMAHHS CaHITapHUX HOPM KOHTpOJIEp
Mae€ CKJIACTH BiIAIOBIIHI TO30BH.

OmnepamiifHU# ~ KOHTPOJb  3IIHCHIOETHCS 32
JIOTIOMOTOI0  OPTraHOJIENTUYHOI OIIHKH, IepeBIpKU
TEXHOJIOTIYHUX KapT, (i3MKO-XIMIYHOT TEepeBipKH.
3nificHeHHsT  omepaliiHOro  KOHTPOJIO  HaJIacTh
MOXIIMBICTh OTPUMATH TOYHI MOKAa3HUKH, IO MalOTh
3HAYEHHS B OL[IHIII IKOCTI CTPaB, CIIPUSTUME BYACHOMY
BUSIBJICHHIO MOPYILIEHb, CBOEYACHOMY 1X YCYHEHHIO Ta

3amo0iraHH0 — peamizamii  HESKiCHOI — IPOIYyKIIii
CIIOXKHBAYY.
[puiiMabHUE  KOHTPOJB  SKOCTI  MPOIYKIIi

3aJIEKNUTh BIJ] THUIy MiJIPHEMCTBA PECTOPAHHOTO
rocrmofapcTBa 1 HOro  MOXYTb  3[iMCHIOBATH:
OpakepakHa KOMICis, OpTaHU IEpXKABHOTO HaTILAY,
iHcTeKmii. 3aBIaHHs BHYTPILIHIX KOHTPOJIEPiB MOJIATAE
Yy CBOE€YAaCHOMY BUSBJICHHI HESKICHOI MPOAYKINi, a

TakOX HaJaHHI iHpopMamii MOJ0 BHUABICHUX
MOPYIICHB BiATIOBITHUM OpraHaM.

B cBoro wuwepry, mpum 3miHiCHEHHI KOHTPOIIO
BUPOOHHWIITBA MPOAYKIii MJOIIBHO mepeadadaTu
MOCTITOBHAN  TOCTIHHWUH  KOHTPOJb  TEXHOJOTIH
BUPOOHMIITBA Ta SIKOCTI HamiBpaOpuKaTiB i roToBoi
nponaykuii  (rOTOBMX CTpaB Ta HaloiB), yMOB

30epiranHs, pearnizamii Ta yTwmzamii 1 3aJMIIKIB 1
BiAXO/iB.

Kpim Toro, Heabusike 3HaUeHHS I 3a0€3IIeUCHHS
SIKOCTI TOTOBOT MPOJYKIII Ma€ KOHTPOJb OpraHizauii
MEIMYHUX  OIJINiB,  mpodeciiiHol  ririeHiqyHol
MiZTOTOBKK Ta aTecTallil MpaliBHUKIB MiIIPUEMCTBA,
NISUTBHICTh ~ SKMX TOB’si3aHa 3  BHUPOOHHUIITBOM,
30epiraHHsM, TPAaHCIIOPTYBaHHSAM 1 peaii3ali€ero
XapYOBUX MPOAYKTIB Ta HAIOTB.

BHyTpimHi#i KOHTPOINB, 3MIMCHIOBAaHMHA Ha BCIX
eTamax TOCIIOAApPCHKOi  MiSTIPHOCTI  MiANIPHEMCTB
PEeCTOpaHHOTO TOCHMOJApCTBa, B Pi3HI HEpiogu dYacy,
YMOBHO TIOAUISETHCS Ha TOMEPenHill, IMTOTOYHUI
(TIOBCAKICHHWIT) 1 HACTYITHUIA.

B cyyacHHMX yMOBaxX rOCIOAApIOBaHHS 3 METOIO
YCIIIITHOTO (hyHKITIOHYBaHHS HIANPUEMCTBA,
HiJIBUILIEHHS] PIBHA DPEHTA0ENIbHOCTI, 30€peeHHs Ta
30arayeHHs MOro akTWBIB HEOOXIMHUI HaJIAroIKeHUN
MEXaHi3M YIpPaBJIiHHs, HAWBaXXJIHMBILIMUM €JIEeMEHTOM
SIKOTO € TIOBCSKJICHHWH BHYTpIlIHIM KoHTposb. Ha
MiATPHEMCTBAX 3 BEITUKUM O0OPOTOM 3allaciB IMOCTAE
MMUTaHHS PETYTIOBAaHHS Ta BHYTPIIIHHOTO KOHTPOIO
orepaniii mms 3a0e3nedeHHs IX pPamioHaJbHOTO Ta
e(pEKTHBHOTO BHKOPHCTaHHA. Hes3ame)kHO BiJ BHUIY
BHYTPIIIHFOTO KOHTPOIIO, SKUH 3aCTOCOBYETHCSA Ha
MiATPUEMCTBI, IEPIIOYSPTOBAM 3aBAAHHSAM IIPH HOTO
(hopMyBaHHI € BU3HaYEHHS MPOIEeTyp KOHTpoIto (abo
3aco6iB koHTpOIHO0) [8].

3acTocyBaHHS BCiX BU/IIB KOHTPOJIIO B CyKYITHOCTI
CIIPHUATHAME ITiIBUIIIEHHIO CUCTEMATHYHOCTI Ta 1i€BOCTI
BHYTPIIIHBOTO KOHTPOIIO.

3nifCHIOIOYM ~ BHYTpPIIIHIA ~ KOHTPOJIh  Ha
MIAMPUEMCTBAX ~ PECTOPAHHOTO  TOCIOAApCTBA, B
3aJICKHOCTI BiJl MPOIECY KHUTTEMISUIBHOCTI, JOUIIBHO
3aCTOCOBYBATH Pi3HI METOIU KOHTPOIIIO, a CaMe:

I. B mpomeci mocrayaHHS: JOKyMEHTaJbHa
niepeBipKa; HOPMAaTHUBHO-IIPaBOBA nepeBipKa;
apupMeTHYHa  TIepeBipKa; B3aeMHA  IeEpeBipKa;
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CIIOCTEPE)KEHHSI; 3yCTpiYHA IEPEeBipKa; ONUTYBAaHHS;
TECTyBaHHS; IHBEHTapu3alis; JabopaTopHUil aHai3;
OpraHOJIENITUYHA OLHKA; OIJIsJ; aHAJITHYHA OLIHKA
3IIHICHEHNX TOCTIOIAPCHKUX 1 (PIHAHCOBUX OIEparliil.
II. B mnpoueci BuUpOOHHMITBAa: JOKyMEHTaJbHa

HepeBipKa; HOPMaTHBHO-TIPaBOBa
nepeBipka;apupMeTHIHa mepeBipKa; B3a€MHA
HepeBipKa; CIIOCTEPEKEHHS; OIS, ONUTYBaHHS;

TECTYBaHHSA, OOCTEXCHHS Ha MiCIi; iHBEHTapH3allis;
nmabopaTOpHUH aHalli3; eKCIIePTHA OIliHKA; OTPHIMAaHHS
MMMCHMOBHX IOSICHEHD; aHAITHYHA OLIIHKA 3IHCHEHNX
TOCIIOAPCHKUX 1 PIHAHCOBHX Omepalliif; KOHTPOIbHUN

3allyCK CHUPOBMHU Yy BHUPOOHHUIITBO; BiJIHOBJICHHS
HaTypaJIbHO-KIJIbKICHOTO OOJIIKY.
III. B mpoumeci peamizamii: JOKyMeHTalIbHa

nepeBipKa; orisL;apudMeTHuHa IepeBipKa; B3a€MHa
nepeBipKa; CHOCTEPEXKEHHs; 3yCTpiuyHa NepeBipKa;
OIIMTYBaHHS, TECTyBaHHS; OPraHOJCIITHYHA OLIHKA;
eKCIIepTHa OIiHKa; JIabopaTOpHWH aHami3 SKOCTI
TOTOBOI TMPOAYKIii; aHANITHYHA OIliHKA 3IiHCHEHHX
TOCMIOAPCHKUX 1 (PiIHAHCOBHX OTEpaIliii.

IV. B mporeci o0CIyroByBaHHS: CIIOCTEPEKCHHS;
OIIMTYBaHHS; TECTyBaHHS; JOKYMEHTAJIbHA MEPEBIPKa;
3ycTpiuHa TepeBipka; apudMeTHYHa IepeBipKa;
aHAJITUYHA OIlIHKA 3/IHCHEHHX TOCHOAAPChKUX 1
(hiHaHCOBUX Omnepaii.

BupineHni MeTonu BHYTPIIIHBOTO KOHTPOIIIO IS

KOXHOT'O mporiecy  JisUTbHOCTI MIiATPHEMCTB
pECTOpaHHOIO  TocmojapcTBa  OOYMOBIICHI  1X
cnenn(ikoro Ta 0COOTMBOCTSIMH.

Hnst BUBYEHHS TIPOIIECiB IUSITTBHOCTI

MATIPHEMCTBA CITIBPOOITHUKH CITY)KOM BHYTPIIITHHOTO
KOHTPOJTIO TIOBHHHI HE TLTBKH PO3YyMITH METY IIPOLECY,
a i BHABIATU NMPUYMHHU Ta NependadyBaTH MOXKIUBI
MICI[SI BAHUKHCHHS PH3HKIB.

Jlesiki ~ MeTOOM  BHYTDILIHBOIO  KOHTPOJIIO
BUKOPHCTOBYIOThCS IiJI 4ac MEPEeBIPKU BCIX MPOLECIB

nisuibHOCTI. B TOM e dYac, OKpeMi MeETomu €
cnequdiyHUMH AL TEeBHOro  mpouecy.  Tak,
KOHTPOJIbHUH 3aIlyCK CHPOBMHH Yy BUPOOHMIITBO
MIpUTaMaHHUH JIKIEe NepeBiplli Mporecy BUPOOHUIITBA.
OOCTe)KEHHIO HAa MICIII MOXYTh MiAJSAraTH CKIIA],
KyXHsI, BUpOOHHMYE OOJIa[HAHHS, TOTOBAa MPOJYKIIis.
JlabopatopHuii aHaNi3 MOYKE BHKOPHCTOBYBATHCH JIJIS
MEPEeBIPKN SKOCTI CHPOBHHH, IO BUKOPHUCTOBYETHCS
IIpyu BUPOOHUIITBI CTPaB 3TiTHO PEHEnTypi.

Kpim Toro, mig gac mpoBeneHHS BHYTPIITHBOTO
KOHTPOJIO Ha  JOCTI[DKYBAaHUX  MiANPHEMCTBAX
JOLTBHO 3aCTOCOBYBATH PI3HOMAHITHI METOAH, SIKi €
CYKYITHICTIO (hiHAHCOBUX, C€KOHOMIYHUX,
OpraHi3aliifHNX, ONEPaTUBHO-TEXHIYHUX 1 (PaKTUUHHUX
CIOCO0IB Ta MPUHOMIB 3 TIEPEBIPKH JI0XO/IiB, BUTPAT Ta
(iHaHCOBUX pe3yJIbTaTiB HiaIpueMcTsa [9].

B cucTeMi BHYTPIIIHBOTO KOHTPOJIIO
3aCTOCOBYIOTh Taki Meroau 300py iHQopMarii sk
CIIOCTEPE)KCHHS, TECTyBaHHS Ta onurtyBaHHS. Lli
METOJM MOKYTh BHKOPHCTOBYIOTBCSI Ha BCIX eramax
KOHTPOJIIO ISl BHSIBICHHS MOJKJIMBHX IOMIJIOK Ta
MOPYLIEHb SIK IIPH MEPEBIpLi MpoLecy MOCTaYaHHs, TaK
1 mpu  TepeBipmi  Iporecy  00CIyroBYyBaHHS
CIIO’KUBAYIB. Tax, HarnpHKia, TECTyBaHHS
JOTPUMaHHS YMOB 30epiraHHs CHUPOBHMHH, Xap4OBHX
NPOJNYKTiB, HamiBpaOpukaTiB Ta HamoiB MOXe
MIPEACTaBICHO B Ta0I. 1.

Po3pobnennit pobouunii JOKyMEHT NpU3HAYCHUI
JUIsL OTpUMaHHs HeoOXximHoi iHdopmauii B yacTuHi
3araJlbHAX MHTaHb JOTPUMAaHHA YMOB 30epiraHHs
CHPOBHHH, Xap4yOBHX NPOAYKTIB Ta HAamoiB Ha
OiIOPUEMCTBI. 32 YMOBH BHSBJICHHS HOPYLICHS,
BHYTpIIIHI KOHTpOJEpP Ma€ CKOPUTYBAaTH CBOi Ail
TakKUM YHHOM, IM00, 3a HEOOXigHOCTi, MPOBECTH
ciry00Be pO3CIliIyBaHHs Ta BUSBUTH BUHHY 0CO0Y, a
TaKoX PO3POOHMTH 3aXOAU JUIs MOMEPEIKSHHS TaKHX
HOpYILIEHb Y Mall0yTHHOMY.

Taomums 1

PoGounii nokyMeHT «OniHka JOTPUMAHHS YMOB 30epiraHHsi CHPOBMHH, Xap4YOBUX MPOAYKTIB,
HaniB(padpukaTiB Ta HANMOIB»

3MICT ITUTaHHSA

Bapiant
BIZITOBI}

i

[prmiTku

Tak
pimevTra

1 2

o1 | [adopmartist

[y

Uu € B HASIBHOCTI JIOKYMEHTALLisI, L0 MiATBEPPKYE SKICTh OTPUMAHOT CHPOBUHH Ta
XapYOBHX MPOYKTiB?

Un BUKOHYIOTBCS] BUMOTH IHCTPYKIIT 3 IPUMMAaHHS CUPOBHHH Ta Xap4OBHX
TPOJIYKTIB Ha cKiaj?

Uu 311iHCHIOETHCSI TOBEPHEHHSI HESIKICHOT CHPOBHHH Ta XapYOBUX IPOJIYKTIB?

Un 371iHCHIOETHCS BUMIPIOBAHHS TEMITEPATYPH NP Ha/IXO/PKEHHI OX0JIODKEHHX ab0
3aMOpPOYKEHHX MPOJLYKTiB?

SIK 31IHCHIOETHCSI KOHTPOJIB SIKOCTI I Oe3MeKH MPOIyKTiB?

Uu 3a10BHIOIOTHCS] KAPTKH OLUHKH SIKOCTi?

~N (oo B WD

Uu nepetdayeHi Ta 3/iiiCHeH] 3aX0/1 y pa3i HeIOTpHUMaHHS HeOOXiJHHX MapameTpiB
SIKOCTI CHPOBHHH?

00}

Uu BUKOHY€E MaTepiabHO Bi/IIOBIIAbHA 0c00a PEKOMEH/ LT 111010 YCYHEHHS
TOPYIIEHB SIKOCTI XapUOBHUX MPOJYKTIB?

9 Uu 3a10BHIOETHCSI KAPTKa KOHTPOJIIO TEMITEPATYPH B XOJIO/IMIIBHUX Kamepax?
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10 Uu OyIt0 BUKOHAHO KOPETYBaJIbHI i ¥ pazi HEOTPHMAHHS TeMIICpaTypH 30epiraHHs
TPOJIYKTIB Ta HAIoiB?
1 Yu OyJ10 IPUIHATO 3aX0/M P BUSBJICHHI MOPYILEHb 30epiraHHs B XOJIOMIBHIX
kamepax?
12 Yu 10TpUMYIOThCS IIpaBUIIa TOBApHOTO CyCi,.Z[CTBa pH 3§epiraHHi CHPOBUHU,
Xap4OBHUX MPOAYKTIB, HaniBhaodpuKkatin?
13 Yu npaBUIIEHO PO3MILIEHI XapUOBi MPOJYKTH, IO HE IMOTpeOyrOTh 30epiraHHs y
XOJIOJMIJIBHHUX Kamepax?
14 Yu T0TpHMAaHO PEeXKUM 366piPaI:IHH KOXHOIO BUJTy CHPOBHHH, XapHOBHX TIPOJIYKTIB,
HaniB(aOpHKariB Ta HaroiB?
15 U € B HasIBHOCTI MapKepy 4acy BUTOTOB/ICHHS i ;;aKineHH;{ TEPMiHy BUKOPHCTaHHS
HaniB(aOpHkaris?
16 Yu mpariroe cucteMa BEHTIUBALIT Y NPUMIIIEHHSX, 16 30epiraroThes POIYKTH
XapuyBaHH?
17 Uu e Bumaku 30epiraHHsi CHpOBHHH, Xap9IOBHX TPOAYKTiB, HamiB(haOpHKaTiB Ta
HAITOiB 11033 MEKaMH XapuoBOTO OJIOKY?
18 Uu € mopyIeHHsI MO0 CTPOKIB 30epiraHHs HamiBhaOpuKaTiB?
19 Uu 1oTpuMaHo TEpMiHM 30epiraHHs MIBHIKOIICYBHUX MTPOIYKTIB?
20 Uu T0TprMaHO TpaBHIIa yTHITI3AITT .SiHCOBaHO.l. CHPOBHHH, XapHOBHX MIPOJTYKTIB Ta
HamiBhaOpHKaTiB?
21 Uu 10TprIMaHO CaHiTapHO-TITiEHITHI BUMOTH JIO TPUMIIIICHB, JIe 30epiraroThest
CHPOBHHA, IPOJIYKTH, HaMiB)aOpHKaTH, HAMOI?

Jiis O6impII TOBHOTO 3MIMCHEHHS BHYTPIIIHBOTO
KOHTPOJTIO I IIPUEMCTBA PECTOPAHHOTO I'OCIOAAPCTBA
MarOTh BHKOPHCTOBYBAaTH METOIH JOKYMEHTAILHOTO
KOHTpOr0. Tak, Mg dYac TepeBipKH MpoIecy

3IiHICHEHHS TOCTIOAPChKHX OTEpallii, a came: yroaw,
MO/aTKOBOI, MNPUOYTKOBOi, TOBaPHO-TPaHCHOPTHOL
HaKJIQJHOi, JIOBIPEHOCTI, IUIATDKHUX JIOKYMEHTIB
Tomo. BusBieHi mix 4ac mepeBipkM PO30IKHOCTI,

MOCTa4aHHs  JIOUIIBHO  TEPEBIPUTH  HAsBHICTh,  IOMMJIKH, HETOYHOCTI Ta MOPYLICHHS 3aKOHOJAaBCTBa
NpaBUJIBbHICTE  O(POPMJICHHS Ta  JOCTOBIPHICTH  JOLIIBHO BIZOOpPA3uUTH Yy BIAMOBIIHOMY pPOOOYOMY
NEePBUHHUX JIOKYMEHTIB, IO MiATBEPMXKYIOTh (akT  JOKyMeHTI (Tadu. 2).
Taomuus 2
Po0ounii nokymeHnt «IlepeBipka J0KYMEHTAJbHOr0 0()OPMJICHHS PO3PAXYHKIB 3 OCTAYAJIbLHUKAMM
Ne HaiimMeHyBaHHS JOKYMEHTA, 32 SIKUM S | s
Bum nopy1ieHs, BUSIBIICHHX B JIOKYMEHTaxX S é‘
3/m BUSIBIICHO TTOPYIICHHS o1 g
£l
=
1 2 3 4 5
1 He BkazaHe MicClIe ITi/IITHCaHHsl YTO/IH Yroza 3 mocTaqaIbHUKOM
2 He Bkazanuii TepMiH Jiii yroam Yroza 3 mocTaqaIbHUKOM
3 € HeoOyMOBJICH] BUIIPABIICHHS! BAPTOCTI TOCIYT 3 ToBapHo-TpaHCHOpTHA HaKTATH
TpaHCIOPTYBaHHS
4 BiacyTHil mimmic oep)KyBada CHPOBUHA [pubyTKOBa HAaKIIATHA
5 BincyTHicTb OaHKIBCHKOi BUTTUCKH, IO 1.'1iz[TBepz[>Ky€ )
TIOTaIlIeHHsI 3a00pTroBaHOCTI
6 HermpaeuimsHO opopMIteHa JOBIpEHICTb, BUIFICAHA HA Tosipericrs
eKCIIeITopa
7 HenpasuibHo po3paxosano [1/1B IlogaTkoBa HakIaqHA
8 BincyTHi fokyMeHTH, 0 HiZLTBep,I[)I(YI(?TL SIKICTB )
OTPHMaHHUX Xap4OBHUX IPOIYKTIB
9 I[aT.a BKasaHa y HpI/I6yTK0.BUiI‘/'I HaKJ'IaI[Iiiﬁ HE Bi/INOBIIae [TpubyTKOBa HaKJIa/IHA, BUJATKOBA
J1aTi, BKa3aHiil y BUIaTKOBIIl HAaKJIa/IHIH MocTavyaJbHUKA HaKJIa/iHa
10 [lata orati BapTOCTi CHPOBHHM HE CITIBIIAZIA€ 3 JATOIO BankiBcbKka BUITHCKA 3 paXyHKY Ta 3
OTPHMaHHSI OTUIATH MOCTAYaILHUKOM PaxyHKy IocTadyabHUKA
11 Ipn l'IpI/I:H6aHHi XapYOBHX MPOJIYKTIB Y HACEJICHHS HEMa€e )
I ITBEPHKYIOUOr0 JOKYMEHTA PO OILIaTy
12 HenpaBH@Ho BH3HA4CHA TIepBICHA BapTIiCTh Yropa, mpulyTKoBa i IOTATKOBA
Bi/IBaHT2)KEHOT CHPOBUHH HaKJa/iHa
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Ha mincraBi aHanmily BHSIBICHHMX IOpYIIEHb Ta
BU3HAYEHHS cabKux Mmicup HiANPUEMCTBA,
BHYTPIIIHIIT KOHTpOJEp MOXKE HalaTh peKoMeHAaril
JUTSL TABHIIICHHS ¢()EKTHBHOCTI CUCTEMH Ta MPOLECIB
opraHizauii JOKyMEHTaJIbHOIO O(GOPMIIEHHS IpoLecy
MOCTa4aHHs.  AHaJOriyHi  poOodi  JOKYMEHTH
BUKOPHCTOBYIOTE JUIS IIEPEBIPKH ITOKYMEHTAaJIbHOTO
oOpMIICHHSI BHYTPIIIHFOTO TIEpEMIIIEHHSI CHPOBHHH,
Xap4OBUX MPOAYKTIB Ta HAIOIB, peaisalii cTpaB Ta
HAIIO1B, a TAKOXX HAZIaHHA JOJAaTKOBHX IUIATHHUX ITOCITYT
BiJBiyBadam.

OcobmuBe wMmicme cepex MeTOHIB  (aKTHIHOTO
BHYTPIIIHBOI'O KOHTPOJIIO HAJEKHUTh iHBEHTapH3aii.
Merton  iHBeHTapu3alii  BHUKOPHCTOBYETHCS  UIS
NepeBIpKU HASBHOCTI CHPOBUHHU Ha CKJIaJaX, y Iexax
Ta XOJIONWIBHHUX Kamepax, 0api, a TaKoX MOPIBHAHHS
JaHUX OyXranaTepcbkoro oOJiKy 3  (aKkTHYHOIO
HasBHICTIO.

[HBeHTapH3allis HA i ANPHEMCTBAX PECTOPAHHOTO
TOCIIOAapCTBA BIAPI3HAETHCS BiJl iHBEHTapH3alliii Ha
MiATPHEMCTBAX IHIMIUX Talxy3ed, TOMY IOLUIBHO
BUIUINTH NEBHI 1T 0COOINBOCTI:

- TEepMiHM NPOBEACHHS iHBEHTApHU3allii MOXKYTh
BIZPI3HATUCS B 3aJIe)KHOCTI BiJi 00’€KTa mepeBipKU
(Hanpukiaa, mepeBipKy 3aTHIIKIB 0apy IOLUIBHO
3IIMICHIOBATH LIO/HS, 3JIMIIKIB MIPOAYKTIB Ha CKJIai —
HIOTHIKHS, TIEPEBipKa MOCYAY — HIOMICSIIS TOIIO);

- JIOUIBHO 00paTH ONTHMAaJBHUKA dYac JuIs
3MIACHCHHS I1HBEHTapU3alii 3 METOK BHUKIIOYCHHS
(GMIIIYBaHHS» OTPUMAHHX CHPOBHHH, XapyOBHX
NPOAYKTIB Ta HAIIOIB Ta THX, IO BXKe OyJIO BPaXOBaHO;

- iCHy€ MOXJIMBICTh BUHHKHEHHS IIOMUJIOK TIPH
0oOpaHHI OOWHWIIF BUMIpPIOBaHHS (YHAaKOBKH, IITYKH
TOIIIO);

- Yy BUNAJKYy, SKIIO Ha MiJIPUEMCTBI BEJIHKa
KIJIbKICTh MTPOYKIIIi pealtizyeTbcsi Ha BUHOC abo yepes
JIOCTaBKy, OCOOJMBY yBary HEOOXIIHO MPHUIIIUTH
KaJbKyJISIIi Ta po3paxyHKy cobiBaprocTi (3 MeToro
NPaBHJILHOTO CIIMCAHHS YIIAKOBKH);

- icHye npoOsiema 00IiKy 3arOTOBOK ISl CTPaB
Ta  HamiBpaOpukariB  (ocoONMBO  THX, IO
BUKOPUCTOBYIOTBCS BOTHOYAC 1 Ha KyXHI, 1 B 0api);

- MOXIIMBICTH IIaXpaicTBa MiJ Yac MiArOTOBKA
MPOAYKTIB 10 00pOOKH;

- Hectauli a0 HAUMIIKK Yy
HENpaBUILHOI 0OPOOKH CUPOBUHH;

- TCyBaHHS CHPOBHMHH TiJ Yac NMPHUTrOTYyBaHHS
CTpaB Ta HAIOIB;

- HENpaBWIbHE OMNPUOYTKYBaHHS CHUPOBUHH,
XapYoOBUX MPOAYKTIB Ta HAmolB  (HAIPUKIAN,
BiIOOpakKeHHST OJTHOTO ¥ TOTO CaMOro MPOAYKTY ITi[T
PI3HUME MTO3UIISIMA 3 HECYTTEBOO 3MiHOIO Ha3BH);

- BIJACYTHICTh KaNbKyJAIIMHUX KapTOK Ha
(bipMOBi cTpaBH Ta iHIII CTPaBU Ta HAIOI, TKUX HEMA€E
B 30ipHHKY pEIenTyp;

- YacTyBaHHs
3aKJIamy;

- HENOTPUMAHHS HOPM pELENTypH ] dYac
MpUKpAIIaHHS CcTpaB (MOXXE TMPHU3BECTH K 10
HAUTUIIKIB, TaK i 0 HeCTayi);

- 3a BIJICYyTHOCTI HEOOXiHOI CHPOBHHH Ha
CKJIaJTi, TOPYIICHHS HOPM 3aKJIaJKH iHTPETI€HTIB;

pe3ynbTari

BiIBiAyBaWiB 3a  pPaxyHOK

- IMPOBCACHHA HepecopTHui TaM, 1€ 1€
HEOPpUITYyCTUMO.
yp aXyBaHHA BHIIC3a3HAYCHUX oco0auBoCTEH

CIpHATAME TPaBWIBHIA opraHizamii 1i mpoBeaeHHS 1
JI03BOJIUTh MiJBUIIMTH €(QEKTUBHICTh BUKOPHCTAHHS
LOTO METOAY (PaKTHYHOTO KOHTPOJIIO.

3a yMOBM  HasBHOCTI Ha  HiANPUEMCTBI
PECTOPaHHOTO TOCIIOAPCTBA CIYKOU BHYTPIIIHBOTO
KOHTpPOJIIO, ~ JIOLUIBHO  BKJIIOYaTH  BHYTPIIIHBOTO
KOHTpoJiepa JI0 CKJIally iHBeHTapu3auiiiHoi komicii. B
TOW € Yac, BHYTPIIIHIM KOHTpOJIEpaM JOIIJIbHO
MepioUIHO MPOBOIUTH i M03aILIAHOBY
igBeHTapm3amito. lle cnpusTIMe OTpUMaHHIO OLTBII
MTOBHOI, JOCTOBIpHOI Ta TOYHOI iH(OpMAIi IIoxO
(axTHYHOI HAsIBHOCTI 3amaciB, yMOB ix 30epiraHas Ta
SIKOCTI.

ITix yac miArOTOBKH 10 IHBEHTapH3aIlii BHYTPIIIIHI
KOHTPOJICPH MalOTh BHUKOHATH IiArOTOBYI Omepariii,
o0patu Buj iHBEHTapH3allii B 3aJeKHOCTI BiJj METH
nepeBipKH, 00paTH YICHIB IHBEHTAPHU3AIIHHOT KOMICIT,
00patu crocoOu MPOBEICHHSI IHBEHTAPH3ALIIT.

[Mpouec mnpoBeJeHHs iHBeHTapu3alii MO)XHa
MOJUIATH HA JeKiJbKa eTamiB: IIArOTOBKA JO
nepeBipku, 6E3MoCepeIHBO caM MPOIEC MEePEBIPKH Ta
MiABeICHHS MiACYMKiB IepeBipkH (puc 2).



EESI East European Scientific Journal #10(62), 2020 41
|| IHBEHTAPU3AIISL ||
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nepeBipka BiJoOpakeHHs B nepeBipKa MpHOyTKOBO- TiepeBipKa nepeBipka HasiBHOCTI
00JTiKy HagXOIKEeHb BUJIaTKOBHX JIOKyMEHTIB (hikcyBaHHS BCIX KaJbKYJSIIIH Ta
CHPOBHHU, XapIOBUX Ta JOKYMEHTIB, 110 CITMCaHb TEXHOJIOTTYHUX
MPOJYKTIB Ta HAIMOIB, Ta MiATBEPDKYIOTh KapTOK Ha BCi CTPaBH
peanizaliif cTpaB Ta HaIoiB BHYTPIIITHE TTePEMiIIeHHS KyxHi i 6apy
I [ I
IMPOLIEC ITEPEBIPKH

e A
| N !
1 1
! [lepepaxyHok ™~ [MPUYMHU: !
> . [~ TiepécopTiiia | :
: AJUTUIIOK - pupo T :
": | 3Ba)KVBaHHS | yOyTOK J\ dikcyBaHHS !
: > - PO3KpajaHHs |  pesynbraris !
i BumiproBanus Hecraua © BHTANKOBL |
I TIOMUJIKH I
1 1
= 2| o |
I = I
'P: | Orasin | i
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[lopiBHAHHS pe3yIbTaTiB
iHBEHTapH3allii 3
0OJIIKOBUMM JTAHUMH

B —

Kontpons
BiTOOpaKeHHS
pe3yabTaTiB B 00Ky

3’scyBaHHS IPUIHH
PO3XO0DKEHb (IIPOBEACHHS
ci1yK60BOTO PO3CITiTyBaHH)

BinoOpakeHHs pe3yIbTartiB y 3BiTi, po3poOKa 3aX0IiB UIs 3aro0iraHHs, HalaHHs PEKOMEH Tallii

IMEPEBATU
[

v v v v v
CBoeyacHe BusierieHsst CBoeyacHe OnepatuBHe CBO€JacHe BKIBAHHS
BUSBIICHHS KOPHTYBaHb BUSIBIICHHS MIPOBEICHHS 3AXO/IB 100 3ar00IraHHs

HEKOHTPOJIGOBAaHNX «GaTHIM TIO3UILTiI- IHBEHTapH3aLIil TIOMIIOK 1 TIOPYIIICHD Y
CKJafIiB YHCTIOMD) «IyOmniKaTiB MalOy THEOMY
A 4 \ 4 A 4 A 4
3anobiraHus Kontpons ymos 3anobiraHHs Kontpons
HeZoJTiKaM 36epiranHs TIepeBUTpaTaM SIKOCTI 3amacis

Puc. 2. Insenmapuzayis ax memoo 6HympiuiHb020 KOHMPOIO NIONPUEMCIMG PECOPAHHOZ0 20CNO0ApPCMEa

[HBeHTapu3amist  SIK  METOJ  BHYTPIIIHBOTO
KOHTPOJIO (PaKTUIHOT HASSBHOCTI CHPOBHHH, XapUOBHUX
MPOAYKTIB, HAMOiB Ta HamiB(paOpHKaTiB, a 0COOINBO
M03aIIaHOBA, PalTOBa Ta BUOIPKOBA, Ma€ psif epeBar
Ta CIPHUATAME BYaCHOMY BHSABIICHHIO MOTIEPEHKEHHIO

BUHUKHEHHA IOMWIOK, PO3KpajaHb, MOpPYyIIEHb Ta
axpaicrs.

ITicnms 3akiHUeHHS TIPOBENEHHS IHBEHTapU3allii
BHYTPIIIHIMH KOHTpOJIEpaMH, ii pe3yibTaTH IOLUIEHO
BiOOpa3WTH y CIIEmialbHOMY pPOOOYOMY ITOKYMEHTI
(Tabm. 3).
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Tabmuus 3
PoOounii nokymeHT «Pe3yJibTaTH NPOBecHHS iHBeHTapHu3aii»
Ne HaiimenyBanHs KinbkicTb 3a ranumu PaxTuyHa IIpruuny BUSABIICHUX Bunna
3/m 3aracy 00Ky KUIBKICTD BIIXIJICHb ocoba
1. CupoBuHa
11. XapuoBi npoaykTu
III. Hamoi
1V. Haniabprikaru
PoGounit JIOKYMEHT 3a IiICYyMKaMH# 3acTocyBaHHA MOJENIOBaHHS KOHTPOJIO JacTh

IHBeHTapu3alii Moxke OyTH CKIAJCHUH OKPEMO s
CKJIaJy, IIeXiB, BAPOOHHUIITBA (KYXHi). A TaK0X OKPEeMO
JUTS KyXHi Ta 6apy Ha po3Cy.l BHYTPIIIHIX KOHTPOJIEPIiB.

Y  mocuneHHi  Ai€eBocTi W eEeKTHBHOCTI
KOHTPOJILHUX MPOLENYp BUSHAYHE MiCIIe IIOCIa€ TiCHA
CriBOpaId 3 MpaliBHUKaMH OyXTaJaTepchbKOi CITyKOM
MiATIPHEMCTBA, SKi, Yy CBOIO depry, IOBHHHI
BUKOHYBaTH KOHTPOJIbHI (D)YHKIIT 3 METOIO BHSBICHHS
Ta 3aro0iraHHs BAHUKHEHHIO TTOPYLIEHb, HEJIOMIKIB Ta
nommiok.  Ilpore, HagMmipHa  3aBaHTa)KEHICTb,
HEJIOCTATHS. KOMIIETEHTHICTh B NMUTAHHIX METOIIB Ta
dbopMm  3miliCHEHHS KOHTPOJIO, TPH3BOAUTH JIO
HEeraTUBHMX HACIIJIKIB y BUIJIAI 3JI0BXKHBaHb 3 OOKY
MaTepiaibHO BIITOBIAJIBHAX ocio CBOIMH
MOCaZOBUMH 00OB’s3KaMH (SIK y BIACHHUX IHTepecax,
TaK i B iHTepecax TPeTiX ocib, ae BCymeped iHTepecam

MiATIPHEMCTBA).

Omxe, 3 METOK 3amo0iraHHs BHHUKHEHHIO
iHpopMamiiHOI acWMeTpii, MOUUTBHO HAJATOJUTH
3B’30K Ta  B3AEMOJII0 MDK  CTPYKTypHUMH

Hipo3/aijaMu mianprueMcTBa. BBaxkaemo 3a HeoOXiaHe
METOJIMKY IPOBEJCHHS BHYTPIIIHBOIO KOHTPOJIIO
BitoOpa3uT B METOAMYHUX pPEKOMEHIAIIAX IS
CIIy’)KOW BHYTpILIHBOTO KOHTPOJIO Ta BKJIIOYUTH
OKpeMi  oOpraHizamiiiHi ~ Momeli  BHYTPIIIHBEOTO
KOHTPOJIO, TOOTO 3a KOXXHUM PO3AUIOM HisUTHHOCTI
HianpreMCTBA (HANPUKIAA, HPOLECH — IOCTaYaHHs-
BHPOOHHUIITBO-Peai3aiisi-o0CIyTOByBaHHS,

(hiHAaHCOBO-PO3pPaxXyHKOBI oOmeparlii, poO3paxyHKH 3

OIUTIaTH Tpari, BHUTPATHU-0X0IU-(DiHAHCOBI
pe3ynbTaTy).

Po3pobiieHy MoOeab BHYTPILIHBOIO KOHTPOJIO
OCHOBHHMX MPOLECIB IJIPHEMCTB PECTOPAHHOTO
roCIoJIapCTBa MPECTABICHO Ha pucC. 3.

3anpornoHoBaHa MO/JIeJNTb BHYTPIIIHBOTO
KOHTPOJIIO OCHOBHHX NpoLIeCiB JISUTBHOCTI

MiIMPUEMCTB PECTOPAHHOIO TOCIOJAPCTBA BPAXOBYE
HACTYITHI MOMEHTH:

- BWJIUICHHA Cy0’€KTiB Ta 00’ €KTIB KOHTPOJIIO i
iX B3a€MO3B’S30K;

- po3noniy 00’€KTiB KOHTPOJIIO 32 OCHOBHUMH
MPOLIECaAMH;

- TepeiK OCHOBHHX BHIB poOir,
MepepaxoBaHUX B IUIaHI Ta MpOrpami BHYTPIITHBOTO
KOHTPOJTIO;

- PO3MOJLI METOiB KOHTPOJIO Ta iX 3aJIeXKHICTh
i3 IpoIecaMu JisSUTBbHOCTI HiATIPHEMCTBA.

3MOT'y HAOYHO BiJTBOPUTU XapaKTEPUCTHKY 00’ €KTIB
KOHTPOJIIO Ta MOTJINOIEHO X BUBYHUTH, BU3HAYUTHUCS 3
KOHTPOJIIOIOUMMH  Cy0’€KTaMH, 1HIUBiTyasli30BaHO
BHU3HAYHTH MEPETiK KOHTPOIBHUX (PYHKIIiH, CIPOCTHTH
iX BHKOHAHHS i THM CaMHM MiJABHIINTA SKOHOMIiUHY
epexTuBHICTH KOHTpOIEo [10].

3a pesyibTaTaMH IPOBEACHOI NEPEBIpKH Ta Ha
MiZICTaBl JaHUX POOOYMX JOKYMEHTIB IMpalliBHUKAMU
Cly)kOM  BHYTPIIIHBOTO  KOHTPOJIO  MPOBOJHUTHCS
00pobOka oTpumaHoi iHpopMallii Ta, i3 3aCTOCYBaHHIM
AQHATITUYHUX METOMIB KOHTPOJIO, OOYHCIIOIOTHCS
MOKa3HUKH, OynyloThCcs Trpadiku Ta Jiarpamu, 3a
JOIIOMOTOI0  SIKUX CTa€ MOXIIMBHUM 3/ CHEHHS
MTOPIBHSIHHS Ta OI[IHKH OJICP’KaHUX PE3yIbTATIB.

JIoKyMEeHTaJIbHUM IiATBEPAKEHHSIM IPOBEICHOT
KOHTPOJIBHOI pOOOTH  TpamiBHUKaMH, Ha  SIKHX
MTOKJIAZICHI (PYHKIIIT BHYTPIIIHBOTO KOHTPOJIO, € 3BITH
npo ii BUKOHAaHHA. Y3araJbHEHHS TaKHX 3BITIB
MOBUHHO TMOKJANaTHUCS Ha KEpIBHUKA  CIyXOH
BHYTPIIIHBOTO KOHTpOI0. e cripustume KoopauHarii
OISUTBHOCTI  YCIX JIAHOK CHCTEMH BHYTPILIHBOTO
KOHTPOJIKO Ta  IIJBHIICHHIO  BIAMOBIAaIHHOCTI
BUKOHaBIB [11].

CriouaTKy JOUITBHNAM € CKJIaJJaHHA [TOTIePEeTHBOT0
3Bity. [licis mepeBipku Ta 0OTOBOPEHHS 3 KEPIBHUKOM
CKJIQIAETBCSL 3BIT TPO PE3yJIbTaTH BHYTPIIIHHOTO
KOHTpoJto abo 3BIiT 3a pe3ynbTaraMH IPOBEICHOL
mepeBipku. KoxeH KepiBHUK CIIy>)KOM BHYTPIITHBOTO
KOHTpOJIIO IpUIMae caMOCTiliHe pIillIeHHS Ipo Te, K
CTPYKTYpPYBAaTH 3BIT, SIKi MUTaHHS JOIIJIBHO PO3KPHUTH,
SKI MaTepiaju B HHOTO BKIIOYATH, K O(OPMIIIOBATU
pesyibratd nepeBipok. Ha wnamy naymky, y 3BiTi
JIOLJTbHO BUCBITJIMTH HACTYIIHI UTAHHS:

- 00’€KT MepeBipKu;

- BUJI IIepeBipKH (IJIaHOBA, PaIrToBa, TEMATHYHa,
BUOIpPKOBa TOIIO);

- METa Ta 3aB/IaHHS IIEPEBIPKH;

- METO/IU NEPEBIPKH;

- TepeNik HOPMaTHBHUX JIOKYMEHTIB (30BHILIHIX
Ta BHYTPIIIHIX), SKAMH KepyBaluCh BHYTPIIIHI
KOHTPOJIEPH ITi/1 YaC BUKOHAHHS KOHTPOJBHUX JIiH;

- Jata/mepion 3AiHCHEHHS MEPEeBipKH Ta Iepiof,
10 TIEPEBIPAETHCS;

- ckiajg pobodoi rpymw;

- TIepeTik NepeBipeHNX JOKYMEHTIB;

- laTa, IepeyiK Ta MOXKIIMBI IPUIMHH TOPYIIEHb 3
MOCWJIAHHSM Ha HOPMATHBHI aKTH, PEKOMEHJAIlii Ta
MIPOMNO3HIIIT (3aX0/I1) MIOAO0 TX YCYHEHHS,
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- BUCHOBOK 3a pe3yJibTaTaM1 nepeBipKM.

BHYTPIIIHIIA KOHTPOJIb
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\
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Puc. 3. Modenv Hympiunbo20 KOHMpPOII0 OCHOBHUX NPOYECI8 NIONPUEMCINE PECIMOPAHHO20 20CHO0APCMEa

Jo 3BiTy HEOOXiIHO AOAATH IDIaH Ta IPOTpaMy
MEPEBIPKU SKIIO TIepeBipKa IUIaHOBAa Ta Korii abo
screenshot OKyMeHTiB, B SKHX OYyJIM BHABJICHI
MIOMMJIKH Ta MOPYIICHHS.

CknageHun 3BiT HaJIA€ThCs BJIACHUKY
MiATIPIEMCTBA 3 0OTOBOPEHHS pe3yNbTaTiB MEePEeBipKU
Ta 3aTBEPPKEHHS 3aXO0/IiB 1 ONPAIFOBaHHA PillleHb, SIKi
CIPUATUMYTh YCYHEHHIO BUSIBICHUX MOpPYLIEHb |
HEOJIKIB i3 3aCTOCYBaHHSM BiAMOBITHUX CAHKITIH.
Ham3BuuaitHO BaXXJIMBOIO € OpTaHi3aIlisi MOHITOPHUHTY
32 BHKOHAaHHSIM PO3pPOOJICHHX 3aXOMIB 1 MPUHHATHX
pillIeHb.

3BiT 03BONIAE  pO3MMPUTH  iH(OpManiiHO-
aHATITUYHE 3a0e3le4YeHHs MPUHHATTS pilleHb Ta
MOHITOPUHTY CTaHy AisUIBHOCTI MiANPHEMCTBA, MIO

CIPUSTAME HOBOMY pIBHIO SIKOCTI JaHUX SIK
IHCTPYMEHTY 00’ €KTUBHOTO YIIPABIiHHS.
BucHoBkn. PesyneraTHBHICTH IAIIBEHOCTI

CITy’)KOM BHYTPIITHBOTO KOHTPOIIIO 3AJIEKHUTH BiJ
pi3HUX (pakTOpiB, OCHOBHHUM 3 SIKUX € BipHE O0OpaHHS
METO/IiB 1 PUHAOMIB IS 3AIMCHEHHS KOHTpOJto. Jliist
MIPaBUIIBHOTO 3JIHCHEHHS BHYTPIIIHHOTO KOHTPOJIIIO
HEOOXiJHO  3aCTOCOBYBaTH  KOHKPETHI  METOIU
KOHTPOJTIO.

VYpaxoBylo4n CydacHWH CTaH BHYTPINTHHOTO
KOHTPOJIIO, HaBEJICHI PO3POOKH, BHECEHI IMTPOTO3HUIIii Ta

peKoMeHAalii 3 YJOCKOHAJIEHHS  METOIMKH
BHYTPIIIHBOTO  KOHTPOJIIO  HiJIPHUEMCTB  cdepu
peCTOpPaHHOTO roCII0/1apCTBa CHIPHUSTUMYTh

MiABUINCHHIO e(EKTHUBHOCTI SK MisIIBHOCTI CITy)XOU
BHYTPIIIHBOTO ~ KOHTPONIFO, TaKk 1  KOXHOTO
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cniBpoOiTHHKA mianpuemcrBa. lle, B cBoro uepry,
JIO3BOJINTH HAJArOAWTH MPOLEC HAJAHHS JOCTOBIPHOT
iHpopMaii o0 CTaHy MiJNPUEMCTBA HOTO BIACHUKY
Ta  TPUAHATTIO  CBOEYAaCHUX Ta  BHBAXKEHHX
YIPaBIiHCHKUX PillIeHb.
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TRANSPORT LOGISTICS IN THE GRAIN MARKET: CURRENT REALITIES AND CHALLENGES

Abstract. The research outlines the current state and trends of grain production by agricultural enterprises in
Ukraine. It is substantiated that an important issue is to provide conditions for storage and transportation of grain
from the producer to the final consumer. The article analyzes the total capacity of simultaneous storage of grain
by elevators in the main grain regions. The volumes of grain transportation by different types of transport are
analyzed. The specifics of grain cargo transportation in the context of different types of transport are outlined. It
is established that the largest grain terminals of Ukraine in terms of transshipment volumes are Yuzhny, Black
Sea, Mykolayiv and Odesa. The TOP 10 river terminals of Ukraine in terms of transshipment volume have been
identified. The analysis showed that the railway is the main mode of grain transport. It is established that the state
of the railway system of Ukraine is the most serious problem and limitation for market participants. At the same
time, road transport is used for transportation over relatively short distances. However, it has limitations due to
low bandwidth. At the same time, water transport can be an important reserve for increasing traffic. This will be
possible only if investment increases and infrastructure is restored. This is especially true in the case of river
transport. It is substantiated that the current growth trends of grain transportation and the current situation of
transport infrastructure require improvement of logistics quality and the formation of new logistics routes,
especially for the development of water logistics.
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The problem statement . The topic of supply
chain and logistics processes for agriculture and food
production is really rather complex. Operators are
responsible for all actions carried out throughout the
chain working with the logistics of such products. The
importance of logistics for the agri-food industry has
become increasingly recognized around the world over
the years. Wherever you are in the world, it is important
that the quality of raw materials is maintained at all
times and reaches its final destination in the consumer
state. This is especially true of food.

Agriculture is one of the most important sectors of
the economy in Ukraine. Today Ukraine is one of the
world's leading producers and exporters of grain. The
growth of world food needs contributes to the
integration of Ukrainian agricultural products into the
EU economy. This is key to making Ukrainian
agricultural products part of the world economy.
However, this result largely depends on the quality of
logistics and the development of appropriate
infrastructure.

There are prospects and opportunities for
increasing food production and supply to markets in
other countries considering the existing potential and
current trends in the food markets in Ukraine. It is
possible to increase the production of raw materials,
process products and form food batches with a large
share of added value. At the same time, there are
reserves for further improvement of logistics because it
is currently a weak link between domestic producers
and foreign buyers.

Certain shortage of elevators, their obsolescence
and the need for modernization is a characteristic
phenomenon for the domestic agricultural sector; low
quality of road infrastructure is a problem for many
regions; the railway needs significant modernization.

The problems of the available logistical support
became especially acute in the conditions of signing the
association between Ukraine and the countries of the
European Union, which significantly increased the
volume of trade. In modern economic conditions, the
markets of European countries are becoming more
accessible to Ukraine, respectively, a significant
number of producers enter into trade agreements with
partners from EU countries. Ukraine increases the
volume of grain exports every year. The above
mentioned necessitates the further development of the
domestic logistics system using progressive world
experience.

Analysis of recent research and publications.
The publications of many researchers focuses on the
development of agriculture and logistics. Thus,
Andriichuk V.H. studied modern agricultural policy,
i.e. its problematic aspects [1]. Many information sites
contain information about grain production in Ukraine
[2]. Holomsha N.Ye and Dziadykevych O.Ya. studied
the prospects of the world grain market [3]. Delz S.V.
researched transport approaches to assess the
effectiveness of logistics schemes for export grain [4].
The official website of the State Statistics Service of

Ukraine contains information on foreign trade,
production and storage of grain [5]. Kvasha S.M. and
llchuk M.M. carried out the economic substantiation of
the program of wheat grain production in Ukraine [6].
Kovalova O.M. assessed the development potential of
the grain subcomplex of the Ukrainian economy [7].
Kozak O.A. and Gryshchenko O.Yu. studied the
development of the grain industry of Ukraine at the
present stage [8]. The logistics of the commodity
market is studied in a monograph edited by Burkynskyi
B.V. and Lisiuk V.M. [9]. Nikishyna O.V. studied the
mechanisms of regulation of the integrated grain
market [10]. Information about the company Nibulon
developing river logistics is reflected in a number of
information  resources [11]. Rodionova M.R.
investigated general approaches to improving the
infrastructure of the grain market [12]. The TOP-15
regions of Ukraine in terms of investment needs in the
construction of elevators are presented on information
resources [13]. Shvydanenko O.H. studied the
economics of the enterprise, i.e. approaches to the
formation of logistics chains [14]. Shpykuliak O.H. and
Materynska O.A. studied the efficiency of grain
production by agricultural enterprises [15]. However, a
significant number of issues related to current trends in
the development of transport logistics need further
research.

The development of grain logistics needs further
research. We mean determining the actual state of grain
logistics; identification of the main trends of recent
years; determining the benefits of freight and the level
of efficiency using different modes of transport;
formation of proposals and prospects for the
development of transportation of grain products, taking
into account the existing needs, as well as prospects for
growth of agricultural production in Ukraine.

Ukrainian grain logistics was chosen as the object
of research, as trends in the agro-industrial complex
and growing volumes of grain exports through
seaports require finding better ways to improve freight
efficiency by reducing costs and optimizing logistics
chains.

The aim of the article is to research the current
state and prospects of transport logistics in the grain
market.

The task of this research is to assess the total
capacity of simultaneous storage of grain at existing
elevators, analysis of the current state of grain
transportation by various modes of transport, ranking
of the largest grain terminals in Ukraine by
transshipment and outlining short-term and long-term
prospects for transport logistics in the grain market.

The main part. Logistics plays an important role
in the current conditions of rapid development of
international trade. Logistics management may include
such business functions as transportation management,
fleet management, warehousing, materials handling,
order fulfillment, inventory management, and demand
planning.
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The research of the grain logistics market should
be started from the analysis of growing products and
the availability of containers for its storage. The TOP
regions in terms of total grain harvest are presented in
Figure 1. It should be noted that no region has sufficient
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capacity to store grown grain. The above mentioned
necessitates the planning of logistics chains in order to
supply products from producers to domestic and
foreign consumers.
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Fig. 1. Total simultaneous storage capacity of elevators
Source: based on data [5].

It should be noted that Odesa, Poltava, Vinnytsia
and Dnipropetrovsk regions have the leading positions
assessing the elevator capacity for storage of grain
crops. In 2010-2020 these regions modernized the
existing logistics systems and managed to increase
significant storage capacity. This allows producers of
these regions to sell their products at a time when prices
are most optimal for them.

Manufacturers, packers, processors, distributors,
retailers, food suppliers and consumers have a shared

responsibility to ensure the best logistics connection
from the producer (from the agricultural enterprise) to
the final consumers (they can be in any corner of the
planet).

The need to modernize the logistics system is
applied to products or goods. Transport is an important
component in logistics chains. However, it should be
noted that different types of transport are used. Rail
transport is the most popular for domestic
transportation of products (Fig. 2).
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Fig. 2. Volumes of grain transportation by different types of transport, thousand tons, 2019
Source: based on data [5].

Although many small businesses focus on
developing and manufacturing their products and
services to best meet customer needs, long-distance
product delivery is needed. In order for a business to be
profitable, you need a well-coordinated logistics
system. The more efficiently raw materials can be
purchased, transported and stored for use, the more
profitable a business can be. Accordingly, an important
role is played by transportation.

Each type of transport has its own specifics and
features of appliction, it is manifested in the logistics of

grain. Thus, rail transport has a limited capacity of
linear elevators. The problem of road transport in
Ukraine is a problematic issue for road transport. As far
as water transport is concerned, the problem is to
reduce the operational length of rivers (Fig. 3). The
above problems of operation of different modes of
transport are typical especially in the transportation of
grain. As Ukraine is one of the world's leading grain
producers, logistics is extremely important.

>
|$ by rail.

Railway transport

> limitation of capacity of linear elevators on daily
loading;
> limited capacity of transport railway stations;

limited capacity of port grain terminals for unloading

Road transport

> the problematic issue is the condition of roads,
|$ insufficient number of specialized vehicles.

Water transport $ >

> reducing the operational length of rivers;
reducing the operational depths of major rivers.

Fig. 3. Specifics of grain cargo transportation in terms of different types of transport
Source: based on data [13, 16].

The study of the specifics of grain transportation
in the context of different modes of transport, allows us
to argue about the existing problems in logistics.

Currently, the existing transport systems cannot fully
ensure the transport of agricultural products from
growing areas to ports, which are mainly concentrated
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in the south of the country. Excessive load on highways
is typical, resulting in significant destruction and
damage to the latter.

It is important to ensure timely supply and
compliance with logistics chains in the logistics of
agricultural products, namely grain. If products cannot
be manufactured and shipped on time, customer
satisfaction may decline, which will also negatively
affect the company's profitability and long-term
viability.

The analysis showed that the railway is the main
type of grain transport. At the same time, the state of
Ukraine's railway system was recognized as the most
serious problem and limitation for market participants.
At the same time, road transport is used for
transportation over relatively short distances. However,
it has limitations due to low bandwidth. The
development of water transport has significant
prospects for Ukraine. Water transport can be an

important reserve for increasing traffic. However, this
will only be possible if investment increases and
infrastructure is restored.

Considering the specifics of the grain industry we
should mention that an important role belongs to grain
terminals providing grain transshipment. The largest
grain terminals of Ukraine in terms of transshipment
volumes are Yuzhnyi STP, Black Sea STP, Mykolayiv
STP and Odesa STP (Fig. 4).

The annexation of Crimea had a significant impact
on logistics in Ukraine, it necessitated the reformatting
of logistics flows. Nowadays the seaport Yuzhnyi is
leading in terms of grain transshipment, it is located in
the town of Yuzhne on the Black Sea coast. According
to open sources of information (American Association
of Port Authorities), in 2015 the seaport Yuzhnyi
ranked 91st in terms of total cargo turnover among the
world ports [16].

Brooklyn Eyiv (Odessa 5TP) _ 9§36

Illichivsk grain terminal (Black Sea STFP) [N - |

Agricultural Enterprise MNibulon
(Idykolaiy 3TF)

Transbulkterminal (Black Sea STP) [N 3,110

T1S Zemo (Yuzhayi STZ) | .32

0
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Fig. 4. Most grain-growing terminals of Ukraine after the volumes of crossing, volumes of crossing,
thousand tons per year
Source: based on data [5, 13].

Considering the growth of grain production and its
exports increase domestic logistics with river transport
application is gaining considerable relevance.

In 2019 the top 10 river terminals of Ukraine in
terms of transshipment volume are presented in Figure
5. The first place (3.284 million tons) is occupied by
the transshipment terminal for transshipment of grain
and oil cargo in the city of Mykolayiv, which belongs
to Nibulon. The second place (2.2 million tons) is

occupied by the Kyiv river port. Third place (1.6
million tons) is occupied by Zaporizhzhia river port
owned by Ukrrichflot. The arrangement of river
infrastructure and its adaptation are rather problematic.
It is necessary to clear riverbeds and cultivate the area.
The above mentioned measures require appropriate
public and private funding, creating favorable
conditions for attracting domestic and foreign
investment.
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Fig. 5. TOP 10 river Ukrainian terminals by volume of transshipment in 2019
Source: based on data [5, 16].

Over the last two decades, the flow of grain has
increased dramatically, mainly due to the effects of
elements such as the concentration of production
systems and the globalization of sales. The transport of
agricultural goods plays an important role in the
logistics system and should therefore be evaluated and
thoroughly researched to achieve the best results.

Conclusions. Agriculture is one of the most
important sectors of the economy in Ukraine. Today
Ukraine is one of the world's leading producers and
exporters of grain. The growth of world food needs
contributes to the integration of Ukrainian agricultural
products into the global logistics system. This is key to
making the Ukrainian economy part of the EU
economy. However, this result will depend on the
available logistics.

It is important to ensure timely supply and
compliance with logistics chains in the logistics of
agricultural products, namely grain. It should be noted
that none of the regions of Ukraine has sufficient
capacity for grain storage, which necessitates
investment in this industry.

Taking into account the specifics of the grain
industry, an important role belongs to grain terminals
providing grain transshipment. Yuzhnyi STP, Black
Sea STP, Mykolayiv STP and Odessa STP are the
largest grain terminals in Ukraine in terms of
transshipment volumes.

Current trends in the growth of grain
transportation and the current situation of transport
infrastructure require improved logistics quality and the
formation of new logistics routes taking into account
the development of water logistics and infrastructure
investment.

The study found that the annexation of Crimea had
a significant impact on logistics in Ukraine, it
necessitated the reformatting of logistics flows and the
need to modernize other existing logistics hubs. As of
2019, the championship in terms of grain transshipment
belongs to the seaport located in the city of Yuzhne. At
the same time, the change in logistics routes has caused
an excessive load on the roads. Currently, the existing
transport systems (highways) cannot fully ensure the
transportation of agricultural products from growing
areas to ports mainly concentrated in the south of the
country. The ongoing process of road construction and
repair requires significant investment and slows down
the movement of agricultural products. The above
necessitates the systematic development of various
modes of transport.

A promising area of further research is the study
of foreign experience, namely European, on the
development of the logistics system. It is important for
Ukraine to study approaches to the introduction of
green logistics in order to minimize the negative
anthropogenic impact on the environment.
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Abstract. The article examines and analyzes global and national goals of sustainable urban development. The
results of the First Voluntary National Review of SDG in Ukraine have been evaluated. Positive results were noted
in terms of insuring the availability of housing; increasing the number of monuments of national importance
included in the State Register of Immovable Monuments of Ukraine. Unsatisfactory results of the review are
analyzed and ways to overcome obstacles to achievement are identified. It was found that in modern Ukrainian
realities the vector of sustainable urban development is inclusion as a vector of economic development and direct
participation of the population in its achievement, including decision-making on economic growth, based on full
access to their rights and opportunities. In order to solve the problem of sustainable urban development on the
basis of inclusion, which we have identified as fundamental, a number of measures have been proposed.
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Problem statement. Large and medium-sized
cities are identified as the centers of growth of the
country in the modern world due to the high
concentration of economic, infrastructural, intellectual,
innovative, technological, and social potential for
development. Modern cities are the centers of
generation and implementation of new ideas,
technologies and concepts of sustainable development,
such as “smart city”, “e-city”, “green city” and others.
They are testing the best practices of local government
- e-government, Bank ID system, and a city resident
card.

That is why the level of development of the whole
country depends on the level of local development, its
competitive  advantages, its  self-identification,
creativity and innovation. So, issues related to
sustainable urban development are of paramount
importance in the global activities of international
organizations and communities. Urban development is
the subject of consideration in local governmental and
intergovernmental programs and a lot of researches of
domestic and foreign scientists and practitioners.

Analysis of recent research and publications.
The works of domestic and foreign scientists and
practitioners are devoted to the study of theoretical and
practical provisions of sustainable urban development
in  modern conditions: A. V. Demianiuk, S.V.
Zelenskyi, A.A. Mozhovyi, S.V. Kapitanets, A.V.
Kovalevska, O.l. Laiko, R.V. Petrova, O.B. Tsyklauri,
Z. V. Chekhovych. Foreign experience of urban
development is considered in the works of M.V.
Voichuk, O.V. Hrihorieva, L. Polska, N.V.
Khvyshchun, V. Y. Chevhanova.

Allocation of previously unsolved parts of the
problem. Taking into consideration the significant
contribution of the scientific community to the study of
urban development in modern conditions, we note the
insufficient level of research in the context of the
complex role of socio-economic inclusion. Socio-
economic inclusion is designed to identify common
needs of the population, businesses and local
authorities to group available resources and achieve
common goals.

The aim of the study. The main task of this
research is to identify the issue of sustainable urban
development in modern conditions in order to provide
proposals for its solution.

The main material. In 2015 the UN Summit on
Sustainable Development was held as part of the 70th
session of the UN General Assembly in New York and
new vectors of development were selected. The final
document of the Summit “Transforming our world: an
agenda for sustainable development until 2030~
approved 17 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGS).
Like other UN member states, Ukraine has also joined
the global process of sustainable development and is
currently undergoing a large-scale process of

implementing the SDG in line with the Ukrainian
context.

Therefore, solving the problem of sustainable
urban development has become one of the Global Goals
both at the international level and in Ukraine (Fig. 1).
However, as we can see, the adaptation of SDG 11 to
the Ukrainian realities is somewhat generalized,
compared to the significant and purposeful content of
the global goal of sustainable urban development.

The adaptation of goals does not take into account
the goal of enabling the population to use safe,
economically viable, accessible, environmentally
friendly transport systems, as well as their adaptation
for certain categories of the population - people with
disabilities, the older adults and parents with children.
Taking into account that the transport infrastructure is
currently in poor condition and is significantly affected
by destructive phenomena in the industry due to a
number of problems, we consider it necessary to
include this item in the goal of sustainable
development.

At the same time, the goal of sustainable urban
development directly and unilaterally affects the
implementation of a number of other goals, as the
issues of well-being, health, ecology, education,
solving social problems are implemented at the local
level.

In 2020 the first Voluntary National Review of
SDG in Ukraine was conducted, which is devoted to
studying the issues of transformational changes in
society on the way to achieving SDG. The monitoring
results are shown in Table 1

Therefore, the full transformation in solving the
problem of sustainable urban development was the full
approval and implementation by all regions of Ukraine
of regional strategies developed together with the
public. However, it should be noted that this is a
priority condition for allocating funds from the state
fund of regional development.

In accordance with the task of ensuring affordable
housing, the procedure for citizen participation in the
affordable housing program, the mechanism of which
was approved in 2018, has been improved. The
government’s action resulted in a reduction in the
borrower’s solvency ratio from 0.36 in 2015 to 0.19 in
2019. In addition, according to the Ministry of
Development of Communities and Territories of
Ukraine, there are programs that provide affordable
housing for various categories of citizens. These
programs cover 100% of the country’s regions.

A positive aspect of solving the problem of
sustainable urban development is the reduction of
pollutant emissions from stationary sources of air
emissions to 86.1% in 2019 from the level of 2015.
Ukraine’s European integration processes have led to
this reduction, including the implementation of
Directive 2008/50 / EU and Directive 2004/107 / EC
led to approval in 2019.
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Figure. 1. Global and national goals in ensuring the implementation of sustainable development
of cities and communities [1]

There is the procedure for state monitoring in the  implementation of state policy in the field of industrial
field of air protection. In addition, in accordance with  pollution for 10 years. It announces the reduction of
the provisions of Directive 2010/75 / EU, the industrial pollution as well as increased control over it.
government has implemented the Concept for the
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The results of monitoring the implementation of the goal
“Sustainable development of cities and communities” [2]

Table 1.

Tasks

Indicators

201
5

201
6

201
7

201
8

201
9

2020
(benchmar
k)

State

2025
(benchmar

2030
(benchmar
K)

To ensure
housing
affordability

Payment-to-
income
ratio, PTI
(the ratio of
monthly
expenses of
the borrower
and his/her
family
members to
pay the debt
on a soft
mortgage
loan obtained
from the
state or local
budget and
their total
monthly
income))

0,36

05

0.2

0,2

01

to be
specified

Coverage of
administrative
units of
Ukraine,
programs to
provide
affordable
housing for
different
categories of
citizens,%

100

100

100

100

100

100

Proportion of regions that have approved and implemented
regional development strategies and action plans for their
implementation, developed with public participation,%

Regional
strategy

88

100

100

100

100

100

Action plan
for the
implementati
on of the
regional
strategy (first
stage)

64

96

100

Regional
strategy and
action plan
for the
implementati
on of the
regional
strategy
(second
stage)

64

84

92

100

Achieved

to be specified

100

100

100

100

To ensure
the
preservation

Number of
cultural and
natural

Almost
unattainab
le

11

13
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of cultural heritage sites
and natural included in
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the UNESCO
involvement World
of the private Heritage
sector List, units
Number of
monuments
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included in
the State 891 | 891 | 906 | 956 | 992 1005 Achieved 1155 1305
Register of
Immovable
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of Ukraine,
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nature proltggl\)ﬂillity
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To ensure
the
development
and
implementati
on of local
development
strategies
aimed at
economic
growth, job
creation,
tourism
development
, recreation,
local culture
and local
production

Number of
employees in
tourism
entities

54 421
55413
58 588
62 585

obe Almost

- : unattainab

specified Ie to be specified

Positive dynamics is also observed. An effort was
being made to ensure the preservation of cultural and
natural heritage with the involvement of the private
sector. Thus, the number of immovable monuments of
Ukraine and monuments of national importance, which
are included in the State Register in 2019 compared to
2015, has increased significantly by 101 units,
amounting to 11%.

Understanding and valuing the cultural heritage of
the state have become a prerequisite for such result. In
addition, changing approaches to accounting of
immovable cultural heritage, including the introduction
of electronic accounting and development of technical
requirement in accordance with the information system
of electronic accounting of immovable cultural
heritage, has led to digitized and standardized
accounting processes in the sphere of cultural heritage.

The introduction and implementation of a number
of regulations concerning the creation and expansion of
territories and objects of nature reserves of national
importance in 2019 increased the area of nature
reserves in Ukraine to 4.24% of its total territory. The
situation has improved. The figure is +0.5% compared
to 2015. A part of the area is UNESCO World Heritage
Site.

In the organizational aspect, the preservation of
cultural and natural heritage has become very
important. It is significant to develop measures to
improve the skills of workers in the field of cultural
heritage protection and pass the mandatory
certification. A significant organizational
transformation is the adaptation of the provisions of the
Nicosia Convention in 2017. It defines the provisions
on threats to cultural heritage. Criminal liability for
crimes against cultural heritage is also being
introduced, as well as specialized cultural police units
are being set up to protect and physically protect
cultural heritage.

We see a close relationship between the tasks of
ensuring the preservation of cultural and natural
heritage with the involvement of the private sector and
ensuring the development and implementation of local
development strategies. They aimed at economic

growth, job creation, tourism development, recreation,
local culture and local production. So in 2018 in the
number of employees in tourism increased by 8,164
compared to 2015 due to the implementation of the
Strategy for the development of tourism and resorts for
the period up to 2026 and active measures of the
government to support entrepreneurship in the country.

However it is worth noting the emergence in 2020
of an uncontrollable factor that had a devastating effect
on tourism - the COVID-19 pandemic. We consider it
necessary to introduce a number of measures in the
aspect and in terms of development of tourism in
Ukraine for sustainable urban development: to monitor
and analyze the tourist potential of the country’s
regions in order to create a tourist portal; to develop a
system for ensuring the safety of tourists; to develop a
special program to support tourism entities (tax
holidays and interest-free loans), which is aimed at
financial protection of enterprises from economic
threats caused by force majeure (the COVID-19
pandemic is an example).

Given a number of positive developments in
sustainable urban development, socio-economic issues
of global and local urban development remain
unresolved. So the global problems of sustainable
urban development are groups related to:

1. economic sphere of society by groups of
problems - natural resources; scientific and
technological; geo-economic.

2. social sphere of society by groups of problems
- demographic, income;

3. geopolitical sphere of society by groups of
problems - changing the model of world order; centers
of forces and their regrouping and aggravation of their
counteraction; international terrorism;

4. cultural sphere of society by groups of
problems - change of values - Western model;
intensification of organized crime;

5. ecological sphere of society by groups of
problems - air pollution; climate change; depletion of
resources; reduction of biological species; reduction of
flora and fauna.
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In fact the real threats to the socio-economic,
political and environmental security of sustainable
development of Ukrainian cities are lack of external
financing and reduced opportunities for access to
international capital markets; low rates of the world
economy recovery; termination of investment plans by
foreign enterprises or postponement of their
implementation due to macroeconomic uncertainty;
escalation of the Ukrainian-Russian conflict;
insufficiently fast implementation of reforms or their
purposeful inhibition; maintaining a low level of
lending activity of commercial banks; growing state
budget deficit and cash gaps in the Pension Fund and
other state social insurance funds; strengthening of
devaluation tendencies in the foreign exchange market;
shortage of energy resources in the country; and social
confrontation.

We believe that at the local level insufficiently
safe and comfortable life in cities should be included in

the cycle of current unresolved issues; imperfect
municipal self-government; unhealthy lifestyle; lack of
energy efficient and energy saving usage; low
investment attractiveness; inefficient budget policy of
municipalities;  the  difficulty of  obtaining
administrative  services; and over-regulation of
business.

We believe that this is a serious number of
problems that require multi-vector solutions for the
implementation of sustainable urban development
projects. An example is the position of the EU, which
considers the city a driver of intellectual, sustainable
and inclusive capacity development. In the general
vision of the city of the future, the EU countries
combine three concepts: “smart city”, “green city”,
“inclusive city”. The dominant theory is “smart city”.
In our opinion, preference should be given to the
concept of “inclusive development” in Ukraine, which
is considered at the international level (Fig. 2).

The position of Sustainable and fast development of all sectors of the economy, which aftracts a
the World [ significant part of the country’s labor resources and is characterized by equal
Bank opportunities in access to the labor market and resources [3]
DE_C_D Stable and comprehensive development for emplovment opporfunities;
position | development that needs support of public mstiutions in order to solve problems
in the labor market [4]
Position of the
International
Center for The result of ensuring vniversal participation in the growth process both
Inclusive —* in terms of decision-making and in the creation of stable growth [3]
Development
Policy
Position of the The process of ensuring a high level of emplovment. investing in
Furopean —* edocation, overcoming poverty, modernizing labor markets, social
Commission protection systems and promoting social cohesion [6]
P;igﬁ:;;ii& Inﬁeasif:lg growth rates by providing a single space for investment and
Monetary —* productive employment [7]
Fund
Strategy of Economic growth, which creates maxitiumn opportunities for all population to
sustainable - find a job and participation in all spheres of life of the country, as well as ensures a
development fair distribution of labor results. [8]
of Ukraine for
the period up
to 2030

Figure 2. International definition of the category “inclusive development”
in the context of sustainable urban development

Analyzing the definition of  “inclusive
development” in the context of sustainable urban
development, provided by international organizations,
we can conclude that there are two vectors: economic
development and direct participation of the population
in its achievement. Here it is also about including

decision-making on economic growth, on the basis of
full access to the realization of their rights and
opportunities.

The issue of inclusive development in the context of
sustainable development of the city today is extremely
important for Ukraine. It needs to be addressed as soon as
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possible, because according to the Global Competitiveness
Index on “Social Capital”, Ukraine took a critical 118th
place out of 140 which causes distrust in the society and
makes sustainable development impossible.

Therefore, we consider the formation of
inclusion for its inhabitants as the main vector of
sustainable development of the city. Moreover, it is
important to focus not only on logically defined
categories - people with disabilities - physical, age or
financial, who need protection, but to understand the
fact that the objects and subjects of inclusion in the
context of sustainable development of the city are
three parties: the population of the city, business
entities engaged in economic activities in the city and
local governments.

We believe that sustainable development of the
city is possible only with the interaction of these
parties - taking into account their needs, functions and
resources. Unfortunately, nowadays today the
population is not involved in economic development.
Business is too regulated by the state and local
governments lack support and loyalty on the part of
the population and entrepreneurs.

We have identified the problem of sustainable
urban development as fundamental one. In order to
solve the problem of sustainable urban development
on the basis of inclusion we consider it necessary to
provide:

e implementation of territorially oriented urban
development policy, based on stimulating the
development of their potential and resources;

e permanent monitoring of the implementation
of approved urban development strategies based on
smart specialization. This is an approach in which
preference is given to regional interests in national
policy through the vertical construction of priority
sectors choice or areas of state support, and secondly -
regional specialization is formed by pooling the
resources of all actors in the region;

o support of different researches and innovative
developments in the field of the creative industry and the IT
field.

Conclusions and suggestions. Solving the
problem of sustainable urban development is one of the
Global Goals both at the international level and in
Ukraine. However, its adaptation to Ukrainian realities
is generalized. The problems of transport and transport
infrastructure are not taken into account in the context
of this task. We consider it necessary to include this
item in the goal of sustainable development because the
transport infrastructure is currently in poor condition
and is significantly affected by destructive phenomena
in the industry due to a number of problems.

According to the results of the First Voluntary
National Survey concerning SDGs in Ukraine, positive
results were noted in terms of: ensuring the availability
of housing; increase the number of monuments of
national importance included in the State Register of
Immovable Monuments of Ukraine. Given a number of

positive  developments in  sustainable urban
development, socio-economic issues of global and
local urban development remain unresolved. So, the
global problems of sustainable urban development are
groups related to the economic, social, geopolitical,
cultural and environmental spheres of society.

It is determined that it is necessary to focus on the
implementation of the principles of inclusion during the
development of the concept of sustainable development
of the city. In order to solve the problem of sustainable
urban development on the basis of inclusion, we
propose the implementation of territorially oriented
urban development policy, based on stimulating the
development of their potential and resources;
conducting  permanent  monitoring  of  the
implementation of approved urban development
strategies based on smart specialization, an approach
that is given priority to regional interests in national
policy through the vertical construction of the selection
of priority sectors or areas of state support. Secondly,
regional specialization is formed by combining the
resources of all actors in the region; support for
research and innovative developments in the creative
industry and the field of information technology is very
significant nowadays.
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ANALYSIS OF THE STATE OF FIXED ASSETS AT ENTERPRISES AND METHODOLOGICAL
APPROACHES TO ITS IMPLEMENTATION: THE EXPERIENCE OF UKRAINE

Mynwvik Tamvana Anexceesna
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KAHOUOAam dKOHOMUYECKUX HaYK, O0YeHm

doyenm Kagedpvl ayouma u 20Cy0apCcmeeHHo20 KOHMpPOoIs,
Bunnuykuti Hayuonanvuslil acpapuslil yHugepcumem, Bunnuya.

AHAJIN3 OCHOBHBIX CPEACTB HA ITPEANPUATUAX U METOAUYECKHUE MMOAXOAbI
K EI'O TIPOBEJEHUIO: OIIBIT YKPAUHDbI

Summary. The analysis of fixed assets at the enterprises of Ukraine is carried out. The dynamics of changes
in the initial value, residual value and the degree of depreciation of fixed assets of Ukrainian enterprises in 2000-
2018 is estimated. The value of fixed assets of Ukraine was assessed by type of economic activity (NACE-2010)
in 2014-2018. The dynamics of changes in the value of fixed assets in the field of agriculture in 2013-2018 is
estimated. It is determined, that the main means of production of enterprises are not used efficiently. It is
established, that further increase in the efficiency of their use can be achieved in an intensive way, namely: by
replacing some outdated technologies with new, computerized ones, that will accelerate production and increase
productivity; reconstruction of those production sites and equipment, that are "bottlenecks", that is restrain the
possibility of increasing production; organization of training and retraining of engineers and key production
workers, who will be responsible for the implementation of new advanced equipment and work on it. The role of
analysis in the management of fixed assets is determined. Emphasis is placed on the fact, that the method of
analysis of fixed assets should take into account a number of fundamental positions. The tasks, stages, methods,
information sources of the analysis of fixed assets are covered. The analysis of methodical approaches of authors
to the decision of problems of the economic analysis of the fixed assets is carried out. The views of scientists on
the areas of economic analysis of fixed assets are systematized. The views of scientists on the application of various
indicators to analyze the effectiveness of fixed assets are summarized. The author's approach, which provides the
realization of the analysis in the context of such areas as analysis of the dynamics of the active part of fixed assets
of enterprises and development of proposals for their improvement, analysis of the intensity of the movement of
the active part of fixed assets and development of proposals for the speed of their renewal, analysis of technical
conditions of the active part of fixed assets and selection of proposals to improve their quality is offered.

AHHOTa].[l/Iﬂ. OCYH.[GCTBJ'IGH aHaJIn3 OCHOBHBIX CPEACTB HA MPEANPHUATHAX YKpaI/IHLI. OL[eHGHbI JAWHAMUKY
H3MCHEHUH HepBOHa‘IaJ‘ILHOfI CTOUMOCTH, OCTATOYHOM CTOMMOCTH M CTEIICHM H3HOCA OCHOBHBIX CpCACTB
npeanpustuit Ykpaunsl B 2000-2018 rogax. IlpoBeneHa orieHKa CTOMMOCTH OCHOBHBIX CPEACTB YKpPaWHBI 110
BUgaM 3KkoHOMHUYeckoi nestenbHOCTH (KBJD/[-2010) B 2014-2018 rogax. OueHeHbl JUHAMHKA W3MEHEHUH
CTOMMOCTH OCHOBHBIX CPEJICTB B OTPACiH ceJbckoro xo3sicTra B 2013-2018 romax. OnpeneneHo, 9T0 OCHOBHBIE
MIPOM3BOJICTBEHHBIE CPEJICTBA MPEANPHUIATHH HUCTIONB3YIOTCS He 3QQEeKTHBHO. YCTAaHOBJIEHO, YTO JaJbHEHIEro
IIOBBIIIICHUS 3(1)(1)CKTI/IBHOCTI/I HX UCIOJB30BaAHUA MOXKHO JOCTUYb HMHTCHCUBHBIM ITYTEM, a8 UMCHHO: IIPOBEACHUEM
3aMCHbI 4aCTH YCTAapEBUINX TEXHOJIOTUH Ha HOBBIC, KOMIIBIOTCPU3UPOBAHHBIC TEXHOJIOTHUHU, KOTOPEBIC 6y)1yT
CI10cO0CTBOBATH YCKOPCHUIO MNPOU3BOACTBA W TMOBBIICHUIO MPOU3ZBOAUTCIIBHOCTU TpyAa; IMPOBECACHUCM
PCKOHCTPYKIUHN TCX MMPOU3BOACTBCHHBIX YUACTKOB U 060pyz:013aH1/I${, KOTOPBIC SABJISAIOTCA «Y3KUMU MECTaMU», TO
€CTb CACPIKHMBAOT BO3MOKHOCTH  YBCJIUYCHUSA 00BEMOB IPpOU3BOACTBA, OpFaHHBaHHeﬁ 06y‘{eHI/I$I u
MEPEenoAroTOBKM HHIKCHECPHO-TCXHUYCCKUX paﬁOTHI/IKOB U OCHOBHBIX HNPOU3BOACTBCHHBIX pa60q1/1x, 6y,I[yT
OTBEYATh 34 BHEAPECHUEC HOBOI'O MPOIrpeCCUBHOIO 060py)1013aH1/1>1 u pa6OTaTB Ha HEM. Onpe)leneHa POJIb aHaIM3a
B YIIPABJICHUH OCHOBHBIMU CPEICTBAMMU. AKHGHTI/IpOBaHO BHHUMAaHHEC, YTO METOJUKA aHaJIn3a OCHOBHBIX CPECJICTB
JOJDKHA YYCCTh pAd NPUHIUITHAIBHBIX MOJ0XKEHUH. OCBGH_ICHI)I, 3aga4u, STarbl, METOAbI, I/IH(i)OpMaHI/IOHHI)IC
HNCTOYHHUKHN aHajin3a OCHOBHBIX CPEACTB. HpOBe}leH aHaJIM3 METOAUYCCKUX IMMOAXOOOB aBTOPOB K PCIICHHUIO
npo6neM 3KOHOMHYECKOro aHajin3a OCHOBHBIX. CI/ICTeMaTI/I3I/IpOBaHI>I B3rJIAAbl YYEHBIX I10 HaIPaBJICHHUAM
MPOBEJICHUSI YKOHOMUYECKOTO aHajn3a OCHOBHBIX cpencTB. OOOOIICHBI B3MISIABI YYEHBIX 1O MPUMEHEHHIO
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pa3NMYHbIX IOKa3aresiell as aHanu3a S(PQEKTUBHOCTH HCIOIb30BAaHHUS OCHOBHBIX cpeicTB. llpemioskeHo
ABTOPCKUX ITOJIX0J1, KOTOPBIH MPEAIoaracT OCyIeCTBICHIE aHaIN3a B Pa3pe3e TaKUX HaIlpaBJICHUH, KaK aHaJIN3
JMHAMHMKH aKTUBHOM YacTH OCHOBHBIX CPEJICTB NMPEANPUSTHH M BBIPaOOTKA MPEITIOKEHUH MO MX YIYYIICHHUIO,
aHaJIM3 MHTEHCUBHOCTH JABMKCHUSI aKTHUBHON YaCTH OCHOBHBIX CPEACTB U pa3pabOoTKa NPeI0KEHNUH 10 CKOPOCTH
X OOHOBJICHMS, aHAIM3 TEXHUYECKOTO COCTOSHHMS AKTHMBHOW YacTH OCHOBHBIX CpEICTB W BBIICICHHE
NPE/II0KEHHS 110 MOBBIIICHUIO X Ka4ecTBa.

AHoTanis. 37iiicHeHO aHali3 OCHOBHHX 3aco0iB Ha miAmpueMcTBax YKpainu. OmiHEHO TUHAMIKY 3MiH
MIEPBICHOI BaPTOCTI, 3AJIMIIKOBOI BAPTOCTI Ta CTYIICHIO 3HOCY OCHOBHHX 3ac00iB miampueMcTB Yipainu y 2000—
2018 pokax. [IpoBeneHo OIIHKY BapTOCTi OCHOBHUX 3ac00iB YKpainu 3a Bugamu ekoHoMmigHOI gisttbHOCTI (KBE/I-
2010) y 2014-2018 poxax. OmiHeHO qHAMiKa 3MiH BAPTOCTI OCHOBHHUX 3aCO0IB B ralfy3i CUTBCHKOTO TOCIIONAPCTBA
y 2013-2018 pokax. Busnadueno, mo ocCHOBHi BUpOOHIYi 3aCO0H i JIPHUEMCTB BUKOPHUCTOBYIOTHCS HE €(DeKTHBHO.
BcraHoBNEHO, IO MOJANIBIIOTO MiABUINEHHS €()EKTUBHOCTI iX BUKOPHCTAHHS MOXIIMBO JOCSTTH IHTCHCHBHUM
HIISIXOM, a caMe: IPOBEACHHAM 3aMiHU YaCTHHU 3aCTapUIMX TEXHOJIOTiH Ha HOBI, KOMIT IOTEPH30BaHi TEXHOJIOT],
AKi OyIyTh CHpHSITH IPUCKOPEHHIO BUPOOHMITBA Ta IIJBHIICHHIO NPOJYKTHBHOCTI Ipalli; NPOBEICHHAM
PEKOHCTPYKIii THX BHPOOHUYUX MAUIBHUIDG 1 OONagHAHHS, SKI € «BY3bKUMH MICLSIMH», TOOTO CTPUMYIOTH
MOXJIMBOCTI 301JbLICHHS OOCSTiB BHPOOHUIITBA; OpraHi3ali€l0 HAaBYaHHS Ta IEPEHiArOTOBKH IH)XKEHEPHO-
TEXHIYHHX TPaliBHUKIB Ta OCHOBHUX BUPOOHHYMX POOITHUKIB, sIKi OyAyTh BiIIOBIIaTH 32 BIPOBAKEHHS HOBOTO
MPOTPECHBHOTO OOJIaHAHHS Ta TPAIIOBaTH Ha HHOMY. BH3HadeHO poNlb aHaNi3y B YHPaBIiHHI OCHOBHUMH
3aco0aMu. AKIIGHTOBAaHO yBary, {0 METOJMKA aHAJIi3y OCHOBHUX 3aC001B MOBUHHA BPaxXyBaTH Psi/ IIPHHIUIIOBHUX
MOJIOXKCHb. BUCBITICHO, 3aBOaHHSA, €Tamy, METONHW, iH(OpMAIifHI [DKepera aHami3y OCHOBHHX 3aco0iB.
IIpoBeneHo aHami3 METOOUYHUX IMIAXOJIB aBTOPIB O BUPIMNICHHS MPOOJIEM €KOHOMIYHOTO aHANi3y OCHOBHHX.
CucteMaTH30BaHO TOTJIIIM BUCHMX MIONO HANpPSIMIB NPOBEICHHS €KOHOMIYHOTO aHalli3y OCHOBHHX 3acoOiB.
Y3araipHEeHO OIS BUCHHX 100 3aCTOCYBaHHS Pi3HNX IMOKAa3HUKIB UL aHAi3y e()eKTHBHOCTI BUKOPUCTAHHSA
OCHOBHHX 3ac00iB. 3alIpOITIOHOBAHO aBTOPCHKUX MiIXif, SIKMH mepeabauae 3AiHCHEHHs aHali3y B pPO3pi3i TaKuX
HarnpsMiB, SIK aHali3 JUHAMIKM aKTHBHOI YaCTWHHM OCHOBHHUX 3aCO0IB MiANPHUEMCTB 1 BUPOOJICHHS MPOMO3UIIH
I10/10 1X MOJIIIIEHHs], aHaAJIi3 IHTEHCUBHOCTI PyXy aKTHBHOI YaCTWHH OCHOBHHX 3aC00iB Ta po3p0o0Ka MPONO3HUIIii
OO0 IIBUAKOCTI X OHOBJICHHS, aHAJI3 TEXHIYHOTO CTaHy aKTHBHOI YaCTHHU OCHOBHHUX 3aCO0IB Ta BUIIJICHHS
MPOTO3HLIT OAO MiABUIIEHHS iX SKOCTI.

Key words: analysis of fixed assets, initial cost, residual value, degree of depreciation, methods of analysis,
stages of fixed assets analysis.

Kniouegvie cnosa: ananus ocnoguwbix cpedcms, NepeOHAYANbHAS CIMOUMOCHb, OCMAMOYHAS CIMOUMOCHID,
cmeneHb U3HOCA, Memoobl AHANU3A, IMANbL AHAIU3A OCHOBHBIX CPEOCME.

Knouosi cnosa: ananiz ocrHosHux 3acobis, nepgicha eapmicmu, 3aIUWIKO8A 8APMICMb, CMYNIHb 3HOCY,
Memoou ananisy, emanu auanizy OCHOBHUX 3AC00I8.

Formulation of the problem. The basis for the
development of any socio-economic system is a stable,
stable over time, its reliable operation in the long run.
One of the basic elements, without which it is
impossible to ensure the activities of enterprises, are
fixed assets, whose structure and parameters of the
cycle are the driving force in the formation of the final
product. The organization of their effective use can
become both an element of success and a factor of
unjustified growth of the cost of products and services
provided. Considering the negative impact of
environmental factors due to the crisis in the country
and the destructive policy of modernization of
enterprises, in the environment of fixed assets
production decreases, the quality of products
deteriorates, as a result - there is a decrease in
profitability. That is why the method of analysis of
fixed assets in the context of a systematic and expert
vision of problem situations needs to be revised, which
requires a reliable assessment of their condition and
reserves of financial support for their renewal in
conditions of limited financial resources. Thus, the
inability to provide the fundamental conditions for the
effective operation of the enterprise negatively affects
the production potential of its development. Theoretical
and applied aspects of evaluation and financing of fixed
assets renewal need further development, which led to

the choice of the topic of the article.

Analysis of recent research and publications.
Questions of methodological approaches to the
problems of analysis of fixed assets were studied by
economists: F.F. Butynets, T.A. Burova, l.Yu.
Epifanova, T.G. Marenych, Ts. V. Mayakovska, O.M.
Sled, S. P. Sudarkina, Yu. V. Tarasyuk, N.V. Shvets,
V.K. Savchuk, I.D. Lazaryshyna, V.V. Sopko, C.I.
Shkaraban, G.V. Savitska, P.Ya. Popovych, B.F.
Usach, T.0. Mulyk, O.F. Tomchuk and others.
However, their research results on improving the
accounting and analytical management of fixed assets
are insufficient and therefore need improvement and
rectification.

Formulation of the goals of the article. To
analyze the state of fixed assets at enterprises, to
identify the problematic aspects and areas of
improvement of fixed assets management and to
highlight ~ methodological approaches to its
implementation.

Presentation of the main research material. The
efficiency of the economy is largely determined by the
state of its fixed assets, which characterize the
production capacity of industries, determine the pace
and scale of its development. In modern conditions of
activity of the enterprises research of problems of the
analysis of reproduction of fixed assets, efficiency of
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their use in the conditions of realization of investment
projects, and also definition of directions of activation
of investment activity becomes actual. These problems
are solved by a comprehensive analysis of the
reproduction of fixed assets [1].

The efficiency of the use of fixed assets is one of
the most important research links in enterprises. The
reproduction of fixed assets is considered as a process
of continuous renewal [2]. Today in Ukraine there is an
unfavorable situation regarding the security and
efficiency of use of fixed assets. First of all, it is due to
the high degree of depreciation of assets, which causes
an urgent need to modernize the existing fleet of means
of production (Table 1).

Analyzing fixed assets for 2000-2018, it should be

noted, that the size of the initial value increased from
2000 to 2014, but this positive trend changed slightly
during 2015-2018, where there is a significant decrease
in the initial value due to the occupied territories.
Despite this, in general, the initial cost increased during
this study period (2000-2018) by UAH 8781178
million or almost in 12 times.

The residual value also increased by UAH
3317046 million. The rate of depreciation increased
until 2014 and in this period the maximum value was
83.5%, then since 2015 it has decreased slightly due to
the occupation of territories. However, the general
deviation indicates an increase in depreciation from
2000 to 2018 by 16.9%.

Table 1
The cost of fixed assets in UKraine in 2000-2018
In actual prices at the end of the year, UAH min Degree of

Years initial (revalued) value residual value dEprfﬁ()'z tion,
2000 828822 466448 43,7
2001 915477 503278 45,0
2002 964814 512235 472
2003 1026163 538837 48,0
2004 1141069 587453 49,3
2005 1276201 661565 49,0
2006 1568890 774503 51,5
2007 2047364 993346 52,6
2008 3149627 1251178 61,2
2009 3903714 1597416 60,0
2010 6648861 1731296 74,9
2011 7396952 1780059 75,9
2012 9148017 2135987 76,7
2013 10401324 2356962 77,3
2014 13752117 2274922 83,5
2015 7641357 3047839 60,1
2016 8177408 3428908 58,1
2017 7733905 3475242 55,1
2018 9610000 3783494 60,6

Deviation 2018/2000,
including

absolute, +,- 8781178 3317046 16,9
relative, % 1059,5 711,1 38,7

Source: data from the State Statistics Service [3]

The dynamics of changes in the initial and residual
value of fixed assets and their degree of depreciation

are shown in Figures 1-3.
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Fig. 1. Dynamics of changes in the initial cost of fixed assets of enterprises of Ukraine in 2000-2018
Source: data from the State Statistics Service [3].
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Fig. 2 Dynamics of changes in the residual value of fixed assets of Ukrainian enterprises in 2000-2018
Source: data from the State Statistics Service [3].

Fig. 3Dynamics of changes in the degree of depreciation
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Source: data from the State Statistics Service [3].

However, the real situation is such, that due to
inflation and the fall of the national currency, the cost
of new equipment is much higher than the initial cost
of similar equipment.

Fixed assets play a crucial role in the production
activities of enterprises. The supply of enterprises with
fixed assets is an important factor that determines the
quality, completeness and timeliness of work,

production volume and financial condition of the
enterprise as a whole. Therefore, the study of the state
of the reproduction process in enterprises becomes
actual [4].

Analysis of the value of fixed assets of Ukraine by
type of economic activity in 2014-2018 [3], are shown
in table 2, where the total value of fixed assets in
Ukraine decreased by UAH 4142117 million.
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Table 2
Cost of fixed assets of Ukraine by types of economic activity (NACE-2010) in 2014-2018, (UAH million)
Branches 2014 | 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 De(‘faf;on
Total 13752117 | 7641357 | 8177408 | 7733905 | 9610000 | -4142117
Agriculture, forestry and fisheries 171392 | 210169 | 270467 | 341622 | 407146 235754
Agriculture, hunting and related services | 167283 | 205575 | 264859 | 335303 | 399526 232243
Forestry and logging 3294 3793 4513 5308 6295 3001
Fisheries 815 801 1095 1011 1325 510
Industry 1937821 | 3842517 | 3072954 | 2454483 | 3271669 1333848
Mining and quarrying 362722 | 379055 | 410018 | 422959 | 411806 49084
Processing industry 756277 | 1656971 | 1792101 | 1168230 | 1257573 501296

Supply of electricity, gas, steam and air
conditioning
Water supply; sewerage, waste 50936 | 70433 | 74277 | 82023 | 179053 | 119117
management
Construction 64352 62090 72810 78704 91715 27363

Wholesale and retail trade; repair of
motor vehicles and motorcycles 125507 135378 | 175422 | 195377 | 215625 90118

Transport, warehousing, postal and

758886 | 1736058 | 796558 | 781271 | 1423237 664351

9752902 | 1418312 | 1562079 | 1280369 | 1729587 -8023315

courier activities
Temporary accommodation and catering 27276 27985 29772 28786 30964 3688
Information and telecommunications 69440 76546 94243 111757 | 127085 57645
Financial and insurance activities 49718 51238 70977 66275 68695 18977
Real estate transactions 533328 666855 | 804040 | 928615 | 1064119 530791

Professional, scientific and technical
activities
Activities in the field of administrative
and ancillary services
Public administration and defense;

29626 31347 38671 35319 35681 6055

333493 | 407506 | 1173933 | 1376683 | 1487471 1153978

o 389 581 615 264 307 -82
compulsory social insurance
Education 3117 3117 3596 3785 4102 985
Health care and social assistance 11124 12912 21245 17359 27717 16593
Arts, sports, entertainment and recreation 23038 23581 20901 22306 22466 -572
Provision of other types of services 1822 2110 2775 2652 3201 1379
Source: data from the State Statistics Service [3]
The decrease in the value of fixed assets is Other industries have a tendency to increase the
observed in such areas as: temporary accommodation  value of fixed assets.
and catering (-8023315 million UAH), public The dynamics of changes in the value of fixed

administration and defense; compulsory social assets in the industry — Agriculture, forestry and
insurance  (-82 million UAH), arts, sports, fisheries, for the period from 2013 to 2018 are
entertainment and recreation (-572 million UAH). presented in Fig. 4.
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Fig. 4. Dynamics of changes in the value of fixed assets in the field of agriculture in 2013-2018
Source: data from the State Statistics Service [3]

Due to significant depreciation of fixed assets, the  technical and technological backwardness of



East European Scientific Journal #10(62), 2020 63

enterprises is increasing. The reproduction of fixed
assets in enterprises can take place through gross
capital investment, which will be aimed at the creation,
purchase, restoration and improvement of fixed assets

[5].

Ways to improve the use of fixed assets can be
represented in different ways [6]. One of the options for
the system of paths and the corresponding reserves to
improve the efficiency of use of fixed assets is the
following classification:

1) reserves of improving the extensive use of fixed
assets or ways to increase the operating time of
equipment: acceleration the commissioning; reduction
and elimination of intra-shift downtime due to modern
and high-quality providing jobs with raw materials,
energy, fuel, tools, equipment, working documentation,
proper repair maintenance, etc; increase in maintenance
periods and reduction of repair time; planning and
ensuring a more complete loading of equipment; -
increasing the coefficient of variability; improving the
organization of production and labor [7];

2) reserves of improving the intensive use of
equipment or increase the degree of its loading per unit
time: the establishment of the optimal mode of
operation of the equipment; increasing labor
productivity in the workplace due to the use of
technological equipment and special tools, improving
technological processes (increasing the level of
manufacturability);  increasing the level of
mechanization and automation of production, including
ancillary and service processes; improving the quality
of preparation of raw materials for the production
process; professional development of workers and their
development of advanced methods of work; increasing
the level of specialization and concentration in the
formation of technological processes; modernization of
equipment [1];

3) improving the structure of fixed assets:
increasing the share of the active part of fixed assets;
reducing the share of uninstalled equipment; purchase
of high-performance machines and equipment, their
timely updating; ensuring proportionality between
shops and sites; reduction of unused and redundant
fixed assets due to their realization or lease [1].

In the fixed asset management system, analysis
plays an important role.

Analysis - the broadest concept, which is the basis
of any knowledge of the phenomena of nature and
society, and methods of analysis - the basis of the study
of content, essence, structure, change and development
of economic, political, social, natural and other
phenomena and processes. It is a part of any scientific
and practical search to explain and solve existing
inconsistencies and problems [8].

In the process of economic analysis of fixed assets,
indicators, that characterize the provision of enterprises
in terms of increasing the competitiveness of the latter,
are calculated. This allows to form a basis for making
informed decisions and, accordingly, reduces the

likelihood of making the wrong decisions and helps to
choose the most optimal option to achieve the planned
goal [9].

Without diminishing the role of the developed of
theoretical positions on economic analysis of fixed
assets, it should be noted the insufficient level of their
study from the standpoint of modern management
needs, in particular, regarding the analysis of recovery
of the part of active assets of construction companies in
the process of their operation in terms of analysis of the
dynamics of fixed assets, including their active part,
traffic intensity and technical condition of fixed assets
for more complete and effective use. This is due to the
fact, that the restoration of the active part of the rolling
stock of fixed assets is essential to ensure the stable
operation of enterprises of the construction industry, as
it was noted in the previous two sections of the
dissertation [9].

The method of analysis of fixed assets should take
into account a number of principles:

- the functional usefulness of fixed assets is
maintained for several years, so the costs of their
purchase and operation are distributed over time;

- the moment of physical replacement of fixed
assets does not coincide with the moment of their cost
replacement, as a result of which there may be losses
and damages, that reduce the financial results of the
enterprise;

- the efficiency of the use of fixed assets is
estimated differently, depending on their type,
belonging, nature of participation in the production
process, as well as the purpose;

-fixed assets serve not only the production sphere
of the enterprise, but also social, cultural, etc.,
therefore, the effectiveness of their use is determined
not only by economic but also social, environmental
and other factors [10].

The objectives of the analysis of fixed assets are:

- assessment of the provision of the enterprise with
fixed assets;

- determining the composition and structure of
fixed assets, the degree of their renewal and disposal;

- analysis of the technical condition of fixed
assets;

- determining the level of return on assets, its
dynamics, studying the impact of changes in the size of
fixed assets and return on assets on the volume of work;

- identification of reserves to increase the return of
assets, improving the use of equipment;

- identification of ways to reduce the cost of
maintenance and operation of machines and
mechanisms;

- assessment of identified reserves and
development of measures to improve the use of the
active part of fixed assets [10].

A set of special systems and methods of economic
analysis is used to solve problems in the process of
analytical work. We can name six basic methods of
analysis of fixed assets (Fig. 5).
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Horizontal
(temporal) analysis

Comparison of each reporting item, which reflects income information, with the

previous period.

Vertical (structural)
analysis >

Determining the structure of different types of income from the total income of

the enterprise.

Trend analysis

v

Comparison of each income with a number of previous periods and determination
of the trend, that is the main trend of the dynamics of indicators, free from the
influence of individual characteristics of individual periods.

Analysis of relative
indicators
(coefficients)

v

Calculation of relations between separate types of income and reporting
indicators, determination of interrelations of indicators. Financial ratios are the
starting point for the next factor analysis.

Comparative
analysis

Internal economic analysis of consolidated indicators for individual indicators of
income of the enterprise and its subsidiaries (branches), as well as inter-economic
analysis of the indicators of this firm, compared with indicators of competitors or

with industry-wide and average indicators.

Factor analysis
e

Determining the influence of individual factors on the performance indicator of
deterministic (time-separated) or stochastic (not having a certain order) research
methods. Herewith, factor analysis can be both direct (actual analysis), when the
performance indicator is divided into separate components, as well as reverse
(synthesis), when its individual elements are combined into a common

performance indicator.

Source: [11]
Fig. 5. Basic techniques of analysis of fixed assets.

The need for analysis of the restoration of fixed
assets in the process of their operation is due to the
importance of ensuring the production process of
enterprises and the corresponding impact on the
financial results of their activities [9].

In support of this, some scientists [12, 13] say, that
an important condition for uninterrupted normal
operation of enterprises is a sufficient supply them with
fixed assets. The study of issues related to the
development of scientific thought shows, that the
research of scientists do not fully reveal the specifics of
the analysis of fixed assets of enterprises, taking into
account their industry features.

At the same time, there is no single approach to
the solving of this problem, as it is rightly noted by E.V.

Mnykh, who points out, that studies, conducted by
scientists, suggest that there is no systematic approach
to study the efficiency of fixed assets and questions of
their rational structure. [14]. V.V. Kovalyova and O.N.
Volkova have a similar position, which confirms, that
it is a systematic approach to the analysis of fixed assets
provides a more objective basis for making
management decisions [15].

The author carried out systematization the views
of scientists on the economic analysis of fixed assets
with the selection of such areas as: analysis of the state
and structure of fixed assets, technical condition of
fixed assets and the efficiency of their use, which are
given in table. 3.

Table 3
Systematization of views on the areas of economic analysis of fixed assets
Avreas of analysis of fixed assets
o S ° [r
8|8 (€. |85 |5
X | =& S o c °SL | S8|5g¢
c = [ c | .S [5) “5 e @ |= 8 d
Author S54S8uv| 88| 52|28 246 383|629
2292 2522|268 2524
SSREH BRI SHISEREB|EET
g0 D cE |2 29 |2 X |5 a2
s = |3 56| 8 E S | 2% 128 oM
Ow | s <3 g | E =5
= ) s L L
L.E. Basovskiy [16] + + + +
T.B. Berdnikova [17] + + + +
T.0. Mulyk [10] + + + + +
N.M. Bondar [18] + + +
O.A. Zorina[19] + + +
V.V. Kovalev [20] + + +
E.P. Kozhanova, |.P. Otenko [21] + + +
G.V. Savitska [22] + + +
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N.I. Samburska [23]

+ + + +

V.A. Sidun [24]

+ + + +

Source: generalized by the author on the basis of literature sources [10, 16-24]

In this case, based on the generalization of the
views of researchers, the author found that each of them
offers a different list of indicators for the analysis of

fixed assets within the areas, which are listed

in table. 4.

Table 4

Generalization of views of scientists on the application of various indicators to analyze the effectiveness of
the use of fixed assets

S [ [«5) - £
[%2] o [5) -
215 |B |2 |Eg|2u|2s| B2
a3 x = O cCH|lech| C®
< > E [STPS S n|l o als
2| F E 0|, iE S8 E23| 23
2 | 28|54, |88|lgs5J2S8S|2S|=X
c | =S| = =g Sd=2| 28| RBS
§ |ISE|5°|sg|s2785|85|5g
e |E€|1& |2€|es (S| |2
2 | = ks = SE|EQ| EE|Ew
o} (@) & % B & S35 85| cs
o T X 8 |8 |<5
L.E. Basovskiy [16] + + + + + + +
T.B. Berdnikov [17] + + +
T.0. Mulyk [10] + + + + +
N.M. Bondar [18] + + + + + +
O.A. Zorina [19] + + +
V.V. Kovalev [20]
E.P. Kozhanova, + + + + + +
G.V. Savitskaya [22] + + +
N.I. Samburskaya [23]
V.A. Sidun [24]

Source: generalized by the author on the basis of literature sources [10, 16-24]

Considering the specifics of the object of study,
namely the process of operation of fixed assets, the
increase of efficiency of which is directly depended on
the availability and use of the active part of fixed assets,
which is represented by machinery and equipment, the
author proposes to conduct an economic analysis of the
restoration of the active part of fixed assets during their
operation within such selected areas as: analysis of the
dynamics of the active part of fixed assets and making
proposals for their improvement; analysis of the
intensity of movement of the active part of fixed assets
and development of proposals for the speed of their
renewal; analysis of the technical condition of the
active part of fixed assets and providing proposals for
improving their quality, as well as analysis of the
operational efficiency of fixed assets.

Information support is an integral part of the
subsystem of the organization of economic analysis of

fixed assets, determining, to some extent, the quality
implementation of the analytical function in the
management system [25].

The information base of the analysis is: financial
reporting: Balance sheet; Statement of financial results
(total income); Notes to the financial statements;
statistical reporting: Report on the availability and
movement of fixed assets, depreciation (depreciation)
(f. 11-0Z), Report on the main economic indicators of
the work of agricultural enterprises (f. 50 sg); primary
and consolidated documents on the accounting of fixed
assets; passports of certain types of equipment and
other internal production documents[10].

In our previous studies, we associated the
information support of the analysis of fixed assets with
investments, that can be invested in fixed assets (Table
5.6).
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Table 5

Information Support of the Analysis of Fixed Assets at the Stage of Planning Investments
in Fixed Assets

Tasks of analysis

Information support

Analysis of financial results of operating activities

General ledger
Statement of financial performance (Statement of
comprehensive income) (form Ne2)
Notes to the annual financial statements

Analysis of the level of operation of fixed assets

General ledger
Balance sheet (Statement of financial position)

(form Nel)
Notes to the annual financial statements (form Ne5)
Analysis of the need for real investment in fixed assets Expert assessments
Media information, INTERNET
Analysis of the competitive environment Expert assessments

Data from statistical yearbooks

Analysis of investment resources (investment sources)

Balance sheet (Statement of financial position)
(form Nel)
Media information, INTERNET
EXxpert assessments

Analysis of investment potential

General ledger
Balance sheet (Statement of financial position)
(form Nel)
Statement of financial results (Statement of
comprehensive income) (form Ne2)
Notes to the annual financial statements (form Ne5)

Analysis of investment attractiveness

General ledger
Balance sheet (Statement of financial position)
(form Nel)
Statement of financial results (Statement of
comprehensive income) (form Ne2)

Analysis of investment activity

Balance sheet (Statement of financial position)
(form Nel)
Notes to the annual financial statements (form Ne5)

according to the criteria and methods of evaluation

Evaluation of the effectiveness of investments in fixed assets

Balance sheet (Statement of financial position)
(form Nel)
Statement of financial results (Statement of
comprehensive income) (form Ne2)
Cash flow statement (form Ne3)
Notes to the annual financial statements (form Ne5)

Analysis of the dynamics of the value of fixed assets

General ledger
Balance sheet (Statement of financial position)
(form Nel)
Notes to the annual financial statements (form Ne5)

Source: [25]

At the stage of investment in fixed assets it is
necessary to investigate the timeliness and
completeness of cash flows, that serve the investment
process in terms of investment sources, to establish

their monitoring, if the process of financing of real
investment is long, to assess the timeliness of posting
of fixed assets as the objects of real investment (Table
6).
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Table 6

Information support of the analysis of fixed assets at the stage of realization of investments in fixed assets

Tasks of analysis

Information support

Analysis of timeliness and completeness of cash flows of

investment activities

Cash flow statement (form Ne3)
General ledger

Analysis of fixed assets

Act of acceptance-delivery (internal transfer) of
fixed assets (form Ne O3-1)
Inventory card of fixed assets accounting (form No
03-6)
Fixed assets movement card (form Ne O3-8)
General ledger

Notes to the annual financial statements (form

No5)

Analysis of the completeness of the use of own funds in the

implementation of domestic investments

General ledger
Analysis of accounts 15 "Capital investments”, 18
"Other non-current assets"

Source: [25]

Thus, taking into account the previously presented
material and the research of scientists in the literature,
the author proposed a model of economic analysis of
fixed assets in the process of their operation, using
appropriate indicators (Fig. 6.)

provision of the enterprise with fixed assets. To do this,
it is necessary to find out whether the enterprises have
enough fixed assets, what is their dynamics,
composition, structure, technical condition, what is the
level of production and its organization.

The analysis begins with determining the
EVALUATION OF TRENDS
Indicators
Initial cost of fixed assets; The amount of
Y depreciation of fixed assets; Residual value
Assessment of the trend

Analysis of the dynamics
of the active part of fixed
assets during their
operation

of fixed assets; The amount of the active part

of fixed assets; The value of enterprise assets;
The share of fixed assets in the structure of
all assets of the enterprise; The share of the

regarding the provision of
the active part of fixed
assets in construction

The purpose of the analysis

technical condition of the
active part of fixed assets
during their operation

4

fixed assets; The coefficient of suitability of

fixed assets; Depreciation rate of fixed assets;
Coefficient of technical armament of fixed
assets; The cost of repairing the active part

yy - active part of fixed assets in the structure of enterprises
fixed assets
2 BLOCK
£
Indicators ..‘5
Analy3|s_of tMe |nten_S|ty F|x_ed assets g.rovyth rate; The revenue ratlo. % @ Estimation of intensity of
of the active part of fixed of fixed assets; Disposal rate of fixed assets; S5 .
X . . B = & movement of active part of
assets during their .| Fixed assets replacement ratio; Fixed assets | 2 q fixed assets
operation i ratio; Coefficient of stability Q@
A =
3BLOCK
v
. Indicators
Analysis of the The coefficient of intensity of renewal of
assessment of the

Assessment of the level of
technical equipment

The purpose of
the analvsis

A

4 BLOCK
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Analysis of the
assessment of the Indicators
effectiveness of the The first integral indicator; The second
active part of fixed assets .| integral indicator; An integral indicator of the
in the process of their | efficiency of the active part of fixed assets
operation

Evaluation of the
effectiveness of the active
part of fixed assets during

their operation

The purpose of
the analvsis

Fig. 6. Model of analysis of the active part of fixed assets of enterprises in the process of their operation
Source: generalized by the author on the basis of literature sources [1-25]

Indicators of the structure of fixed assets are of
great analytical importance. By studying the change in
the structure of assets in value terms, they find out what
caused it - changes in the composition of buildings and
structures or the composition of machinery, equipment
and other groups of fixed assets.

Studying the condition of fixed assets, the
provision of enterprises with them is also determined.
To do this, first the capacity of the equipment and the
extent to which this capacity corresponds to the
production program of the enterprise is analyzed.

The fullest and most rational use of fixed assets
and production capacity of the enterprise contributes to
the improvement of all its technical and economic
indicators: growth of labor productivity and return on
assets, increase in output, cost reduction, capital
investment savings.

When analyzing fixed assets, first of all it is
necessary to determine their average annual value and
the dynamics of change over a number of years.
Herewith, it is necessary to compare the rate of their
change with the dynamics of growth in the cost of
production or production volumes in physical terms.
The latter indicator should have a higher growth rate,
compared to fixed assets. However, the economic
difficulties, that occur in our country, may show the
opposite trends.

The fixed assets of the enterprise are divided into
production and non-production. The first includes fixed
assets of the main type of activity (industry) and other
sectors of the economy. The fixed assets of the main
activity consist of buildings and structures, equipment,
tools and other fixed assets.

Analyzing the composition of the main fixed
assets, they should be divided into active and passive,
determining the share of each group. It is necessary to
study carefully how the ratio of these groups has
changed in recent years. At the same time, the constant
increase in the share of active funds in the form of
working and power machines is the urgent goal of every
enterprise.

In today's market conditions, it is very important
to pay attention to what share of fixed assets is rented
or leased, what land area is occupied by the company
and how appropriate it is used.

Analyzing the condition of fixed assets, primarily
on the basis of section | of the balance sheet asset, the
coefficient of operation (depreciation) of fixed asset sis
calculated and its dynamics over a number of years is
studied. As auxiliary it is possible to apply coefficients
of disposal, updating of fixed assets, indicators of age
structure of the equipment. Deterioration of these
indicators may indicate serious problems with

equipment upgrades at the country's enterprises, lack of
funds to finance these needs. In addition, triggered
fixed assets lead to the use of outdated technological
processes, which causes non-competitive products of
most enterprises.

Conclusions. Thus, based on the results of the
study, we can conclude that the main means of
production of the enterprise are not used efficiently
enough. Further increase in the efficiency of their use
can be achieved in an intensive way, namely: - by
replacing some outdated technologies with new ones,
computerized technologies that will accelerate
production and increase labor productivity; -
reconstruction of those production sites and equipment
that are "bottlenecks”, ie restrain the possibility of
increasing production; - organization of training and
retraining of engineering and technical workers and key
production workers who will be responsible for the
implementation of new advanced equipment and work
on it. Improving the condition of fixed assets is possible
only through the renewal and implementation of
technical and technological innovation modernization.

The analysis of the authors' approaches to solving
the problems of economic analysis of fixed assets
allowed to establish that to build a systematic approach
to the analysis of the operation process of fixed assets,
improving the efficiency of which directly depends on
the availability and use of active assets, should take into
account the specifics of the object of study, namely the
process of operation of fixed assets. Based on the study,
the author's approach is proposed, which provides for
its implementation in terms of such areas as analysis of
the dynamics of the active part of fixed assets of
enterprises and development of proposals for their
improvement, analysis of the intensity of the active part
of fixed assets and development of suggestions on the
speed of their renewal, technical condition active part
of fixed assets and the allocation of proposals to
improve their quality. The application of this approach
allows to obtain theoretical and methodological
prerequisites for the economic analysis of the operation
of fixed assets in the enterprises, which allows to make
management decisions on the analysis of the
reproduction of the active part of fixed assets in
enterprises during their operation.
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Problem statement. Management of any systems
as a complex socio-economic process is carried out
within certain structural formations of objects of
management, which form their management structure.
Modern trends in management processes cause changes
in organizational structures of management, causing
their evolution and adaptation to the requirements of
the time. Speaking of adaptive management as
management, which should be considered as the
activity of the control system (subject of management)
in relation to the managed system (object of
management), on adaptation and transformation in
general on the basis of personal characteristics, abilities
and characteristics to ensure mutual sustainable
development through the achievement of the goals of
the participants in the management process, we note
that the structure that provides it must respond quickly
to the challenges of the internal and external
environment. Because businesses have different
industry environments, different goals, strategies, types
of leadership, etc., their activities will be affected by a
variety of factors. These factors can be summarized and
defined as those that operate within the enterprise,
outside the enterprise and have a regional, sectoral or
national level. Construction as a field of management
has features related to the complexity of the production
process, the duration of construction, high cost,
environmental impact, the involvement of various
resources, capital, the complexity of the relationship
between the participants. Therefore, to determine the
essential load of the category "organizational structure
of management” in relation to economic entities in the
field of construction, it is necessary not only to take into
account the general theoretical achievements, but also
to identify it taking into account industry specifics.

Analysis of recent research and publications. A
large number of works by domestic scientists, such as:
0O.V. Shcherbyna, V.M. Koshelnyk, V. Shorokhov,
S.A. Petrenko [1-4], where the stages of transformation
of organizational structures were determined
(hierarchical, adaptive, network - O.V. Shcherbyna [2])
and periods of transformation (pre-industrial,
industrial, post-industrial - V.M. Koshelnyk [3]);
typification of organizational management structures
(vertical, horizontal, network; hierarchical and organic
(adaptive); traditional and strategic); factors of
influence on the choice of organizational structures of
management were determined (M.V. Kamrinska-
Bilobrova, V.M. Koshelnik, V. Shorokhov) [1,4].

Outlining of previously unsolved parts of the
overall problem. At the same time, the change of

economic systems, styles, methods and ways of
management, characteristics of personnel of both
entities and objects of management, requires a renewed
understanding of the organizational structures of
management of economic entities, including
construction.

Aim of the article. Determining the peculiarities
of the formation of organizational structures of
management (OSM) of economic entities in the field of
construction and identification of the essentiality of
organizational structures of employee management

Presentation of the main material. A study of
the semantics and etymology of the word "structure"
(structura) shows that it has Latin origins and means -
construction, placement. According to the Academic
Dictionary of the Ukrainian language, the structure is
understood as “the mutual arrangement and
interconnection of the constituent parts of the whole;
structure; device, organization of something "[5].
Koshelnik V.M. believes that the structure "reflects the
construction and internal form of the system™ and
"establishes the internal system order, the form of
organizational relations and elements™ [3].

In the domestic scientific and educational
literature, which presents research on organizational
structures, similar concepts are used "organizational
structure”  (OS), "organizational = management
structure”, "organizational management structure"
(OSM). We consider it expedient to conduct a
comparative analysis of these concepts in order to
establish common and different. Note that when
defining this category, the question arises as to its
attachment to something. Most often it is an enterprise,
company, corporation or management.

At the legislative level in the Commercial Code of
Ukraine, Art. 64 "Organizational structure of the
enterprise” states that the enterprise may consist of
production units (industries, shops, offices, sections,
teams, offices, laboratories, etc.), as well as functional
units of the management staff (departments, divisions,
offices, services, etc.) [6]». Based on the above, the
organizational structure of the enterprise is a set of
production and management units. It also states that
"the company independently  determines its
organizational structure, sets the number of employees
and staffing."

The use of a dictionary approach to the analysis of
the category "organizational structure”, allowed the
existing definitions to be presented in table. 1.

From the definitions given in table. 1 we can
generalize that the organizational structure is
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understood as the structure of a particular organization
by structural departments, positions, which allows for
the distribution of levels, functions, their interaction to
achieve goals.

According to [4], "organizational structure is a
structure of the enterprise with a formal or informal

expression, on the basis of which it is managed. It
covers the channels of power and communication
between the various administrative services and
employees, as well as the flow of information
transmitted through these channels.

Table 1
Definition of the category 'organizational structure'': vocabulary approach
Definitions Source
The organizational structure of the company - the optimal ratio of management levels and functions [7]
performed by departments, which is achieved primarily by establishing rational relationships between
employees to achieve common production and social goals.
Organizational structure is a set of production units and orderly flows of resources in the production [8]
system, as well as management bodies and their specific relationship, which ensure the achievement
of strategic goals of the enterprise.
Organizational structure - the logical relationship of management levels and functional areas, [9]
organized in such a way as to ensure the effective achievement of goals.
Organizational structure of the corporation - resistant to crises and other negative phenomena, a | [10]
holistic set of internal and separate units, arranged in a hierarchical sequence, due to the mission and
strategic goals of the corporation, with the presence of vertical and horizontal relationships established
in accordance with corporate and legal regulations which has a high level of dynamism and adaptation
to possible changes in the internal and external environment of the corporation.
Organizational structure - a system of structural units of the organization, the scheme of their | [11]
relationship in the process of activity.

This interpretation more broadly considers the
organizational structure, taking into account the formal
or informal nature, as well as talking about the OS as a
basis, a prerequisite for management.

The  economic  encyclopedic  dictionary
distinguishes between the concepts of organizational
structure of the company and organizational structure
of management [7]. These categories are interrelated
and OSM "is a system of distribution of functional
rights and responsibilities between management bodies
and management staff, and therefore a mechanism for
implementing the interaction of the company's
structure."”

Therefore, in the next stage of the study, we will
consider the definition related to organizational
management structures. Thus, in studies [12,13] the
concepts of "organizational management structure" and
"organizational structure of management " are
considered equally. It is stated that the OSM provides
for the distribution of the management process within
the structure, among managers of "all levels, categories
and professional specialization." In [4] it is noted that
the OSM ‘“reflects the organizational side of
management relations and ensures the unity of levels
and links of management in their relationship.” The
orderliness of the interconnected set of services,
departments, divisions and individual officials in the
performance of managerial functions is emphasized in
[14]. The organizational structure of management as a
form of management system is mentioned in the study
[15], which coincides with the opinion of Koshelnyk
V.V.

It also states that the OSM determines “the
composition, interaction and subordination of its
elements (production and management units)." Under
OSM Tokhtarova I.M. proposes to understand "an
element of the enterprise management system, which is

a set of orderly units of different levels of management
interconnected, the purpose of which is to ensure
effective management of the enterprise™ [16]. This
definition is interpreted by the OSM within the
enterprise.

Also in scientific thought certain subsystems and
certain substructures of management, for example, -
personnel are separately allocated. By definition
Chikurkova A.D. organizational structure of personnel
management is a system of connections and
relationships that arise (disappear) in the process of
work, between existing and created (disappearing)
parts of the personnel management system, work
teams, stages of personnel management system
according to the chosen strategy of general
management [17]. It determines the orderliness of
tasks, positions, powers and responsibilities of
employees of the personnel service, based on which it
carries out its management activities [17].

So, we can summarize:

- organizational structure is the internal structure
of a system - management, enterprises, organizations,
personnel;

- organizational structure has a composition,
levels, subordination, elements that interact in the
process of activities aimed at achieving a specific goal,
the implementation of tasks;

- the organizational structure of the enterprise and
the organizational structure of management (enterprise)
are interrelated, but not identical categories;

- the organizational structure of the enterprise is
decisive in relation to the organizational structure of
management.

If we take into account the domestic legal field, we
note the lack of clear obligation to form an
organizational structure and its approval, but, according
to the Ministry of Labor in letter Ne 162 [18] the
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formation of staffing is mandatory, and its formation is
based on organizational structure, number and
Regulations on remuneration, which relate to the
internal organizational and regulatory documents of the
enterprise.

Thus, the presence of the organizational structure
is the basis for the formation of the staff list, which is
mandatory in the activities of economic entities, which,
accordingly, requires the development and approval of
the organizational structure.

We also note that the organizational structure
applies to the staff list, and, consequently, employees
included in the staff. According to the Instruction on
Statistics of the Number of Employees [19], which
applies to all legal entities, their branches,
representative offices and other separate divisions, as
well as to natural persons - entrepreneurs who use hired
labor, in the number of full-time employees includes all
employees who have entered into a written
employment contract (contract) and performed
permanent, temporary or seasonal work for one day or
more, as well as owners of the enterprise, if, in addition
to income, they received wages at this enterprise. The
total number of employees, in addition to full-time
employees, includes the number of part-time
employees and those working under civil law contracts
[19].

Thus, it makes sense to talk about OSM in terms
of staffing and total number of employees. In addition,
in construction, as a specific activity, the use of
contractors / subcontractors is widespread, the
relationship with which is formalized by the relevant
agreements. This category of people involved in the
construction process needs close attention and
guidance, organization of cooperation, which will build
a certain architecture of management processes. All the
activities of the participants in the construction process
are subject to a common goal - the creation of
construction products - a particular building - and
without the coordinated implementation of the

processes distributed by contractors and deadlines,
which are formalized by various agreements, its
achievement is impossible. In addition, construction
has a number of other features that will affect
management [20]. That is why the author believes that
in the management process it is necessary to take into
account all types of relationships between individuals,
which are united to achieve a common goal in the
process of activity. Therefore, the organizational
structure of management will be understood as a system
of connections and relations that arise (disappear) in the
process of achieving a common goal between all
participants, taking into account the rights and
responsibilities in accordance with the levels of
subordination.

Taking into account the regulatory context during
the formation of the organizational structure of the
management of the business entity in the field of
construction is presented in fig. 1.

It should be noted that at the first level, the
organizational structure of the entity is mandatory
(highlighted in dark gray with an intermittent outline)
and can, in the absence of other participants, serve as
the basis of the organizational structure of
management. It is at this level that we should talk about
all types of organizational structures - linear,
functional, linear-functional, etc., because they are
carried out within one business entity. This level
provides for the approval of the formal organizational
structure of management within the entity and applies
to personnel with whom the relationship is formalized
by concluding an employment agreement (contract).
Other levels take into account that in the process of
joint activities to achieve the goal, may be involved
persons with whom the relationship will not be
employment, but their participation is necessary and,
accordingly, governed by other contractual relations.
This process must be coordinated, managed by all
participants, which goes beyond the formal boundaries
of the organization.

Construction entity
NACEF
Individual entrepreneurs
Legal entity

Employment Staff list Personal - the number of full- o
1 contract H H time employees and the number [ a
of part-time emplovees 2 A
'101 ’ Q
= =
0 H E
Contract of civil The total number of employees ;% S %
2 law nature — - staff and the number of H eF
(CCLN) employees of the (CCLN) 2 “ 8
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5 Contract, outosource %
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Figure 1 — Features of formation of organizational structures of management of economic entities in the field of
construction (developed by the author)
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However, management levels do not necessarily
depend on the type of agreement between the person
involved in the work process. For example, if
accounting support is required, this may be through
outsourcing based on a CCLN contract or a contract
with a private individual, and in the management
system the role of the accountant will depend on the
manager and the employee responsible for collecting
documents.

Thus, during the formation of the organizational
structure of the management of the construction
industry in relation to people involved in the economic
process, it is necessary to distinguish levels where, on
the first we can talk about OSM personnel of the entity,
on the second - about OSM total number of employees.
of the business entity, and the third - on the OSM
participants involved in the business activities of the
business entity.

In addition, the first level will be relatively stable,
as the OSM is not reviewed from project to project or
monthly, depending on the order, and is approved by
management; at the second level we observe the
relative instability of the OSM, and the third level arises
and changes depending on the project, its size, etc.

Conclusions and suggestions. As a result of the
study, approaches to understanding the organizational
structure and organizational structure of management
were studied, which should be distinguished. It is
proposed to understand the organizational structure of
management as a system of connections and relations
that arise (disappear) in the process of achieving a
common goal between all participants, taking into
account the rights and responsibilities in accordance
with the levels of subordination. Taking into account
the regulatory framework for the design of
relationships with persons involved in the economic
process of the construction industry, the organizational
structure of management of the person in the process of
work will have three levels: the first can talk about
OSM staff, the second - on OSM by the total number of
employees of the business entity, and the third - on
OSM by participants involved in the economic activity
of the business entity.

Further areas of research are the analysis of
organizational structures of management of business
entities of the construction sector of Ukraine and their
relationship  with the number of employees,
management style.
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